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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

2021 is the first year of the “14th Five-Year plan”. By
studying policy direction and gaining insights on market
trends, we explored new opportunities in the new era and
developed our 14th Five-Year strategic plan, in which we
clearly stated our vision of leading
healthcare group in China and a pioneer in the reformation
of state-owned medical institutions”, marking the first step
of CR Medical
roadmap. As the epidemic continued its
in combating the pandemic while
guaranteeing the medical quality and safety of our hospitals.

“striving to be a

in taking forward its new development
rampage, we
contributed ourselves

This demonstrates our inheritance of the patriotic and
our accountability as a state-owned
medical institution, our commitment to saving lives and

revolutionary spirit,

relieving pain of the injured as a people-oriented medical
institution, as well as our corporate culture of striving for
public health.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all shareholders for their support, to all the
friends in our society for offering strong support to us in the
fight against the pandemic, to all of our staff members for
their hard work and dedication, and to all of our frontline
medical workers for their devotion.

During the reporting period, the medical operations of the
Group grew steadily. The number of outpatient visits to our
member hospitals increased by 39.9% vyear-on-year and by
22.8% as compared with 2019. During the reporting period,
the number of inpatient visits grew by 28.3% year-on-year
and by 11.7% as compared with 2019. In 2021, the Group
recorded a net profit attributable to the parent of RMB418
million, increased by 34.8%
compared with 2019. From the perspective of the operation
of the member hospitals, the total medical business revenue
was RMB8,272 million, rise of 24.5%
year-on-year and a 20.4% up as compared with 2019.

year-on-year and by 6.9%

representing a
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEREE

This year, we made strenuous efforts in the development of
medical technology. Our member hospitals have embarked
on the new journey of achieving quality development with
medical technology, while we continue to strengthen
specialty development and indicator management. With four
key municipal specialties and one key municipal construction
unit added to our hospitals, we currently own six key
provincial specialties and thirty key municipal specialties in
total. Beijing Jian Gong Hospital was successfully upgraded
to a Grade Il Chinese and Western hospital in November
2021, marking it the sixth Grade Il hospital in the network
of CR Medical. "3-in-1"
smart hospitals based on the principle.
Through promoting the establishment of a medical internet
platform and experimenting the intelligent patient service
scenario, we hope to enhance patients’ satisfaction and

We facilitated the construction of
“value creation”

expand the radius of our medical services. To facilitate
diversified communication and collaboration with top
domestic institutions, we successively entered into strategic
cooperation agreements with the National Clinical Research
Center for Digestive Diseases, the Institute of Automation,
Chinese Academy of Sciences, etc.

We steadfastly and successfully implemented our
development roadmap this year. During the reporting period,
following our regional leadership strategy, we entered into
an agreement to acquire Huai'an City Huaiyin Hospital (a
Grade Il comprehensive for-profit hospital) at the beginning
of 2021 to further expand into the Yangtze River Delta
The project was completed in June 2021. In
addition, we entered into a hospital management agreement
with CR Land in respect of Yuenianhua Rehabilitation
Hospital in March 2021. Pursuant to this agreement, we
provided preliminary preparatory and subsequent
management services to Yuenianhua Rehabilitation Hospital,
which formally commenced operation in May 2021.

region.
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As for financial management, the financial statements of
Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital and Xukuang Hospital have
been consolidated into the Group since August 2021. The
Group has completed the consolidation of all the member
hospitals whose sponsors are subsidiaries of the Company.
Not only does it demonstrate the Group’s control over the
relevant sponsored hospitals, it also allows our financial

statements to be more reflective of our business

performance.

Looking ahead,
Group, we will continue to develop our business portfolio of
regional leading hospitals and academic specialty hospitals.

in line with the 14th Five-Year plan of the

By establishing leading hospital clusters and
academic specialty hospital clusters and acquiring and

consolidating premium hospital

regional
resources, we aim at
achieving robust organic growth and swift external

expansion.

During the 14th Five-Year plan, we aim to establish regional
leading high-standard specialties to better serve the patients
by improving the medical technology, medical quality and
service capability of our hospitals. We also target to achieve
high-quality growth and boost the commercial value of our
hospitals through group management, management

upgrades, cost reduction and efficiency enhancement.

2022 is a critical year in the implementation of the 14th
Five-Year plan. We must be committed to the mission of
“striving for public health”. With passion, we will advance
our medical technology and acquire premium resources with
a view to developing a state-owned hospital development
model with the characteristics of China Resources. We will
spare no effort in implementing strategic initiatives in order
to establish a high-quality integrated healthcare group with
strong specialties and world class management and thereby
usher CR Medical in a new era of development.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
Song Qing
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWEDTN

The Group achieved a consolidated revenue of RMB4,447
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020:
RMB2,751 million; 2019: RMB2,115 million); the increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to the improved operating
efficiency as well as the effects in relation to the acquisition
of Huaiyin Hospital in June 2021 and the consolidation of
certain hospitals (for details, please refer to the section
headed “Consolidating certain hospitals” below).

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a net profit
of RMB426 million (2020: RMB320 million; 2019: RMB401
million) and earnings per share of RMB0.33 (2020: RMBO0.25
per share; 2019: RMBO0.31 per share). The increase in net
profit was mainly attributable to the
contribution of our member hospitals, resulting from the
implementation of the Group’'s strategy in
strengthening the management of our member hospitals’
daily operation and promoting their service quality and
operation efficiency, which helped our member hospitals
effectively cope with the challenges brought about by the
new normal with the epidemic and improved their overall
financial performance.

improved profit

successful

In 2021, the material impairments to the accounting items
of the Group include impairment of approximately RMB213
million in in CR
Wugang JV, which is one-off and non-cash in nature, and
other material impairments (mainly on receivables) amounted
to approximately RMB124 million. The Group recorded the

respect of our long-term investment

reversal of deferred tax liabilities of credit amount of
approximately RMB221 relation to the
derecognition of sponsorship rights and service contracts
resulting from the consolidation of serval sponsored
hospitals in August 2021. Together with the effects in
relation to certain abovementioned impairments, the related
deferred tax credit amount was approximately RMB283

million.

million in
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of December 31, 2021,
operates 120 medical institutions in 8 provinces and cities in
China, and the number of annual outpatient visits of the
Group’s member hospitals was approximately 10,780,000,
representing an increase of 39.9% and 22.8% compared
with 2020 and 2019, respectively. The annual number of
inpatient was approximately 282,000, representing an
increase of 28.3% and 11.7% compared with 2020 and
2019, respectively. The operational efficiency of the Group’s
member hospitals has been significantly improved in the first
half of 2021 and maintained in the second half of the year.

the Group manages and

During the year, the Group has completed the acquisition of
Huaiyin Hospital and gradually consolidated certain other
hospitals. Among which, Huaiyin Hospital’'s financial
statements have been consolidated into the Group's

consolidated financial statements since June 2021.

In addition, the amendments to the respective constitutional
documents of a number of member medical institutions
have been gradually implemented pursuant to the
requirements under the ‘Guiding Opinions on the Pilot
Scheme for the Formulation of Hospital Constitutions’ jointly
issued by the National Health Commission and the National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine in May 2018,
the model template of public hospital constitution issued by
the National Health Commission in December 2019 and the
guidelines given by the
authorities of its member medical institutions. On August
30, 2021, such constitution amendments on Guangdong
999 Brain Hospital, and Huaibei City
Mental Health Center have been implemented and other
relevant documents in respect of the corresponding medical
institutes have been executed. As a result, the Group has
obtained the practical capability to direct the
activities of the relevant medical institutes unilaterally and
gained control over them. Their financial statements have
been consolidated into the Group's financial statements as
of even date.

respective local government

Xukuang Hospital

relevant

EEENWEDAN
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. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
 EEEHRESN

"

List of Medical Institutions under the rEEEREEEERRBO MR
Group’s Management and Operation

Grade |

Hospitals Clinics &

and Other

Community Medical

Grade Il Grade |l Centres Institutions

Hospitals Hospitals —A&RAER KR ZAKEM

Province/City B/ =B —RER FEA L BRI
Beijing =R 2 4 11 29 46
Shandong IS = 2 2 10 14
Shanxi 1ipid) = 1 = = 1
Jiangsu® T ER = 2 — — 2
Anhui T 1 3 19 6 29
Hubei il 2 = 3 16 21
Guangdong Ex 1 1 — 2 4
Guangxi®? Er@ = 2 1 — 3
Total Gl 6 15 36 63 120

Notes: 3

(1) Huaiyin Hospital's financial statements have been consolidated to the (1) R B B RK 82021 F6 ARBMALERE
consolidated financial statements of the Group since June 2021. P RERE A -

) On March 12, 2021, Hubei Runkang Healthcare Management Co., Ltd. (a  (2) MR2021F3A128 I EEREEEERFRET AR

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (as the manager) and Shenzhen (KRElz2EMBRR)(EAXFEH) EIRYITHE
Runtou Consulting Co., Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Land) (as WEABRAR (EHEM 7 2EWB AR (EAE
the principal) entered into the hospital management agreement and A EIBRERESERRRAEE TB 2 HF
pursuant to which the latter shall appoint the former as the manager to EFEERREHE2EELSEERS -

provide comprehensive operation and management services for the
Yuenianhua Rehabilitation Hospital.

12 China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Established in 1953, Jian Gong Hospital was formerly known
as Beijing Construction Workers Hospital and the General
Hospital of the Ministry of Construction. In October 2021, it
was approved to be upgraded to a grade 3 integrative
hospital. The hospital operates about 400 beds. During the
Reporting Period, its number of outpatient visits was about
791,000, and the number of inpatients was about 15,000,
representing year-on-year growth of 41.2% and 36.7%
respectively year-on-year. The medical income of Jian Gong
Hospital in 2021 was approximately RMB777 million.

Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital was established in 1994. It is
a grade 3 specialized hospital which locates in Guangzhou,
the Guangdong Province. Its key discipline is neurosurgery.
The hospital operates approximately 800 beds. During the
Reporting Period, the number of outpatient visits was
approximately 330,000, and the number of inpatients was
approximately 18,000, representing year-on-year growth of
21.2% and 24.3%, respectively. The hospital's medical
income in 2021 was approximately RMB1,017 million.

Huaikuang Hospital was established in 1958. It is a grade
3A general hospital located in the Anhui Province, and with
trauma surgery as its characteristic discipline. The hospital
operates approximately 2,300 beds. During the Reporting
Period, the number of outpatient visits was approximately
1,134,000, representing a year-on-year growth of 17.6%,
and the number of inpatients was approximately 61,000,
similar to the previous year. The hospital’s medical income
in 2021 was approximately RMB768 million.

EEENWEDAN

fEEBRA N 1963F AT G At mmEE
TAER - 2 F04R%0 - KR2021F 107 %
MEAAZE=RPABLES B - %8B
B2 BURALA4005 - REHRMZE A
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DRI H141.2% }.36.7% ° 2021 F i = B
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BR = NISEI BRI A 1994F - AURE
REBMM 2 =MBEREBR - EF2R AW
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

Wugang General Hospital was established in Wuhan City in
1958. Wugang General Hospital is a grade 3A general
hospital with about 1,000 beds. During the Reporting Period,
the number of outpatient visits and inpatient visits of the
hospital was approximately 734,000 and 35,000,
representing year-on-year increase of 36.5% and 43.0%,
respectively. In 2021, income of Wugang
General Hospital was approximately RMB715 million.

the medical

Founded in 1956, Jing Mei Hospital is a grade 3 general
hospital operates
approximately 2,000 beds. During the Reporting Period, the
number of outpatient visits was approximately 1,966,000
and the number of inpatients was approximately 38,000,
representing year-on-year increase of 36.4% and 9.1%,
respectively. The hospital’s medical income in 2021 was
approximately RMB1,778 million.

located in Beijing. The hospital

In addition to the aforesaid hospitals, the other member
institutions of the Group together operates
approximately 5,700 beds. During the Reporting Period, the
number

medical

of outpatient visits and
approximately 5,826,000 and 115,000, representing year-on-
year increase of 48.2% and 57.6%. In 2021, the total
medical income of the relevant medical institutions was
approximately RMB3,217 million.

inpatients were

I 4APT R 1958 F R REM AL RN
RHRELREBE - EERBUKRGIA 1,000
R MEBMAZRMZEBNTIABANL
FHREALIEBAR  ERFHFILIN36.5%
$43.0% ° 2021 4F E\ #f 48 Bt & 28 B = TS A
BHYARET 15(ETT °

TR BT IR 1956 F + BAINIE R Z =&
RE BT o ZBETESFMBURAIA2,0005 -
HEHAFILEBLN196.6BAX - (EIRES
W3 8EBAX R FHHIEMN36.4% K&
9.1% ° 2021 F Z M BEEBKRARBLDHA
R¥17.7818 7T -

br bt ERIN - NEBHMKEBREEES
ETIBE R MURALAB, 7005 @ shEHAMIZE
A#I582.6BANX - FRRE AT BEAX
BE D RIIEINA8.2% K 57.6% ° 2021 F1HE
EERBHNEBEEBRAGEROARY
32.17187T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEHREIN

Operating data for Year 2021 2021 F & EHE

Number of patients Revenue from medical business (RMB'000)
DBEAR BEEBUAARBTT)

Revenue Revenue Revenue

Number of  Utilization from from from
beds in rate of Number of Number of  outpatient inpatient physical
operation beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination
BERAY KUuERE FMZAR  ERAR  FZBA  EREA BREA

Self-owned AEBR®
Hospitals™e 10,469 7% 7562810 242321 2954506 3620303 128421 6,703,230
|OT/OT Hospitals 0T/OTE 1,773 55% 3217655 39,632 980626 531,163 57,260 1,569,049
Subtotal Nt 12,242 70% 10780465 281,953 3935132 41151466 185,681 8272279
Operating data for Year 2020 2020 F & B E B

Number of patients Revenue from medical business (RMB'000)
BEEBIWANRETT)
Revenue  Revenue  Revenue
Number of  Utilization from from from
beds in rate of Number of Number of  outpatient inpatient physical

operation beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination

ERMUH RUEAE  MZAR ERAR  FZRA  ERERA

Self-owned BEER®

Hospitals™o® 7,481 67% 4,246,313 164,343 1,606,092 2,291,121 90,293 3,987,506
IOT/OT Hospitals |OT/OT &% 3,484 60% 3,459,692 55,415 1,591,639 1,011,990 52,717 2,656,346
Subtotal Nt 10,965 65% 7,706,005 219,758 3,197,731 3,303,111 143,010 6,643,852

Note: In respect of the operating data statistics, the abovementioned self-owned 5 : FEEHELRFTEN LiilgEERAEAEE
hospitals refer to all consolidated hospitals and unconsolidated hospitals of FAEHREREIEHRER  TEERASEEE
the Group, and except for the IOT/OT hospitals managed by the Group. H10T/OTE T ©

ERBEERERLAT —T - —Fw% 15
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

Financial data

Financial data for Year 2021

B 7% S 15
2021F B & 15

Segment results
Self-owned IOT/OT  Other derived  Administrative Other gains
2021 hospitals hospitals businesses expenses and expenses
H fth ez Ko
RMB'000 BAEBR IOT/OT®E&B EMITE%EH TBER 35!
Revenue from goods and P8 o R AR A U
services 4,447,477 3,968,459 453,843 25,175 = =
Cost of sales and services & RIRBEHA (3,513,922) (3,169,038) (315,087) (29,797) = =
Other income HepA 46,322 32,395 7,915 6,012 = =
Selling and distribution HERDHER
expenses (16,396) (11,791) (4,533) (72) - -
Administrative expenses THER (332,426) (308,498) (18,602) (5,326) - -
Finance costs BMsER (2,516) (2,450) - (66)
Impairment losses on CREEREBEFE
financial assets,net (77,539) (77,539) = - - -
Other expenses Hi B (2,951) (2,488) - (463) - -
Share of profit of joint =Yt NG
ventures/associates b 83,553 83,553 =
Segment results D HEE 631,602 512,603 123,536 (4,537) N/ARER N/ATEMA
Headquarters operating BPELER
expenses (139,407) - - - (139,407) -
Other profit or loss HinBam (206,403) = = = = (206,403)
Finance costs BB (15,318) — — - — (15,318)
Share of profit of joint ElEEE HEAR
ventures/associates b 1 = = = = 1
Income tax Fie® 155,389 — — - — 155,389
Net profit or loss FES 425,864 512,603 123,536 (4,537) (139,407) (66,331)
Revenue from medical BREBERA
business 8,272,279 6,703,230 1,569,049 = N/ATER N/ATE A

Notes: N

During the Reporting Period: REE A -

(1 Self-owned hospitals include: Jian Gong Hospital, Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital, (1) BEREREE B8k BEmEARER  EERER
Huaikuang Hospital Group, the Run Neng Hospitals, Guangdong 999 Brain £E OB RER  BER-NMKEIER  BEER L
Hospital, Xukuang Hospital and Huaibei City Mental Health, and also VEILTIAB (O IR) AR O - AR BT (52021
Huai'yin Hospital (since June 30, 2021). This segments also includes the F6HA30HE) - HHESHFELBREAREEEZERE
return on the Group's investments to Jing Mei Hospital and the Wugang Be B AN 8 B P SR E AT E S A9 WS -

Hospital Group.

In the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this RAREBEBEEINRENTIED  BEERDE
report, the segment results of self-owned hospitals do not include the ¥EHNTEUEBIRMAE AR ZRAREREE
impairment of approximately RMB213 million in respect of the long-term HHAARE21SBITHRE (BA—IRIERIER
investment in CR Wugang JV. Such impairment is one-off and non-cash in 21HE) -

nature.

2) |0T hospitals include: Mentougou Hospital, Mentougou Traditional Chinese  (2) IOTE T BE - FIsREE BT - PISEER P Bk - M
Medicine Hospital, Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children, Shunyi HERFBHRERT - IEREEEER  EEERE_5E
District Konggang Hospital, the Second Hospital of Shunyi District. B o

3) OT hospitals include: Yantai Zhifu Hospital, Yuenianhua Rehabilitation  (3) OTEREIE : BaZRER HWEEREBRLE

Hospital and Tai'an City Hospital (up to September 30, 2021).

i b (8 2202149A30H) ¢

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED AN

Financial data for Year 2020

2020 F B # 2 1%

Segment results
4E

2020

RMB'000

Self-owned
hospitals

BAER

|OT/OT & F%

10T/0T

hospitals businesses

HATEEH

Other derived ~ Administrative

expenses

Other gains
and expenses
H U as K
-

Revenue from goods and i MR W as

services 2,750,650 1,963,459 760,856 26,335 — —
Cost of sales and services  $5%& MR A (2,114,143) (1,527,682) (566,051) (20,410) — —
Other income Hipd A 29,189 14,075 9,588 5,526 — —
Other gains and losses H b ez K BB 356 356 — — — —
Selling and distribution HERDHER

expenses (14,201) (6,280) (7,921) — —
Administrative expenses THRER (201,821) (157,806) (33,641) (10,374) — —
Finance costs B 75 & A (2,444) (2,422) (22)
Impairment losses on CREERAEREFE

financial assets,net (20,178) (18,258) (1,920) — — —
Impairment losses on an HitEVEERERE

other intangible assets (3,588) — (3,588) —
Other expenses HEtER (7,392) (7.173) — (219) — —
Share of profit of joint FEhE %/ HE R

ventures/associates FE 35,119 1,072 34,047 — = =
Segment results DEBEE 451,547 259,341 191,370 836 N/AT & A N/ATEA
Headquarters operating BBEEER

expenses (121,943) = = = (121,943) =
Other profit or loss HihiB 103,679 = = = = 103,679
Finance costs % ER (14,947) = = = = (14,947)
Share of profit of e B 1 A F B

associates (151) = — — — (151)
Income tax FiEHt (97,864) = = = = (97,864)
Net profit or loss FER 320,321 259,341 191,370 836 (121,943) (9,283)
Revenue from medical BREBHRA

business 6,643,852 3,987,506 2,656,346 — N/AZ i N/AZ 38 B

ERBRERERAT T —FW® 17
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

In 2021, the aggregated results of all segments amounted
to about RMB632 million, which increased by approximately
39.9% as compared with the previous year, and such year-
on-year increase is mainly due to the rapid recovery of the
business operation of the member hospitals of the Group
when the impact of epidemic in China has been effectively
controlled, and the satisfactory business growth of the self-
owned hospitals as a whole during the Reporting Period.

Since August 30, 2021, the financial statements of
Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital,
Huaibei City Mental Health Center have been consolidated
into the Group's financial statements.

Xukuang Hospital and
Please find more

details in the section headed "“Business Review —
Consolidating certain hospitals” of this report. According to
the abovementioned changes in the consolidation

arrangement in our financial
Reporting Period, our financial results have been classified in
two segments which are Self-owned Hospitals and IOT/OT

Hospitals.

statements, during the

During the Reporting Period, the medical business revenue
of the self-owned hospital segment increased by 68.1%
year-on-year to approximately RMB6.7 billion, and the
segment results recorded an increase of 97.7% to
approximately RMB513 million, the growth
income of the self-owned hospitals is mainly due to the
improved operating efficiency of existing hospitals, and the
completion of the acquisitions of Jinan Zhongqi Hospital and
Huaiyin Hospital. The improvement in the segment results of
the self-owned hospitals segment was driven by the
improvement in operating efficiency of the hospitals due to
the further strengthening of the daily operation management
of them and their ability to cope with the new normal under
the epidemic during the Reporting Period.

in segment

2021 B EB Y HBIEEHHN A/ARKEG.32
Bor REFRELLIEME39.9% - BENIZ
FIERETEHNREIRNLTEBETEKEE
B B 48 & e (R B B R (B A T B TR R
g - MEBBBRAREBHAEERER
P RATE ©

E202148HA30RR ' ER = NIKFIER -
RIEERT RoEIL TS (L IR) eSO 2 B
BRERHFALEENFBERRA  FHELAX
WEEBOE — HR—RIER]BD -
FEL ERHRTHAE  REBHRDEE
BB A B ERMIOT/OTER IR »

WEHA BAEBR DN BEEBWAR
L3RR 68.1% ZHARMEG7IET - o #BFIHE
BRISRLIERIT TN EHNARBEE13ETT -
ETEEERDHBHKALERTIEANTE
ERCEMmE  MEBETKERES
Bl RERBRAGE - MEBL o Eauk
ABRISRIEIGR - MBE A BRALE RIF N
SZABERTFBEFEAIG M - EEE N mNK
EXTZHRMEMANE T INAKE B
AHEELER RAABHEBETHMBEN
BENFTE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWEDS N

CR Hospital Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the restructuring agreement with
Jing Mei Group in respect of Jing Mei Hospital and its
branches on June 28, 2020 and pursuant to which CR
Hospital Holdings and Jing Mei Group agreed to establish a
sponsorship joint venture and a management joint venture.
Such joint ventures shall be owned as to 49% by CR
Hospital Holdings and 51% by Jing Mei Group. The contract
parties also agreed that Jing Mei Group, the management
joint venture and Jing Mei Hospital shall enter into a new
10T
agreement in order to replace the latter, and pursuant to
which the management joint venture shall provide hospital
management services to the Jing Mei Hospital Group and
receive management fee income accordingly. The
abovementioned original 10T agreement was then
terminated with retrospective effect from December 31,

OT agreement on terms similar to the original

2019, whilst the new OT agreement retrospectively became
effective on January 1, 2020.

202056 A28H ' AEBE TEZEMBE R
AEHERIEREREEERIREEBRET
BobimBERELTHEETEARS  EF R
EREHBRIERMTESEE D RIFER49%
M51% MBI LA ERBEARMEEE
BAaE e MREEAERGE  FINFRERE
5H £EERATAIRREBRAELRRE
IOTHZEBBEARREFMHOOTHE - Wikt
HEEEERARIMRKERIEREREER
BIWRMERE Rz RIOTHHECEBHE
201912 A3V BRI - RIBBFHOTH =
BB E2020F 1 A1 HBER -

2021 2020 Year-on-Year Change
20214 20204 At &1t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 Percentage
Self-owned hospitals ARETIT ARBTT AR®ETT ERasd
Revenue from medical BEREEBBA
business 6,703,230 3,987,506 2,715,724 68.1%
General healthcare services #3& BERS
performance 137,941 72,271 65,670 90.9%
Hospital management BERERERBEE
services fees 53,269 47,889 5,380 11.2%
Third-party supply chain FE=-HHERE
service fees R & 181,082 108,683 72,399 66.6%
GPO gross profit GPOERH| 167,628 56,093 111,535 198.8%
Profit contribution FBER S5 539,920 284,936 254,984 89.5%
Profit contribution rate FEE R = 8.1% 71% 1ppt
Operating expenses and EEBAK
other profit or loss HEfbiEm (27,317) (25,595) (1,722) 6.7%
Segment results DEEE 512,603 259,341 253,262 97.7%
Segment results rate 7 B FI = 7.6% 6.5% 1.1ppt

ERBRERERLRA —T——FH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWEDSN
Segment Results — I0T/OT Hospitals DEBHELE — IOT/OTERR

The revenue from medical business of the IOT/OT hospital I0T/OT &t 5 A TR BA R HY B8 ZE RS U A
segment decreased by 40.9% when compared with the prior A1 —F Rt FFE40.9% © Mo BELER
year, while this segment recorded a YoY decrease of 35.4%  [f#35.4% ' = BE 7 /E BN EIARE
in its results, that is due to the reclassification of Jing Mei BRI E BB D ZBATE -

Hospital to the category of self-owned hospitals segment.

|OT/OT hospitals

2021 2020 Year-on-Year Change
20214 20205 Ei=4-Lie
IOT/OTZFx RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  Percentage
ARBTT ARETT ARBTE Rl

Revenue from medical BEREBKRA

business 1,569,049 2,656,346 (1,087,297) -40.9%
Hospital management EREEREE

services fees 33,500 65,058 (31,558) -48.5%
Third-party supply chain E=HHERE

service fees 5 & 54,356 71,603 (17,247) ~24.1%
GPO gross profit GPOE| 70,344 127,456 (57,112) -44.8%
Profit contribution FEERS 158,200 264,117 (105,917) -40.1%
Profit contribution rate FHERE 10.1% 9.9% 0.2ppt
Operating expenses and other &4 &M K& 2

profit or loss B (34,664) (72,747) 38,083 -52.4%
Segment results PIEE 123,536 191,370 (67,834) —35.4%
Segment profit margin 2 EBRER 7.9% 7.2% 0.7ppt

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The total operating expenses of the headquarters amounted
to approximately RMB139 million in 2021 (FY2020: RMB122
million), accounting for 29.6% of the total administrative
expenses of the Group (FY2020: 37.7%). During the period
in 2020,
government exemption for

local
its contributions to the
employees’ social insurance in a specific period of time.

of epidemic the Company received the

Since the Group did not have such an exemption in 2021,
its headquarters during the
Reporting Period recorded an increase as compared with the

the operating expenses of

previous year.

During the Reporting Period, other loss of the Group totaled
approximately RMB206 million (FY2020: profit of
RMB104 million). Other profit or loss includes the Group's
interest income, income from wealth management products
held, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairments
made pursuant to the relevant accounting standards by the
Group.

other

During the year, an one-off impairment (which is non-cash in
nature) of approximately RMB213 million has been made on
the Group’s long-term investment in CR Wugang JV. Since
Wuhan (Group) Corporation No. 2 Staff
Hospital, which is one of the sponsored hospitals under
such joint venture, incurred an operating loss during the
Reporting Period with the figure higher than the budget.
The Company engaged an independent valuer to conduct an
impairment test of such long-term equity investment item

Iron and Steel

accordingly. The independent valuer then issued a valuation
report with the factors including budgeted revenue, discount
rate and growth rate being considered, and the Group made
the above-mentioned impairment with reference to such
report. The said impairment resulted in the Group's
recording of a net loss for this accounting item during the
Reporting Period.

EEENWEDAN

20215 - BHELBRAEHHARKE1.39E
7L (2020 UF B - AR¥E1.221B7T) - (B
SE2EHITHE R BEM29.6% (202081 X
FE :37.7%) c BR2020F AEZIBFIBFRA
SEHXEINTERBRESHIEBT R
2021 FR|MmZIB R L - RS HAR
NEBEEEBRR E—FB—E/EM-

WEMR AEBZEMBBATHARKE
2.06E 7T (2020 M FE « b zm AR
1.04B70) - HttER B A EE M F B U
A FTRHEEYERMESNRATIERE
& UERASBERBER S ERELNRE
HE e

FAXRSEHEFRHES 2 AR RARER
BIEEOHNRARB 213 —RMERE
CGEREME) - REFAZAERE TEDN
Hp—x 8RR — e (88 A
AF_BIBRAREHANEL T SNEY
ML EE  ARRBEE LT HMmEZE
B ERERBETREES - BT EE
ERTRENRS  MREMEREZRERN
ATFHERE  ARB2EEENREES
BRETT EARELZH - WREFRE
HAKBERSHANIL &5HEB BREEE -

ERERERERAT —T-—FRF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

During the Reporting Period, the unallocated finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB15.32 million
(FY2020: RMB14.95 million). This was due to the increase in
the Group’s bank loan in relation to its acquisition project
and certain other arrangements.

The income tax recorded a credit figure of RMB155 million
(the income tax charge for 2020 was RMB98 million). The
credit figure of income tax item as recorded by the Group
during the Reporting Period was due to the reversal of
deferred tax liabilities of approximately RMB221 million and
RMB53 million, respectively, in relation to the derecognition
of sponsorship rights and service contracts resulting from
the consolidation of several hospitals in the third quarter of
the year and the impairment of the long-term investment in
the CR Wugang JV at the end of the year.

The Group recorded a net profit of RMB426 million, during
the Reporting Period representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 33%.

WEBRA AEEZRDEVBEREFL
ARE15328 T (20200 BHEFEE : AR
1,495&70)  TTHERFERX S REMTHE
BMAKB 2 RITERSERTEMATE -

REBSSAEHEINSER/RARK1.55E
7 (2020 F AFT1SH B A £ 5 A AR 9,800
B70) c MEHAREESREAERESBRIE
DHREAEEF=FEHERZREREHNEH
BIMERRE B ETBERERARFREE
BRMEERAFNRBKRERERED RE
EHARE2.211ETL R ARKES,300 8 THYIE
FEF B (E 8 B TR

AREERHEHARESFEFNBEAREL26E
7T [RIELEE N33 % e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The amendments to the respective constitutional documents
of the member medical institutions, which are sponsored by
our subsidiaries, have been completed pursuant to the
requirements under the ‘Guiding Opinions on the Pilot
Scheme for the Formulation of Hospital Constitutions’ jointly
issued by the National Health Commission and the National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine in May 2018,
the model template of public hospital constitution issued by
the National Health Commission in December 2019 and the
guidelines given by the respective local government
authorities. As such, the Group has therefore obtained the
practical capability to direct the relevant activities of such
medical institutes unilaterally and gained control over them,
and their financial statements have therefore gradually been
consolidated into the Group's financial statements in 2020
and 2021. Due to the above consolidation, the Group no
longer records any sponsorship rights and service contracts
related to such sponsored hospitals in the consolidated

statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021.

Management of the Company performed
reviews of goodwill annually or more frequently if events or

impairment

changes in circumstances indicated a potential impairment.
The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill relates were determined based on the
fair value under income approach less costs of disposal.
These calculations required the use of estimates and
professional judgements, and management of the Company
involved an external valuer in these calculations. Based on
the management’s assessment, no impairment was required

on the goodwill of the Group as at December 31, 2021.

EEENWEDAN

BRERRFERRZESNERPELEE
BE2018F5 AlA TR (ENFRE ST 5
RERANTIENEEER) BERELER
BELZEEMN2019F 12 A TEM AT BiREi2
A - LA RS T BAK B B RS P 7 H A9 48
BB EPIFT4 TS AASENRE R
BIFTER PRI B BB IRBE KT
AEREBIIE A&ERALE AEEBEBIE
BEBARERIEREEE MIEH B
BRERE N BEZ2UBREITE R
20204 k2021 F3E A 0F AR B R B 5 &
W o EfE L fFRLHE - AEBER20215F12
A3 BREGREMERRRE E T Eia R
BRZEERREBRABREERER -

ARRIEEESFHHBETRESE I
EAMEHHIBRE (A EEBETRNRE
AIEEMEESSEMEMmET - HERSE
BB E SR RS AR EE
TEEMAAEBERELEXNATEMS -
ERNEENGTETEEGNEEAE AR
AEE BB HEMETHEBTE - R
BEEEBHTE HE2021F12A31B A%
ErHEREFAERE-

ERERERERAT —T-—FRF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals, Investments in and
Receivables from Joint Venture(s) and
Subsequent Plans for Material Capital
Investments

The Board considers any single investment with fair value
accounting for more than 5% of the total assets of the
Group as significant investment. As the Group did not have
any single investment accounting for 5% or more of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2021, the
Group did not have any significant investments.

Investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings

UMP Healthcare Holdings, listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange (Stock code 722.HK), is mainly engaged in
providing healthcare solutions and service in Hong Kong.
Details of investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings have
been disclosed in the Company’'s annual reports in prior
years. Pursuant to the relevant accounting standards, the
Company has categorized the investment in UMP Healthcare
Holdings as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. As at December 31, 2021, the fair value of our
investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings was approximately
RMB65.3 million.

Future Plans for Material Investment or
Capital Assets

The Directors confirmed that, as at the date of this report,
there are currently no concrete plans to acquire any material
investment or capital assets other than those conducted in
the Group’s ordinary course of business.

EARE - WEBNHE  RRS
ERANREREBRSERTR
BEREBETEEAERERE

'/

EEeREMNAARBELGAEBREEESS
AERBIERERERINE - B E20215F12
A31H  AEEWEEREELREES% K
AEWBIERE  IASBEWESKEE -

HBRSBEEENRE
BABBEBATHIMER EMHAR (B
MRIE722.HK) - AR EEBIRHELEE
BHRMRS - BAREEBERERENKREH
BEEARBILATMFEREFHE - BIE
BAMEGER  ARREHBABKERK
BREDABURAAREBEFEEHEHT AR
FHEREE - R2021F128318 &1
HMEBBEEMSERENAABENAA
R#6,5308 7T °

AREAREREXREEE

EEMR - NARSE MY EER WS
TAEARENEAEE HBEASEAER
EHBEITERIN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The medical industry in China is generally large in scale with
high development potential. As patients crave for more
advanced medical technology and better consultation
experience, hospitals need to provide “more professional,
more effective and more economical” medical services. The
China Resources Group has been providing strong support to
CR Medical in light of the positive outlook of the medical
industry. During the first year of the 14th Five-Year plan,
after researches and review, CR Medical
formulated a clear development roadmap. We will remain
focused on our core business of provision of medical
services in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, Yangtze River
Delta and Greater
advantageous specialties and establishing academic specialty
hospital clusters. We will strive to develop regional leading
comprehensive hospitals and set up regional leading hospital
clusters. We will also strengthen boundary management
through reorganisation, member hospitals
through category authorisation and further enhance our
synergy with the China Resources Group. By providing
thoughtful services, we target to attract more patients to
our hospitals. We hope to achieve sustainable development
ecosystem and stable organic growth
through group management and efficient operation of the
value supply chain. We will also build up our competitive
advantages with the characteristics of China Resources
through a mature market mechanism and standardised
enterprise management. As an advocator of state-owned
hospital reform, we will take opportunities to acquire local
state-owned hospitals and inject high-quality medical
resources from the China Resources Group at opportune
times so as to realise external growth. With the corporate
“striving for public health”, CR Medical is
committed to becoming a leading healthcare group in China
as well as a pioneer in the reformation of the state-owned
healthcare industry.

numerous

Bay Area,

while strengthening our

revitalise our

of the medical

vision of

EEENWEDAN

HEBRTRERAERN ZERENS B
EBEREENBRERN BB E
B MERUEREIEEE FAM ¥
REINBERERY FEREEHBETEN
FHREH  UHEBRERREHEENE -
THAFRBZF EHBRERLBTEH N
7o fmEc BIET EAM B ER M -
BRABEFUNBERB /IR AU RZE
B R-ANMAERFEHEE  BEME
BEFER  ZRBMENEBLRE  EHER
B IR S BPRESE - Y RIS E S B AT
B BBAREERCERER EBOE
RERAKBBRNESN  WiE—FRSHE
EHEEERNGREME - BHAREEOE
BB ERY  WolEZMBENE - R
BEREELLERMEEEHERENSREE
2 BURBEEBERENARERRE
AEREE K » RIVBEBRAK T I5EH
ERBNERICEETEERRENGFE
2 ERBeBRMEARE  RAKIEE
WwHEEERNHERSE  TEERIEAE
BEANBEERER  INERRATH] - 3
EEERFAT /T KRREREINEERRE
i MO RERELHNERRFEEXSHE
METEREETRNFASRE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

We adopt a prudent treasury management policy to maintain
a solid and healthy financial position. The Group funds its
operations principally from cash generated from its
operations and also bank facilities. Its cash requirements
relate primarily to operating activities, business expansion,
repayment of liabilities as they become due, capital
expenditures, interest and dividend payments.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group's consolidated bank
balances and cash, certificate of deposit and bank financial
products amounted to approximately RMB3.23 billion in total
(December 31, 2020: approximately RMB3.09 billion) which
were primarily in RMB.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group has obtained offshore
revolving term loan facility of HK$4.1 billion (or its
equivalent in U.S. dollar or Renminbi). Among which, HK$3.0
billion of the facilities is with no fixed term until further
notice by the corresponding bank, whilst the remaining
HK$1.1 billion is of the term of one year which shall be
automatically renewed if the relevant bank does not notify
otherwise. As at December 31, 2021, the Group had
interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$933 million and
US$139 million (equivalent to approximately RMB1.65 billion
in total) (December 31, 2020: HK$799 million and RMB12
million (equivalent to approximately RMB684 million in
total)), and unutilized bank facilities of HK$2.09 billion
(equivalent to approximately RMB1.71 billion). As at
December 31, 2021, the Group's offshore bank borrowings
carried interests at floating rates and they would be due
within one year.

As at December 31, 2021, on the basis of interest-bearing
liabilities (excluding payables to hospitals sponsored by the
Group) divided by total assets, the Group’s gearing ratio
was 15.9% (December 31, 2020: 7.6%). In addition, the
carrying value of each of our wealth management products
as at December 31, 2021 did not exceed 5% of the Group’s
total asset value.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in
foreign currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk, mainly pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in
the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against RMB.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management
risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considers

manages the currency

hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

We are also exposed to risk of talent shortage, so we have
been taking an active approach to attract, train and retain
sufficient qualified doctors, management personnel and other
medical staff members, otherwise the business of hospitals
affiliated to the Group would be affected to some degree.
Please refer to the paragraph headed
Discussion and Analysis — Employees and Remuneration
Policy” of this report for those measures mentioned above.

“Management

We also recognise that our relationship with patients and
partners is key to the resilient development of the Group.
We strive to provide qualified services and medical staffs
with extensive experiences to our patients. By leveraging on
sophisticated medical skills and equipment, we try our best
to cater to our patients’ needs for medical treatments. We
also cooperate with our partners to achieve the sustainable
development of our business.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities or guarantees that would have a
material impact on the financial position or operations of the
Group.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any
material pledge of assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

On February 14, 2022, Unison Champ (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and the general partner (the

“General Partner”) of CMH Healthcare Fund, L.P. (the
“CMH Fund”) entered into a letter agreement (the
“Withdrawal Letter”), pursuant to which Unison Champ

requested the General Partner to consent to its withdrawal
as a limited partner of the CMH Fund (the “Limited
Partner”) in whole from the CMH Fund (the “Withdrawal")
and cancellation of its entire interests in the CMH Fund (the
“Cancellation of Interests”) and the General Partner has
given its consent to the Withdrawal and the Cancellation of
Interests. With effect from the date of the Withdrawal
Letter: (i) the General Partner will effectuate the Withdrawal
and the Cancellation of Interests pursuant to the relevant
clause as set out in the corresponding limited partner
agreement; (i) Unison Champ will cease to be a Limited
Partner and will no longer be entitled to any rights of a
Limited Partner under the limited partner agreement; and (iii)
the General Partner will have no claims or rights of
whatsoever kind against Unison Champ, and not make
further drawdowns from Unison Champ. The CMH Fund has
not made any investment, and accordingly, no distribution
and/or other proceeds has been made or distributed to its
investors. As of the date of the Withdrawal Letter, other
than the debts and liabilities already incurred and owed by
the CMH Fund to third party service providers and agents,
there is no unliquidated debts and liabilities of the CMH
Fund. Pursuant to the Withdrawal Letter, Unison Champ
shall not be liable to any expenses, costs or fees incurred
exceeding its capital contribution in accordance with the
proportion of capital commitment to the CMH Fund
amounted to US$617,933. Unison Champ’'s capital
contribution which has not been used in the amount of
US$45,091 (the “Contribution to be returned”) will be
returned by the General Partner to Unison Champ within 30
days upon the date of the Withdrawal Letter (which has
already been settled as at the date of this report). Except
for the amount of the Contribution to be returned, there is
no other distribution or payment due and payable by the
CMH Fund to Unison Champ and no other liabilities and
obligations owed to the Unison Champ by the CMH Fund,
and Unison Champ is not entitled to any other payment
from the assets of the CMH Fund in respect of the
Withdrawal and/or the Cancellation of Interests. Please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated February 14,
2022 for further details of the abovementioned
arrangement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 8,454
fulltime employees (December 31, 2020: 4,903 employees).
For FY2021, the staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration
in the form of salaries and other benefits) was
approximately RMB1.18 billion (FY2020: RMB685 million).
The increase in number of staff as well as the
corresponding staff cost was mainly due to the acquisition
and/or consolidation of certain hospitals during the year.

The Group ensured that the remuneration packages of
employees remain competitive and the remuneration level of
its employees was determined on the basis of performance
with reference to the profitability of the Group, industry
remuneration standards and market conditions within the
general framework of the Group's remuneration system. The
Group has also adopted the Share Option Scheme and the
Share Award Scheme so as to provide incentives or rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

In Hong Kong, the Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
"MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The employees of the Group's
subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government (together with the MPF Scheme, the
"Defined Contribution Schemes”). These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme. The Group's employer contributions to the Defined
Contribution Schemes vest fully and immediately with the
employees when contributed into the schemes. Accordingly,
(i) for each of the two years ended December 31, 2021,
there was no forfeiture of contributions under the Defined
Contribution Schemes; and (i) there were no forfeited
contributions available for the Group to reduce its existing
level of contributions to the Defined Contribution Schemes
as at December 31, 2021.

For the latest developments of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement
Dispute, please refer to the section headed "Directors’
Report — Yan Hua IOT Agreement Dispute” to this report.
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is mainly engaged in the provision of general healthcare
hospital management services, and also group
purchasing organisation (i.e. “"GPO")
derived business from hospitals in Mainland China. Details of
the principal activities of the Company’'s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 50 to the consolidated

services,
business and other

financial statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties being faced by the
Group, as well as the business outlook of the Group
(including key performance indicators of future development
of the Group) are provided in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 10 to 29 of this annual report.
Relevant discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance for
the year ended December 31, 2021 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the paragraph headed “Segment Results” under the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
18 to 20 and in the paragraph headed “Financial Review”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 26 to 27 of this annual report.

Significant events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report, if any, are set out in the paragraph
headed “Subsequent Events” on page 28 of this annual
report.
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As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes the
importance of good environmental stewardship. In this
connection, the Group has strictly adopted and implemented
policies and procedures to conduct environmental protection
work on a standard which is not less stringent than the
prevailing environmental laws and regulations of the PRC.
We believe that we were in compliance with all relevant
PRC laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
in all material respects during the year ended December 31,
2021 and as at the date of this Directors’
environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative

Report. No
sanctions were reported to our management.

The Group has formulated the “Hazardous Substances
Safety Management Plan” ((EEWEZ 2 EE512])) and the
“Medical Waste Management System” ({EEZEEEYE 12§
J£)) for all hospitals according to the relevant requirements
of the "“Environmental Protection Law of the People's
Republic of China” ((FZEARHEMEIIRIF(REE)). The above
systems focus on the management of hazardous substances
(containing hazardous chemicals and medical waste),
including storage location, container labelling, protection,
leakage handling and disposal in use. Hospitals conduct
supervisions and inspections mainly on storage and labelling
on hazardous chemicals and conclude the analysis results on
a quarterly basis. As required by the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation” ({1 Z A 4L H1
B &4 & JR)%)), the Group formulated the “Optimization
System of Resource Decision” ((ERAFRERFIE)), which
focuses on the management of resource decision-making
process and specifies the requirements on the quality,
reasonable allocation and use of newly procured resources.
The Group monitors the outcome of such decision upon its
implementation, and assesses the effectiveness and safety
by using relevant information and makes further decision so
as to ensure the effective implementation of the above
policies.
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Meanwhile, the Group has formulated the “Utilities Safety
Management Plan” ({(RR&EELEE R E])), “Safety and
Protection Management Plan” ((Z2#EETE])) and
“Medical Technology Safety Management Plan” (& & : i
ZEE 5 28l)), and passed the “Facility Safety
Management Plan” ((&iEZ2EETE])) to ensure the
effective implementation of the above plans. The Group has
formulated the “Radiation Safety Management Plan” ({H &}
Z2E1#51El)) and “Radiation Emergency Plan” (#8571 &=
f82)) for all hospitals, which focuses on the management
of radiation safety and specifies the requirements on all
radiation equipment, protection and radiation-related waste
treatment. Every year, qualified testing and rating agencies
are engaged to monitor the radiation level of all radiological
equipment and workplaces in the hospitals. Moreover, the
hospitals carry out drills against radiation accidents and
evaluate and conclude the responsiveness.

Details of the Group’s environmental, social and governance
measures will in the Group’s annual
sustainability report, be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company by May
31, 2022.

be covered
which  will

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief as at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable
while balancing the interests of our
stakeholders Substantial Shareholders,
employees, patients, customers, suppliers, business partners

and the community.

manner various

including our

An account of the Group’s relationship with its Substantial
Shareholders is included in the "Interests of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and Underlying

Shares” set out on pages 47 to 48 of this annual report.
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The Group considers its employees as the key to
sustainable business growth. We are committed to providing
all employees a safe and harassment-free working
environment with equal opportunities in relation to
employment, remuneration management, training and career
development. incorporated

Corporate Responsibility Policy and Employment Policy.

This commitment is in our
Workplace safety is a priority of the Group that, with due
awareness of all employees throughout the year, the Group
was able to maintain a high standard of health and safety
measures in all company activities. We have in place a fair
and effective performance appraisal system and incentive
bonus schemes that are designed to motivate and reward
employees at all levels, which helps to deliver their best
performance and achieve business performance targets. For
talent acquisition and continuous development, the Group
offers training programs as well as leadership and talent
development programs for talents with different academic
backgrounds. The Group believes that direct and effective
communication is essential for good partnership built-up
between management and employees. The Group holds
regular
Company developments and obtain their feedbacks and

meetings and forums to brief employees on
suggestions.
As a patient-oriented healthcare services provider, we

patients as one of the most important
stakeholders. We are committed to serving our patients to

consider

the best of our ability and continually enhancing the level of
service excellence. The Group has embraced new media
platforms as an effective communication channel with our
patients to collect feedbacks and help us identify areas for
further improvement.

The Group is committed to upholding the highest ethical and
professional standards when dealing with suppliers and
contractors. To integrate CSR principles throughout our GPO
business, the Group has implemented the Group Purchasing
Policy and Principles, and a Supplier Code of Conduct to
facilitate a common means whereby we can better
communicate with our business partners regarding their
compliance with local regulations governing labor, health and
safety, and the environment. In order to have a better and
close monitoring of supplier performance, our procurement
department conduct supplier performance review annually
targeting our major suppliers and contractors, and will
communicate with the suppliers that have unsatisfactory
rating for rectification or improvements.
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The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income on pages 106 to 107 of this annual report.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of 12 HK cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB9.8 cents) per Share for
FY2021 (FY2020: final dividend: 8.82 HK cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB7.4 cents)). The proposed final dividend
will be payable to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on June 13, 2022
(Monday). Based on the number of Shares in issue of the
Company as of December 31, 2021, the total amount of
final dividends is approximately HK$156 million. Subject to
the approval by Shareholders at the annual general meeting
to be held on June 2, 2022 (Thursday), it is expected that
the final dividend will be distributed on or before July 19,
2022 (Tuesday).

The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

According to the dividend policy of the Group, subject to
compliance with applicable rules and regulations (including
Cayman Islands laws) and the articles of association of the
Company, pay dividend to the
Shareholders when the Group recorded net profit during the
period and payment of dividend would not affect its normal
operation. The Company intends to share its profits with
in the form of annual dividend and the
be used for the Group's

the Company will

Shareholders
remaining net profits will
development and operations.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the general financial condition of the
Group, the Group's current and future operations, liquidity
position and capital requirement of the Group as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries. The
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws and articles
of association of the Company.
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The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time
to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group
for the year ended December 31,
38 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

2021 are set out in note

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2021
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 110
and 111 of this annual report.

are set out in the

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or
Shareholders subject to the provisions of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

dividends to

As at December 31, 2021, the Company’s share premium
amounted to RMB5,785,472,000 (as at December 31, 2020:
RMB5,877,796,000), subject to a solvency test, is available
for distribution to the Shareholders.

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year ended December 31, 2021 are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and

non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five

financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
is set out on page 274 of this annual report.

This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements,

statements.
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Details of the borrowings of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2021 in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

are set out

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended December 31,
2021.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 18.1% (2020: 24.2%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 9.3% (2020: 13.2%) of the total sales.
Purchases from the Group’'s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 19.1% (2020: 19.5%)
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 5.1% (2020:
5.9%) of the total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the
Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any direct or indirect interest in
the five largest customers or the five largest suppliers of
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2021.
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The articles of association of the Company provides that
every Director of the Company should be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director, in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favor, or in which

he is acquitted.

The Company maintains a directors’ liability insurance policy
against potential legal liabilities and related expenses that
may be incurred by the Directors in the event of any
litigation.

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2021
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report are as follows:

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Shan Baojie (Appointed on December 30, 20217)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President, resigned as a director on
December 30, 2021)

Mr. Wang Yan (Resigned on August 25, 2021)

Mr. Shan Baojie (Appointed as a non-executive director on
August 25, 2021 and redesignated as an executive
director on December 30, 2021)

Mr. Hu Hui (Appointed on December 30, 2021)

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with one another.
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The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 88 to
97 of this annual report. Save as disclosed, there are no
other changes to the Directors’ information as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the service agreements/letters of appointment of
the Directors can be terminated by either party giving to the
other party not less than one month notice in writing.

Pursuant to the letters of appointment, each of Mr. Wu Ting
Yuk Anthony, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, Mr. Lee Kar Chung
Felix and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy is entitled to an annual
director’s fee of HK$300,000.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into or
intends to enter into a service contract with any member of
our Group which is not terminable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than the
statutory compensation).

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and remuneration
payable to members of senior management by band are set
out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.
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FHRFEBEITENEZLSREEAR | —
fe-BREBEEIN BMERELTHRISE
BEIBMEATARENEMEZTENE
) o

BNEEZRBWE/ ZEEHUERMS
—HBEEAIR—ERNEEELBATIA
Rk -

REBEZEE  HEMBEE  BEOLEE  F
RIS N2 B+ 5 5= H300,00078
JC °©

BERNEERRBFAS LEEETNE
FCEAEBERMKE AR LHITERT L
BEETNEES OEERERIN) BTF
R—FARIENRBER -

EERAEERURSHALTHOMEARIR
HEZHDENGREEEXEHFHMNFIEH
RARFE R B M BEHRARME 10 KM TED

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021



The remuneration of the Directors is subject to review of
the Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board,
such remuneration is determined by taking into account of
the relevant Director’'s experience, responsibilities, workload
and time commitment to the Group and the operating
results of the Group and comparable market statistics.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company believes that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Mr. Song Qing is a director and the chairman of the board
of CR Healthcare (the controlling shareholder of the
Company), Mr. Cheng Libing is a director and the vice-
chairman of the board of CR Healthcare, and Mr. Shan
Baojie is the vice general manager of CR Healthcare. CR
Healthcare is committed to the long-term development of
China’'s medical and healthcare services, actively participates
in China’'s medical system reform, and proactively explores
and involves in the investment, operation and management
of hospitals and healthcare industries in the PRC. In addition
to being the single largest shareholder of the Company, CR
Healthcare also operates and manages a number of medical
institutions in certain provinces of China including Liaoning,
Jiangxi, Yunnan and Guangdong and Guangxi, etc.

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, as of December
31, 2021, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any
business which competes or
business of the Group.

may compete with the
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or its Associated Corporations

As of December 31, 2021, the interests/short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares of the
Company

Capacity/ Long position/

Name of Director Nature of interest short position

Ry e

50/ HmtE

R/ KR

Song Qing Beneficial owner Long position
N EnEaA TRE
Cheng Libing Beneficial owner Long position
D AvE=S EREAA Sy}
Ren Yuan Beneficial owner Long position
iz EnEEA e
Wu Ting Yuk, Beneficial owner Long position
Anthony
HAE 1B EnEEA e

Note: This includes also the long positions of the Award Shares, which have been
declared to be granted by the Company to the corresponding Directors on
August 31, 2018 and a portion of which has been vested.

EERBEITBRAERAQAE
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RIRESTRIZB A S AN R &) KB P 2 (4
W/ KRBT

RAERTRBINER

Number of Approximate

ordinary shares percentage of

(Note) shareholding
TR RN BB

(fizE) FRBAOB S

%

400,000 0.03

1,774,746 0.14

300,000 0.02

1,000,000 0.08

Hr EPRAREAQAN2018F8A3THESE FHEE
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2021, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31,

of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option
Scheme as of September 30, 2013.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
incentivize or reward the Eligible Participants (defined
below) for their contribution or potential contribution to

the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, the Board
may grant options to any full-time or part-time
employees, potential employees,
consultants, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at its sole

consultants or

discretion and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or will contribute to our
Group (collectively “Eligible Participants”).
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The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from September 30, 2013,
after which time no further option will be granted but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force, and effective in all other respects
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto and other rights as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme and options granted prior
thereto but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 83,376,300 Shares, being 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date (with the over-allotment option fully
exercised), which is also the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme as
at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue.
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An offer of a grant shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant for a period of 14 days from
the date of offer, provided that no such offer shall be
open for acceptance after the expiry of the effective
period of the Share Option Scheme. An option shall be
deemed as has been granted to (subject to certain
restrictions in the Share Option Scheme), and accepted
by, the Eligible Participant (the “Grantee”) and taken
effect upon the issuance of an exercise notice, if the
Company receives a copy of the offer document
(including the document for the acceptance of share
option) duly signed by the grantee (the "Offer
Document”), together with a remittance in favor of our
Company in the amount of HK$1.00 in consideration
for the granting of the option on or before the last
date for acceptance. The remittance is not refundable
under any circumstances and shall be deemed as
payment of part of the exercise price. Once accepted,
the option is taken as granted from the date of offer
to the relevant Grantee.

There is no general requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised. The period during which an option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (the "Option Period”) shall be the
period of time to be notified by our Board to each
Grantee as determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that such period shall not exceed 10
years from the commencement date of the vesting
period as stated in the respective Grantee's Offer
Document.
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The price per share for subscription by a Grantee
pursuant to the exercise of share options (the
"Exercise Price”) shall be determined by the Board,
but in any event shall not be lower than the highest
of:

()  the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
on the date an option is offered (the "Offer
Date”);

(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, no share
option had been granted, exercised, expired, cancelled
or lapsed and there is no outstanding share option
under the Share Option Scheme. The remaining life of
the Share Option Scheme is 1 year and 6 months.

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme as a
means to recognise the contribution of and provide
incentives for the key management personnel including
Directors and senior management, employed experts and
core employees of the Group. The Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 vyears
commencing from July 7, 2014 (the "Adoption Date"”) on
which the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme and is
administrated by the Board and the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme.
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In order to provide more flexibility in the administration and
implementation of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
resolved on May 25, 2015 to make amendments to the
terms of the Share Award Scheme and the scheme rules,
having retrospective effect from the Adoption Date, to the
effect that the Board may, from time to time, in its absolute
discretion, determine if the Award Shares shall be granted
to a Selected Participant with or without payment of a price
per Award Share payable by the Selected Participant (the
"Grant Price”) which shall be notified by the Board to each
Selected Participant. In determining whether the Selected
Participant shall pay a Grant Price for the Award Shares and
the amount of the Grant Price, as the case may be, the
Board shall take into consideration matters, including but not
limited to the Selected Participant’'s position, experience,
years of service, performance and contribution to the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or associated entities.

The Board also resolved on August 31, 2018 to make
further amendments to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme to the effect that the maximum number of the
Award Shares, which have been and to be awarded by the
Board throughout the duration of the scheme, to be revised
to 5% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company as at the date of the abovementioned resolution
and the maximum number of the Award Shares to each of
the Selected Participants to be revised to 1% of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of the
abovementioned resolution.

The Board will implement the Share Award Scheme in
accordance with the scheme rules. The Company shall
comply with the relevant Listing Rules when granting the
Award Shares.

Since the Adoption Date of Share Award Scheme and up to
December 31, 2021, an aggregate of 32,212,216 Award
Shares have been granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme subject to certain vesting criteria and conditions.

As of December 31, 2021, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or
were deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest

PR & 7 0/ fEmtE

China Resources Company Interest of a controlled

Limited corporation
FEZERHFRAA REAE R
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Interest of a controlled

Group, Inc. corporation
—ZBBemEE LB R

L: Long position
Notes:

1. (1) 463,681,516 of these shares are directly held by CRH (Medical) Limited.
CRH (Medical) Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited. China Resources Healthcare Group Limited is wholly
owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited. CRH (Healthcare) Limited is wholly
owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited is wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited.
CRC Bluesky Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Inc., which is
wholly owned by China Resources Company Limited; and (2) 10,638,000
of these shares are directly held by Commotra Company Limited which is

wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.

2. Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. is the sole shareholder of Mitsubishi
UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation whilst the latter is directly holding the
entire shareholding interest in Carol Australia Holdings Pty Limited. Carol
Australia Holdings Pty Limited (via its wholly-owned subsidiary First State
Investment Managers (Asia) Limited) held the entire interest in First State
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited and the latter directly held 77,645,666

Shares (representing 5.98% of the issued shares of the Company).

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2021, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding
ARG E A HRBAB ST
%

474,319,5616(L)" 36.58

77,645,666(L)? 5.98
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Save as the details as set out in the paragraphs headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or its Associated Corporations”, “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, at no time during the year ended December 31,
2021 has any right to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate been granted to Directors or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, and
none of any such right has been exercised by them; and
none of the Company and any of its subsidiaries has been a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

On June 25, 2021, Beijing Yisheng Yongxin Medical
Equipment Co., Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), as vendor, and the Nanning Yuenianhua
Rehabilitation Hospital entered into the medical equipment
procurement agreement, pursuant to which, the former shall
sell various medical equipment to the hospital for
RMB13,374,600 (value-added tax inclusive).

CR Holdings is the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Land is a subsidiary of CR Holdings; while the
Nanning Yuenianhua Rehabilitation Hospital is a subsidiary of
CR Land, it is therefore a connected person of the
Company.

On November 17, 2021, Wugang Hospital under the Group
and Runjia Property Service (Wuhan) Co. Ltd. (@ wholly-
owned subsidiary of CR Mixc) (as service provider) entered
into a property services agreement, pursuant to which the
latter shall provide property management services, including
cleaning, security and fire safety control, to Wugang
Hospital for a term of one year at a fee of approximately
RMB5.5 million (value added tax inclusive).
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CR Holdings is the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Mixc is a subsidiary of CR Holdings; while Runjia
Property Service (Wuhan) Co. Ltd. is a subsidiary of CR
Mixc, it is therefore a connected person of the Company.

The Company and CR Holdings entered into the
pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables
supply framework agreement on November 7, 2019 (the
“CR PMM Framework Agreement”). Pursuant to the CR
PMM Framework Agreement, CR Holdings may, through its
subsidiaries, supply PMM items to the Group and its
sponsored hospitals from time to time. The Group and its
sponsored hospitals may place purchase orders for PMM
items with CR Holdings or its subsidiaries from time to time
and CR Holdings or its subsidiaries may sell the products to
the Group and its sponsored hospitals at a price in
accordance with the agreed pricing policy. The details of
each purchase order, including price, payment terms and
delivery arrangement, are to be separately agreed in
accordance with the principles laid down in the CR PMM
Framework Agreement. The annual caps for the purchase of
PMM items under the CR PMM Framework Agreement for
the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2021 and the
financial year ending December 31, 2022 are RMB1.00
billion, RMB1.14 billion and RMB1.40 billion, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the amount of
the purchase orders under the CR PMM Framework
Agreement paid/payable by the Group was RMB396 million.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of the Company.
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(RE)ERAFAREHEREAZNBAT
BMRARRRZBAEANL -

MR2019F 11 A78 » A R EEFEEF L
e BEEMMEREM HEIERDZ
((EHEmER BEERRBEAREMER
&)  BEEHEELER  BESMLE
RREMIERG S  EHEE T RBEREN
BRaRAEBR AR EELR - B
BEEMEEREMIER - AEE R HERHHE
Bt A] 71~ BF ) 2 R & [ ol EL BT B R B B ) g
M EESMEERAEMIEEMNEERE
MEREESEMNBARAIRETEBHRE
ErTHNERRASBERERRERHEEE
m o SEEREMNFS (BEER - IHER
DRI ZE) BIREEREEES BES
WMEkBRABEMERBZPHENRANSITE
EoEHEEER BESBLEBAREMIE
B ETE TR EE2021F12A31H 2 M 1A
B EE A REE2022F12 A31 8 1L BT
FERBHED BEXRMLEAEMIEEDN
KEFFELERDNAAREI0ETL AR
B ABTRAREI14BTT -

HE2021F12A3MBIEFE - AEERIE
EREESS  EERWNAEREMIERR
HEN EMIREESEAARK3.6(E

7TE°

EHEBMABADTNERRERBEAL -

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021



The Company and CR Bank entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement (the "“CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”) on November 7, 2019. Pursuant
to the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Group
and its sponsored hospitals may place deposits with CR
Bank and use other financial services and products of CR
Bank, including (but not limited to) the provision of letters of
credit, guarantee, loans with collaterals, bill of exchange and
discount services, assignment of receivables, RMB and
foreign exchange settlement, entrusted loans and collaterals,
financial and cash management services, financial advisory
services and other financial services and products as agreed
by the parties.

The Company and CR Trust entered into a strategic
(the "CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”) on November 7, 2019. Pursuant
to the CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Group
and its sponsored hospitals may use the services and
products provided by CR Trust, including (but not limited to)
cash management, asset management, custodian trust loan
services, assignment of receivables, advisory services in

cooperation agreement

relation to redemptory monetary capital for sale, and other
financial or trust services and products as agreed by the
parties.
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The annual caps under CR Bank Strategic Cooperation IZRRERHIRITERS A 1B & MBS TER
Agreement & CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement for & {EH=E FNE £20229F12A318 1t =@
the three financial years ending December 31, 2022 are set MBEE 2 FE LRFHFIMT

out as follows:

For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ending
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 YAVVA 2022
B E20206F BE20214 BE20226F
12H31H 12H31H 12H318
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AREBET) (AREBET) (AREBET)
Maximum daily deposit FHREBRTT 400 400 400
amount placed with HEAZRT
CR Bank (inclusive of REB(BE
interest receivable) Mol FE WA B
Maximum daily principal BHREHRTR 400 400 400
amount and interest in ERETHT
relation to financial PATR (10 & R
products to be provided EnfEAK
by CR Bank and CR BAEEER
Trust Motel R )
Maximum service fees and  ZEHIRTT K EH 8 8 8
commissions for other E5EH8 FLALR
financial products and TRt
services to be provided Em R R R
by CR Bank and CR mmRBER
Trust ik
Note: The above maximum daily deposit amount or daily principal amount and 3 : LillEARSGERLBENEALALLELANEER
interest is applicable for each day during the relevant period, and is REEBEENE—H  WIRESAERENHBEZ —
calculated on an individual basis remaining as of the end of each day, e BTHEHpI—BAEENSHEAHITE -

without aggregating the amount incurred on the days before.

In 2021, the actual highest amount of the Group and the 20214 @ NEBLERERETBERES
Sponsored Hospitals’ daily deposit balance (inclusive of (BIEEUWHIE) MABERFRITE FIRED
interest receivable) and daily principal amount and interest in £ RIELHNEBEALSELNEEE SRS S
relation to financial products to be provided by CR Bank ZEDRIAAREI4ETLEARKOLET -
amounted to RMB334 million and RMB50 million, #20214 @ BEFEHFETIRENEMGESRE
respectively. In 2021, the service fees and commissions for FMEBRENRBERALAZ -

other financial products and services provided by CR Bank

were nil.
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In 2021, the Group and the Sponsored Hospitals did not
have any balance of financial products provided by CR Trust.
In 2021, the service fees and commissions for other
financial products and services provided by CR Trust were
nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Bank and CR are subsidiaries of CR Holdings,
therefore both of them are connected persons of the
Company.

CR Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement

The Company and CR Leasing entered into a cooperation
agreement on November 7, 2019 (the “Finance Lease
Cooperation Agreement”), and pursuant to which the
Group may use general finance lease services (“Finance
Lease Services"”), factoring services and related consultancy
services ("Other Financial Services”) provided by CR
Leasing. The annual caps for certain services under the
Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement for the three financial
years ending December 31, 2022 are as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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R20215F - NREE R BRI EEATHE
BEFERMA S RE MRS ° 1020214
BEREBERE‘RNEMDSRE R MR

EHEBAANRRZERR - mERHRT
MEREFER/EBEEZMBE AR ®INME
RARBZBBEAL -

EHHEHESIFlZ

R2019F 1M A7H - ARREFEBPBEER L
Az ((MEHRESERSE]) MAEE]
Bt REBEEREN — R EHERS
((MERERK]) mERERY MAABE
ARG (RS mRE ) - mEHESER
EIETNEE2022F12A31B =AM K F
ERBERFELRAT :

The maximum aggregate MEHRERY 200 200 200
amount of the general R= B
finance lease services
Maximum commission and/  EtE S R 13 13 13
or service fees in relation HBENEE
to general finance lease %/ SRBE
services
Maximum commission and/ £ fth & gt R 7% 28 28 28
or service fees for HENEE
factoring services and %/ kiR B
related consultancy
services
ERBEERERAT —T - —F4

For the

year ended
December 31,
2020

H %2020
12A31H
(RMB million)
(ANREBET)

For the

year ended
December 31,
2021
BZ=20214F
12A31H
(RMB million)
(NREBRET)

For the

year ending
December 31,
2022
BZ=2022%F
12A31H
(RMB million)
(NREBRET)
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The commission and/or services fees to be paid by the
Company to CR Leasing in relation to the Finance Lease
Services and Other Financial Services to be provided under
the Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement should be
determined at arm’s length negotiation between the parties
with reference to the prevailing market prices for
comparable services, after taking into account various
factors, such as finance costs and normal market rate. Such
commission and/or services fees shall not be less favourable
than those offered for other independent customers by CR

Leasing.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, (i) the aggregate
amount of Finance Lease Services of RMB6 million was
utilised by the Group; (i) the commission and/or service
fees in relation to Finance Lease Services were nil; and (iii)
the commission and/or service fees in relation to Other
Financial Services were nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Leasing, as a subsidiary of CR Holdings, is therefore
a connected person of the Company.

On September 17, 2020, the Company and CR
Pharmaceutical (“together with its subsidiaries, the "“CR
Pharmaceutical Group”) entered
framework agreement (the "“Supply Chain Cooperation
Framework Agreement”) and pursuant to which the Group
shall Group Supply Chain
Management Services of medical supplies in relation to
establishment of regional platforms and streamlining of
supply chain management procedures in order to improve
the efficiency of supply chain management of medical
supplies of CR Pharmaceutical Group and reduce the
corresponding costs. The Group shall receive management
Group for the

into the cooperation

provide CR Pharmaceutical

service fees from CR Pharmaceutical
abovementioned services.
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The annual caps
Framework Agreement for the two financial years ended
December 31, 2021 and the financial year ending December
31, 2022 are RMB30 million, RMB50 million and RMB70

million, respectively.

under the Supply Chain Cooperation

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the amount of
management service fee income under the Supply Chain
Cooperation Framework Agreement receivable by the Group
was nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Pharmaceutical, as a subsidiary of CR Holdings, is
therefore a connected person of the Company.

On March 12, 2021, Hubei Runkang Healthcare
Management Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Runkang”, an
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Shenzhen
Runtou Consulting Co., Ltd.
Consulting”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Land) entered into the Hospital Management Agreement and
pursuant to which Shenzhen Runtou Consulting (as the
principal) shall appoint Hubei Runkang as the manager to
provide comprehensive operation and management services
for the Yuenianhua Rehabilitation (the
“Rehabilitation Hospital”) which include the introduction of
management and operation systems by Hubei Runkang,
building management team of the hospital, and the
introduction of various resources such as hospital brand and
medical technology. It shall also rely on the medical and
technical
disciplines of the Rehabilitation Hospital. The term shall
commence from March 12, 2021 to December 31, 2023
(both dates inclusive), a period of approximately 2 years and
10 months. Under the same terms, priority shall be given to
the Group to renew the Hospital Management Agreement.
During the preparation period, Hubei Runkang shall charge a
fixed monthly fee of RMB450,000 which should be settled
by Shenzhen Runtou Consulting by the 11th date of the
next month. If it is less than one month, such fee shall be
charged on a pro rata basis. The first installment of such fee
should be paid on or before 5 working days from the
effective date of the Hospital
Starting from the official opening of the Rehabilitation
Hospital, the service fee shall then be settled by the

indirect

(“"Shenzhen Runtou

Hospital

resources of the Group

in enhancing various

Management Agreement.
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Rehabilitation Hospital itself. The service fee comprises
three components: (1) the fixed fee of RMB3.5 million per
annum; (2) the income related fee which is equivalent to
6% of the target income of Rehabilitation Hospitals, and
adjusted by a certain percentage according to the deviation
from the target (there could be wupward or
downward adjustments); and (3) the operating profit related
caps in
contemplated under the Hospital Management Agreement
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 and the two
fiscal years ended December 31, 2023 are RMB5,050,000,
RMB9,400,000 and RMB17,230,000, respectively. During the
year ended December 31, 2021, the transaction amount

income

fee. The annual respect of transactions

under the mentioned agreement was RMB4 million.

CR Holdings is the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Land is a subsidiary of CR Holdings;
Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Hospital is a subsidiary of CR
Land, it is therefore a connected person of the Company.

while

On November 22, 2021, China Resources Hospital
Management & Consulting Co. Ltd. (“CR Hospital
Management”, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Resolink Software System (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.
("Resolink Software”, a wholly owned subsidiary of CR
Holdings) (with Resolink Software representing the Resolink
Companies (i.e. Resolink Software, Guangdong Resolink
Information Technology Co. Ltd., Resolink Smart Technology
(Xi'an) Co. Ltd. and their subsidiaries), and all of them as
service providers) entered into the Information Technology
Services Framework Agreement (for the term from the date
of the agreement to December 31, 2022). The Resolink
Companies shall provide the relevant information technology
services to the Group and its sponsored hospitals pursuant
to the Information Technology Services Framework
Agreement. The Resolink Companies shall provide
information technology services to the Group and its
Sponsored Hospitals during the term of the agreement,
including information technology operation and maintenance
services and information technology service for specific
projects. The Group and its Sponsored Hospitals shall pay
service fees to the corresponding Resolink Companies for
the information technology services based on the pricing of
each specific service as agreed by both parties. The service
fees shall be calculated by multiplying the actual volume of
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services with the unit price of the corresponding services.
The corresponding annual information
technology services as provided by the Resolink Companies

to the Group and its sponsored hospitals (including the

caps of the

services to be provided under the Information Technology
Services Framework Agreement since the signing date) for
the two vyears ending December 31, 2022 are
RMB4,000,000 and RMB10,000,000, respectively. During the
year ended December 31, 2021, the transaction amount
under the mentioned agreement was RMB3 million.

CR Holdings is the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and the Resolink Companies are subsidiaries of CR
Holdings, they are therefore connected persons of the
Company.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 49
to b4 of this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

Financial Information” and with reference to

auditor has

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgHs

BALRHB (BEEHEZAREEBLRE
MERBHIE T REMARYS) & £2022F12
A3TBEMEFENHENEE LRDAIAA
R #4,000,0007T & A K #10,000,0007T °
B E2021F12A31BLFE - AEBERIE
FipEEANR S 25 ARK3,000,000
5 o

EBREERARRRZERRR - MBEBRER
AREREBZHBAR  HEETRAR
AlZBEAL -

BIE EHRBIE14A 5615 NARIZEEIT
BREEZSZE RBREBSIMASHEMGZ
BB EE X ERFE300057 [ JEFE X R FERH
BETKERZEETIEIRE T2RE
TEEHEAE 74058 [BERA B L iR B PTat 75 48
BEISFHZEMEG I HAEE 2 HER
ERXHERRE - ZEBAIDIRE EWARRE
14A 6 IR AR EHNFHRFIIOEEEL4E
FENRERERIBEEERBER K
 EHREEERASERNER -

ERERZERERAT —T-—FRK



58

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that for the year ended December 31, 2021:

(i)  these transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

(i) these transactions were entered into either on normal
commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

(i)  these transactions were entered into according to the
agreements governing them on terms that were fair
in the interests of the

and reasonable and

Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related-party transactions set out
in such note fall within the scope of discloseable connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules.
transactions of the Group are
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

The connected and continuing connected
in compliance with the

Rules.
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On January 21, 2019, the Company received a letter from
Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital to unilaterally
terminate the Yan Hua IOT Agreement with effect from
January 21, 2019. On April 17, 2019, the Group has
submitted the civil claim statement against Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital in relation to the Yan Hua I0T
Agreement dispute to Beijing Second Intermediate People’s
Court on the even date to seek the court’s ruling that the
unilateral termination of Yan Hua IOT Agreement by Yan
Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital on January 21, 2019
shall be void and that Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital should be liable for damages for breach of the Yan
Hua IOT Agreement. On December 18, 2019, the Beijing
Second Intermediate People’s Court handed down the civil
judgment ([2019] Jing 02 Minchu No0.304) and the major
details are as follows: (1) the unilateral termination of Yan
Hua IOT Agreement by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital is declared to be void and that the parties shall
continue to perform its obligations under the Yan Hua IOT
Agreement; (2) the amount of RMB14,400,000, being the
damages for breach of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement, is to be
paid by Yan Hua Phoenix to CR Hospital Management &
Consulting; (3) reliefs sought by CR Hospital
Management & Consulting shall be dismissed; and (4) other
counterclaims of Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital
shall be dismissed. In January 2020, Yan Hua Phoenix and
Yan Hua Hospital filed an appeal on the Original Judgment

other

to Beijing Higher People’s Court, and the relevant court
hearing was held on October 26, 2020. On November 22,
2021, the Beijing Higher People’s Court handed down a civil
judgment (2020 Jing Minzhong No.110) which rejects the
abovementioned appeal filed by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital and upholds the Original Judgment, and
adjudged that such ruling shall be final. The Company will
use its best endeavours and take all appropriate actions to
protect the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
announcement in

The Company will make further

accordance with the Listing Rules as and when appropriate.

Please refer to the announcements published by the
Company on January 15, 2019, January 21, 2019, April 17,
2019 and November 23, 2021 for more details.
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No Director nor any connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the holding company of
the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year
ended December 31, 2021.

In addition to certain continuing connected transactions
which has been disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” to this report, (1) on May 23, 2019, CR
Hospital Management & Consulting (a subsidiary of the
Company) as lessee and the Fengtai branch of China
Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (EHEMLR (ER)FHEREERATNEEGI R
A]) (@ branch company of a subsidiary of CR Land) as lessor
entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) in
relation to the lease of the 14th floor of China Resources
Kunlun Center Office Building, No. 5, Courtyard No. 9, Fuyi
Street, Fengtai District, Beijing, with a total leasable floor
area of 2,225.38 sg. m. for use as the Group's office from
June 1, 2019 to May 31, 2024. Pursuant to the Lease
Agreement, the rent for the period from June 1, 2019 to
May 31, 2022 is RMB393,246.90 (including value-added tax
calculated at 9% and excluding utility charges) per month,
and for the period from June 1, 2022 to May 31, 2024, a
sum of RMB405,063.67 (including value-added tax calculated
at 9% and excluding utility charges and property
management fees) per month. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated May 23, 2019;
and (2) Unison Champ (a subsidiary of the Company) has
also entered into the subscription agreement with CMH
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Healthcare Investment Co., Ltd. in relation to the Group's
investment to the CMH Fund on September 19, 2019.
Pursuant to which, the proposed capital commitment of the
Group shall amount to US$40 million, and the CMH Fund
intends to raise a total of US$1 billion. The CMH Fund's
primary investment objective is to generate attractive risk-
adjusted returns by investing in companies that are active in
the healthcare sector and assisting their expansion globally.
Unison Champ shall appoint the General Partner as its
attorney to sign the limited partnership agreement on its
behalf. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated September 19, 2019. For the
developments of aforesaid fund, please refer to the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Subsequent Events — Withdrawal from CMH Fund” to this
report.
Shareholders or its subsidiary had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether
for the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of

latest

Save for the aforementioned, no Controlling

the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Other than the service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Directors, the Company has not entered into any
contract with any individuals, firms or corporate entities to
manage or regulate the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company during the year ended December
31, 2021.
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The Company established the Audit Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
(EE@zE#HA)) of the Company in accordance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal
point for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to
time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure,
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

reviewing the Group's

As at December 31, 2021 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Audit Committee currently comprises
one non-executive Director, Mr. Hu Hui and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong
Kwok Kong (Chairman of the Committee) and Ms. Chiu Kam
Hing Kathy. The Audit Committee, together with the
management of the Company, has reviewed the accounting
principles, accounting standards and methods adopted by
the Company, discussed the matters concerning risk
management and internal control, auditing and financial
reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2021.
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
((EEE=#EA))) of the Company in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for: (i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii)
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management; and (iii)
reviewing and evaluating the performance-based
remuneration and ensure that no Directors or any of his

associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

As at December 31, 2021 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Remuneration Committee currently
consisted of one executive Director, Ms. Ren Yuan, and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chiu Kam
Hing Kathy (Chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Lee Kar
Chung Felix.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
November 4, 2013. The Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible for: (i) identifying individuals suitably qualified as
potential making
recommendation to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (i) reviewing the structure, size

Board members and selecting or

and diversity of the Board and the required skill mix as well
as making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to ensure the implementation of the Company’s
strategic goal; (iii) independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
qualification of senior management nominated by the Chief

assessing the

Executive Officer, reported to the Board for consideration
and adoption.

As at December 31, 2021 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Nomination Committee consisted of
one executive Director, Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the
Committee), and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix and Mr. Kwong Kwok
Kong.
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

in which

Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as rules governing
dealings by Directors in the listed securities of the
Company.

Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed that
all members of the Board complied with the Model Code
during the year ended December 31, 2021.
managers, executives and officers who, because of their
offices in the Company, may possess inside information of
the Company, they shall comply with the provision of the
Model Code. To the best knowledge of the Company, no
incident of non-compliance to the Model Code has been
committed by such employees during the vyear
December 31, 2021.

As senior

ended

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
general meeting to be held on Thursday,
2,2022, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, May 30, 2022 to Thursday, June 2,
2022, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify as members
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting,
investors should lodge all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Friday, May 27, 2022.

annual June
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, June 9, 2022 to Monday, June 13,
2022, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
registered.
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must

shares will be In order to qualify for the

be lodged with the Company’'s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday, June
8, 2022.

The 2021 Final Dividend will be payable in cash to each
Shareholder in HK$ unless an election is made to receive
the same in RMB. Shareholders will be given the option to
elect to receive all (but not part) of the 2021 Final Dividend
in RMB at the average benchmark exchange rate of HK$ to
RMB as published by the People’s Bank of China during the
five business days ending on June 2, 2022 (inclusive), being
the date of the Annual General Meeting. To make such
election, Shareholders should complete the Dividend
Currency Election Form, which is expected to be
despatched to Shareholders in late June 2022 as soon as
practicable after the record date of Monday, June 13, 2022
to determine Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
2021 Final Dividend, and return it to the Company's branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4: 30 p.m. on Thursday, July 7, 2022. Shareholders who are
minded to elect to receive all (but not part) of the 2021
Final Dividend in RMB by cheques should note that (i) they
should ensure that they have an appropriate bank account to
which the RMB cheques for dividend can be presented for
payment; and (ii) there is no assurance that RMB cheques
can be cleared without material handling charges or delay in
Hong Kong or that RMB cheques will be honoured for
payment upon presentation outside Hong Kong. The
cheques are expected to be posted to the
Shareholders by ordinary post on Tuesday, July 19, 2022 at
the Shareholders’ own risk.

relevant
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If no election is made by a Shareholder or no duly
completed Dividend Currency Election Form in respect of
that Shareholder is received by the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, by 4: 30 p.m. on Thursday, July 7, 2022,
such Shareholder will automatically receive the 2021 Final

Dividend in HK$.

All dividend payments in HK$ will be made in the usual way
on Tuesday, July 19, 2022. If Shareholders wish to receive
the 2021
additional

Final Dividend in HK$ in the usual way, no
required. Shareholders should seek
professional advice from their own tax advisors regarding

action is

the possible tax implications of the proposed dividend
payment.

The full text of the Corporate Governance Report is set out
on pages 68 to 87 of this annual report.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

Based on the information publicly available and to the best
of the Board's knowledge,
Company has always maintained sufficient public float as at
the date of this annual report.

information and belief, the

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.
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Please refer to the paragraph headed “Subsequent Event(s)”
under the section headed
Analysis” on page 28 of this annual report.

“Management Discussion and

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on May
30, 2019, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the
auditor of the Company and Messrs. Ernst & Young was
appointed as the auditor of the Company. At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on May 28, 2020,
Messrs. Ernst & Young was reappointed as the auditor of
the Company.

The Company has appointed Messrs. Ernst & Young as the
auditor of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2021.

Messrs. Ernst & Young will retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting and is eligible to stand
for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
Song Qing
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 25, 2022
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The Company confirms that it has complied with all material
code provisions of CG Code (the version as of December
31, 2021) during the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Company will review and commit in making necessary
arrangement to comply with all the code provisions under
the CG Code and the rising expectations of Shareholders
and investors.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
“Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct for dealing in securities of the

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

Company by the Directors.

Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors complied with the
Model Code during the year ended December 31, 2021.
Senior management, executives and staff who, because of
their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provision of the Model Code and the Company confirmed
that there was no incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by such employees during the year ended December
31, 2021.

Having made specific enquiry with all
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The Directors are accountable to all Shareholders for their
leadership and supervision over the Group’s operation, and
are committed to achieving the goal of
Shareholders’ value.

increasing

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including four executive Directors, one non-
and four

executive Director independent non-executive

Directors, and composition of Board are as follows:

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Shan Baojie (Appointed on December 30, 20217)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President, resigned as a director on
December 30, 2021)

Mr. Wang Yan (Resigned on August 25, 2021)

Mr. Shan Baojie (Appointed as a non-executive director on
August 25, 2021 and redesignated as an executive
director on December 30, 2021)

Mr. Hu Hui (Appointed on December 30, 2021)

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 88
to 97 of this annual report. The list of the Directors (by
category) is also disclosed in all of the corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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2021, the Board
complied at all times with the requirements of the Listing
relating to the appointment of at
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least

During the year ended December 31,

Rules least three
one-third of the Board), of which at least one Director has
appropriate professional qualifications, or
related financial management expertise.

accounting or

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
the non-

During the vyear ended December 31,

executive Directors

2021,
(including independent non-executive
Directors) brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and judgement to the Board. Through
active participation at Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and
serving on Board committees, all

Directors have made various contributions to the effective

the non-executive

development of the Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
to protect Directors from possible legal action against them.

The Board is responsible for the performance of the
functions of corporate governance.
December 31, 2021, the Board has performed the functions
set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code (the version
2021).

For the year ended

as of December 31,

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company is Mr. Cheng Libing, and Mr. Wu
Ting Yuk, Anthony was the chairman of the Board, he then
resigned as the chairman and Mr. Song was redesignated
as the chairman on April 23, 2021. The Company has
complied with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (the
version as of December 31, 2021) which stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive should not be
performed by the same individual.
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Under the the Board is
responsible for the approval and supervision of the Group's
general development strategy, the review and approval of
the annual budget and business plans,

leadership of the Chairman,

the consent of
material investment projects related to the Group's business
development, the review on the Group's performance and
the supervision of the work of the management, and
ensures that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group, operates effectively and performs the necessary
duties, as well as discusses all the significant and
appropriate issues of the Group’s business in a timely
the Directors are entitled to propose the

inclusion of any item in the agenda of the Board meetings

manner. All

for appropriate discussion. The Chairman has appointed the
secretary of the meeting to draft the Board meetings’
agendas. Under the assistance of the executive Directors
and the secretary of the Board, the Chairman will ensure
that all the Directors are provided with sufficient and reliable
information

in a timely manner required for necessary

analysis based on their expertise.

The Chief Executive Officer
authority for the operation and management of the Group’s

has delegated sufficient
business to the executive Directors and other senior
who are
in every aspect, including
implementation of the Board's resolutions unanimously, and
be accountable to the Chief Executive Officer for the

management members, in-charge of the daily

management of the Group

operations of various aspects of the Group's business, while
the Chief Executive Officer shall be accountable to the
Board for the Group’s operations as a whole.

The responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

(a)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’'s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

EEERRE
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In order to enhance its corporate governance structure, the
Company has formulated the “Rules and Procedures for
Board Meetings”. The “Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings"” specifies that the CEO Management Meeting is
composed of executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer and
Deputy President, all being called together by the Chief
Executive Officer. As the approval organization for the
Company's daily operational management, the committee is
responsible for organizing and managing the Company’s
daily operations and accountable to the Board.

According to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code (the
version as of December 31, 2021), regular Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. During the year ended December 31,
2021, there were only two regular Board meetings held to
review and consider the interim results and the annual
results, respectively, as the Company is not required to
announce its quarterly results under the Listing Rules. Ten
other Board meetings were held during the year.

The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without presence of other Directors
during the year.

(d) #HIE BIKERRERESNRTE
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Board has # ZE2021F12A31BItFEEF EF <
convened and held twelve Board meetings. Attendance CATWERITI2AEZESHE BEENESE
records of the Directors at the Board meetings are set out & &L FLSEHIWOT ¢

as follows:

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

2EHE/

Name of director BRKE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Boara)" REBERE(EER)D 1112
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) PSS (4 12/12
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) EERL(BEHEE) 12/12
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President)? N#BLR L (F/4EH) 12/12
Mr. Shan Baojie® BEANEAED 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHUTES
Mr. Wang Yan® IEH4EW 4/8
Mr. Hu Hui® FRIE S O —
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony™ RSB ED 12/12
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB LA 1112
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy iizherg iR 11/12
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FREBSE 12/12
Notes: i

(1 Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, the independent non-executive Director, (1) B EMITESHTEIB LR EN2021F4 A230 B
resigned as the chairman on April 23, 2021, and Mr. Song Qing has been EERME REAERFABEZEREER

appointed as the chairman of even date.

2) Ms. Fu Yanjun, the deputy president of the Company, resigned as a Director  (2) BIBENFIE L LR 2021 F12 A30 B BHEE WA -
on December 30, 2021.

3) Mr. Shan Baojie was appointed as the non-executive Director on August  (3) EENEER2021F8 A2 A BEZERIFNITES -
WH2021F12 A0 FEHTES »

25, 2021, and has been re-designated as the executive Director on
December 30, 2021.

(@) Mr. Wang Yan resigned as the non-executive Director on August 25, 2021.  (4) FERER20214F8 A25 ABHEHFRITE RS -

(5) Mr. Hu Hui has been appointed as the non-executive Director on December  (5) AL AR 2021F 12 A0 BE X RFERTES -
30, 2021.

ERBEERERLAT T ——Fw%R 73



74

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRE

Notice of regular Board meetings had been served to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend.

For regular Board and committee meetings, all agendas,
meeting papers, together with all applicable, complete and
be sent to all the Directors or
committees at least three days before a meeting is held. All
Directors may propose any business to be included in the
agenda of the Board or committee meetings and contact the

reliable statistics will

company secretary to ensure full compliance with all of the
Board's procedures and applicable regulations.

In general, the senior management members shall attend all
the regular Board meetings and, if necessary, other Board
and committee meetings to advise on the Group's business
development, financial and accounting matters, statutory and
corporate governance and risk
management as well as other significant issues. The Board
if appropriate,
independent and professional advice at the expense of the
Group. Matters discussed and resolved at Board meetings

regulatory compliance,

may, authorize the Directors to seek

will be recorded in detail by the Board secretary who shall
prepare and file the minutes or resolutions. Generally, draft
minutes of Board meeting shall be issued to the Directors
within reasonable time for their comments after such
meeting is held, and the final version will be open for
inspections by the Directors.

The Articles of Association contains provision
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in

requiring

the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or their associates have a material interest
and this provision has always been complied with.

WEMEFERZBETRME AR
B e@RXMER—ER  TBRAEZ
BEENEREL =REXEREFHEER
cRREFHIRHEMNEEIAEZEES
MEEgeRARE WAl HARMEBARIA
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According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but no less than one-third) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold
the next following general meeting of the
Company and for any Director appointed as an addition to

office until

the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election.

Any other appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Directors will be timely disclosed to the
Shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his
resignation.

Each of the non-executive Directors was engaged on a
service contract or letter of appointment for a fixed term
and shall be subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years.

The Group has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended December 31, 2021 are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management of
the Company, by band for the year ended December 31,
2021 are set out below:

4,001 to 5,000
3,001 to 4,000
2,001 to 3,000
Nil to 2,000

4,001 25,000
3,001 24,000
2,001 £3,000
Z£2,000

EEERRE
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General Meetings

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company
has convened and held one annual general meeting
("AGM"). Attendance records of the Directors at the general
meetings are set out as follows:

Name of the Directors

BRAXE

HZE2021F12A31HIEFE  ARQA DA
ARERT—ARREAFAS((RRBEK
g  BEENRREAS ZHELHEIHIINOT

Number of meetings
attended/convened

LR/

BRREK
AGM EGM
BRREBF R
N g

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Board) REEE(EFR) 71 nil/ &
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) PXAL A (B E) 1/1 nil/ &
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) TELL (EEHEE) 11 nil/#
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) NEIFL L (F/485) A nil/ &
Mr. Shan Baojie BEANEE N/ATE A nil/ &
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Wang Yan TEE4LE 0N nil/ &
Mr. Hu Hui BIE A N/AZ 8 F nil/ &
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HAREE & 0/1 nil/ 4%
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB LA A nil/ &
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HeWrzt 171 nil/ &
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRIESE 171 nil/#&

The 2022 annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on June 2, 2022. The notice of the annual general
meeting will be sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the annual general meeting.

Continuous Professional Development for
Directors

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package to ensure that he/she has
a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and is fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations as being a Director as well as the compliance
practice under the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements.

relevant

ARARE]2022F MR KB F R #12202296 A
2HET BREFASBEBERRERF
AEHHRDVR0ELEHTFETRE -

EENEERER

EZEMAZESTER SEFHEE M
BZABERS  BEANZATHRASER
BR2E UWRADEHIERESTNEML
RER AR EMRAUBEBTHNARER A
fHERRE R E -
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are kept updated on the
statutory and regulatory development and changes in the
business and the market so as to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in the
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company or further enhanced their
professional development by the way of attending training
courses or reading relevant materials for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

A summary of the training received by the Directors for the

year ended December 31, 2021 according to the records
provided by the Directors is as follows:

Name of the Directors

EEERRSE

AEEEBHEBRESTLHBETERRE U
BREKENEEZMB R - EERIGE
RELACREEER ULEEERTRER
CEIBE  UEFEEBRTERE - #122021
F12A3NHLEFE  2REF2HEEHELT
PREIEEZAG  BERBEZRRE B
BH RS EEGAM T — it
BEZEEER-

RIESEMEMENLE  HE2021F128
NBULFE EEMEIEIZ2BBHOT

Attending
seminar or
reading

materials
HEf e
S HEER

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Board) RELEE(EFR) |
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) B (4B E) {
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) TERT (EEHFEE) |
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) NEB L (F/4EH) {
Mr. Shan Baojie BEANGE {
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Wang Yan TERE J
Mr. Hu Hui il e |
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony BATE MBS A& {
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB A4 |
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy iichers iR |
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRELE {

Nomination Committee

The Board has established the Nomination Committee on
November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one
Executive Director, Mr. Song Qing (Chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar
Chung Felix and Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong. Majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

RREEE
EE@MN2013F 11 A4BKIIREREES -
BEE—BRTES(RBELE(ER)) AW
EBYIRTEE (A ERPLEE LB
HFE) e RKEBDHKE BBILIERITTES »
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The role and function of the Nomination Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
size and composition
knowledge and experience) of the

include reviewing the structure,
(including the skills,
Board, identifying appropriate and qualified individuals to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment

directorships, assessing the

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

To comply with the provisions in the CG Code on board
diversity which became effective on September 1, 2013, the
Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out a
number of factors which the Nomination Committee would
consider in reviewing and assessing the Board composition.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition
and makes recommendations of changes to the composition
of the Board. The Nomination Committee would consider
the benefits of all aspects of diversity set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age,
ethnicity, and educational

cultural background,

communication styles, skills, functional
expertise, problem solving skills, professional qualifications,

knowledge and industry and regional experience and other

interpersonal

qualities in reviewing and assessing the composition of the
Board and all appointments to the Board will be based on
merits and will take into account of factors based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs from time
to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis (which will include a review on the
effectiveness of the policy), discuss any required changes
with the Board and make recommendation of revision to the
Board Diversity Policy for consideration and approval. The
Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient
resources to perform
Nomination Committee will seek independent professional
advice,

its duty. When necessary, the

at the Company's expense, to perform its

responsibilities.

REZEENAGLKBEHNERERE -
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REZEEHENRIEFTESZTILEKR (8
FEERZBROKR)  BEEE W
EAMBNEHERETEETE L TTIEEE
MEEERHERE  WHEERIE - 24
ZESCDRREAERHERNBITHERE - 1
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During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Nomination
Committee has convened two meetings to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the
committees and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the
retiring Directors standing for re-election at the annual
general meeting and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors. The particulars of the
attendance of the Nomination Committee are set forth as
follows:

Name of the members of the Nomination Committee
Chairman: i

EEERRSE

HZE2021F12A3BEFE - RELEE
ERMAEEURTNESSREES R
B REREKRKEARBYIFRTES Y
By EERAEENRFERAFASEERE
BEACZEARITREZESTEREEST RBEZ
BeHFEHBHINOT

Number of
meetings
attended/

convened
SHHE/

ARRE

Mr. Song Qing (Mr. Song was appointed as the RBIE(RELER2021F12530H N/A
chairman on December 30, 2021) EZHERBTERE) N3 A
Members: KE :
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix (Mr. Lee resigned as the FRBEE (FALER2021F12H30H
chairman on December 30, 2021) BIEFEBFE) 2/2
Mr. Cheng Libing (Mr. Cheng resigned as the member on X 54 (B4 4£ R 20214612530 H
December 30, 2021) FELZEBE) 2/2
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB A 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee on
November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one
executive Director, Ms. Ren Yuan, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Chairman) and Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix. Majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing and formulating policies in respect of
remuneration structure for all
management and making recommendations to the Board for
its consideration.

Directors and senior

FMEES
BEEEeN2013F 1M A4 I EMEE E -
BEE—20TEE ((TrLLT) RWMBEL
FMITESE (A el (ER)EAER
A ) o KMAOKE ABYIERITES -

FHZEenAC BN ERERE -
HIZEIERRAMNIEEREBESTN
BREEABRHFHRENER XRNESE
REHEBEZRAFEEZE -
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During the year ended December 31, 2021, the

Remuneration Committee has convened four meetings to
review the remuneration policy for all Directors and senior
management and service contracts of newly appointed
The particulars of the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee are set forth as follows:

Directors.

HZE2021F12831BLEEE  FHEEE
ERAFA4AREE URBRFT2RBESRAAE
BAENTHBRERNZTESHORES
Al FMEZESLEBFBHINOT -

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

SHLE/

Name of the members of the Remuneration Committee HMEZS KBRS BRERE
Chairman: FE:
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HEmzt 4/4
Members: RE :
Ms. Ren Yuan EEREZL 4/4
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRIBEE 4/4

Audit Committee

On November 4, 2013, the Board has established the Audit
Committee currently consisted of one non-executive
Director, Mr. Hu Hui and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (Chairman); and
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy. Majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board considered
that the members of the Audit Committee possess
sufficient professional knowledge and experience of
accounting and financial management for the performance of
their responsibilities.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out
in its terms of reference. In view of the amendments to the
CG Code effective for the accounting period beginning on
January 1, 2016, the Group adopted a revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee on January 18, 2016 in
order to comply with certain changes relating to the risk
management and internal control section of the CG Code.
Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal point
for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to

BERERS

EE2N2013F 11 A48 I EXRLZES -
BEE—ZIFNTES (HELE) RREE
IERTEE B B E(EF) K
SHLZ L) REOKEEFRBBULIENITE
E-EFEERR BERZESKEAEERS
LMV BEEEEMNBRER - BUABTT
BERBRE -

BEZZEENBE RSN AR EESE -
B2016F1 A1 BABHE T BBERABE
ERTANERTME - A&EBEE2MX20165F1H
1I8ERMEIEFTIBERZESHESEE - &
EEEERTREERREERANIPEEE—
BMETE8 EXZEEREEAEME
= SNEEAZ ERD R RSP AT AN (a0 SR A BP B
AR cEBBEM B EMERE - Ak
EBRANIERE  INPMABEFTRESS
THETNZSHMVMBENETEEEFE
WEBRENEZZEBBER  RAEEPBRSE
I R E B K P ES 12 5 E A AR R 155 B
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time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to discharge its
responsibilities and review the Group’s annual and interim
results, continuing connected transactions, reporting and
compliance procedures, reports from the management on
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control function and
procedures and also the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The particulars of the attendance of the Audit
Committee are set forth as follows:

EEERRE

ExeBUMmE  BEEBERER BHAS
BB R e BRREERNETESSHE
EMEMBEMAIE -

HE2021F12A31BILFE BEXLES
BERM3NEHENBITERSYEMALEE
FERPHES BEEBRIS  BRERE
RiEF TEEEHASERREE XA
BEPR AT ANEE AP IR M2 T 2K
WMz e AR ERINEZEE - EREEE
HEFBEHYNT

Number of

meetings

attended/

convened

eHHE/

Name of the members of the Audit Committee EZZESNEHS BFIRE
Chairman: E

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB LA 3/3
Members: RE :

Mr. Wang Yan (Mr. Wang resigned as a member on

FERLE (FHLER20214E8F25HFFZE

August 25, 2021) EB%) 0/3
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy iichers iR 3/3
Mr. Hu Hui (Mr. Hu was appointed as a member on RRIB LA (BHE R 2021 F12 A0 HEZ (F N/A

December 30, 2021) BZA) i@ A
Mr. Shan Baojie (Mr. Shan was appointed as a BENLE (ELLER2021F8H25 H#EZ

member on August 25, 2021 and resigned as a EARZE  WR2021F12H30HEFHLZ N/A

member on December 30, 2021) EB%) i

Appointment and Remuneration of
External Auditor

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the total fee
paid/payable to the external auditors of the Group in respect
of audit is RMB4.33 million, including the annual audit
service fee payable to Ernst & Young amounted to
RMB3.73 million. The total fee paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Group in respect of non-audit service (in
respect of review interim period financial statements) is
RMBO0.6 million.
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The Audit
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment, re-
appointment and Such
appointment, re-appointment and removal are subject to the

Committee is responsible for making

removal of the external auditor.
approval by the Board and the general meetings of the

Company by the Shareholders.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Group
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
in the
independent auditor’'s report from pages 98 to 105 of this
annual report.

financial statements of the Group is set out

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2021 which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as well as the results and
cash flow during that year.
The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements are
met and applies appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and makes judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept so that the Group could prepare
statutory
requirements and the Group’s accounting policies. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.

financial statements in accordance with

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Board, as
supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, has
performed an annual the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal

review on
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control systems in different aspects of the Group such as
financial, operation, compliance and risk management, and
has also assessed the accounting and financial reporting
functions of the Group, estimated the resources and
budgets for training programmes and appraised the staff
qualifications and experience. In respect of

continuing connected the Group has

members’
transactions,
implemented a series of general
controlled by multiple departments to improve corporate
governance structure and monitor the implementation of

management policies

internal control policies, including financial control system,
legal operations and
compliance management system, risk management and

anti-fraud and monitoring system,

assessment policies and internal audit rules.

The Board considers that the abovementioned systems are
effective and adequate.

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
comprehensive audits of each department, subsidiary and
member of the Group to facilitate the management’s control
on the assets of the Group. In addition, it offers consulting
services in respect of internal control to each department of
the Group to assist them in optimizing and enhancing the
risk management and internal control systems and the
operating processes. As authorized by the management, the
audit department conducts an investigation on

internal corruption. For the year ended December 31, 2021,

internal
the internal audit department did not discover any
circumstances involving fraud, non-compliance or violation
against laws, regulations and rules or any material incidents
due to lack of internal control.

The Board considers that the current risk management and
internal control systems cover the existing businesses of the
Group, and will continue to be optimized in line with the
business development of the Group.

In particular, the Board will devote efforts to complying with
the Listing Rules, ensuring compliance with the relevant
laws and regulation and safeguarding the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general
officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential

guide to the Company's Directors,

information, monitoring information

disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that

unauthorized access and use of inside information are

strictly prohibited.

The Board of the Company assesses the likely impact of any
unexpected significant event that may impact the price of
the Shares or their trading volume and decides whether the
relevant information is considered as inside information and
needs to be disclosed as soon as practicable pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside
Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO.
Executive Directors and the company secretary are also
responsible for approving certain announcements and/or
circulars to be
delegated by the Board from time to time.

issued by the Company under powers

Mr. So Yiu Fung has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary and an authorized representative with
effect from July 20, 2018.

Mr. So is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Civil
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong. Before
joining the Company, Mr. So worked as the company
secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange which is principally engaged in sales of
automotive electronic products and provision of advanced
driving assistance systems. Prior to that, he worked also as
the deputy finance director of a property development
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the senior company secretarial officer of a state-owned
conglomerate and the manager of a corporate finance
advisory firm. He has extensive experience in corporate
finance, merger and acquisition, company secretarial and
accounting fields.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, Mr. So has
complied with the requirement of taking no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group has not
made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles of
Association.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the re-election of individual
retiring Directors. Except where the chairman, in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands, all
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

resolutions tabled at the general

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are primary forums for
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on the
resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner

communication

in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with
the procedures set out in the paragraph below.

who wish to propose a resolution may
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Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one
or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary

right of voting at general

of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board believes that effective communication with
investors is essential for establishing investors’ confidence
and attracting new investors. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables investors to make the
best investment decision.

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. Updated
and key information of the Company is also available on the
Company's website at www.crmedical.hk. The Company also
replied the enquiries from Shareholders timely, if any. The
general meetings of the Company provide an important
channel for communications between the Board and the
Shareholders. The Chairman, as well as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committee and where appropriate, the chairman
of the independent Board Committee, will be available to
answer questions at the general meetings.
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For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address:  14/F, Kunlun Center Office Building
No. 9, Fuyi Street
Fengtai District
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China

Email: ir@crmedical.hk
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Mr. Song Qing, aged 56, joined the Group in August 2018
as an executive Director and the vice chairman, and was
re-designated as the chairman in April 2021
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee in
December 2021. Mr. Song holds a bachelor's degree in
Chinese medicine from Anhui University of Traditional
Chinese Medicine in Hefei, the PRC, and obtained his chief
pharmacist title from the general logistics department of the
People's Liberation Army in April 1999. Mr. Song has
extensive experiences in corporate management, and has
over 30 years of experience and sophisticated background
in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Song is currently the
chairman of CR Healthcare, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and also takes the role as the
Company's chairman
segment of China Resources. The Company believes that
with Mr. Song's extensive experience
management and mergers and acquisitions, and his deep
understanding of the healthcare industry, he will lead the
Group to promote business development, actively participate
reform of state-owned enterprises hospitals,
accelerate the scale expansion plan of the Company, further
leverage advantages of China Resources Group and further
synergize the collaboration between the Company and China
Resources Healthcare Group. Mr. Song was the director of
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (which is
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock
code: 3320) from May 2016 to August 2018, and also its
president from June 2017 to August 2018. Mr. Song was
of China Resources Sanjiu Medical &
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (which is listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange; stock code: 000999) and he is currently the
chairman of DIRUI Medical Technology Co., Ltd. (which is
listed on ChiNext of Stock Exchange; stock code: 300396).
He also served as an

and then

in order to lead the healthcare

in corporate

in the

the director

inspection pharmacist of quality
inspection department, a pharmacist in charge and the
director of production department, the director of the
enterprise management department and an assistant to
president of Shenzhen South Pharmaceutical Factory.
Mr. Song served as an assistant general manager, the
director of technology center, the director of medical &
pharmaceutical department of Sanjiu Enterprise.
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Mr. Cheng Libing, aged 57, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Cheng joined the Group in
September 2010 and responsible for daily

operations of the Group. He has been appointed as an

is primarily

executive Director and the vice Chairman in February 2016.
He has also been redesignated as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since August 2018. Mr. Cheng is
currently also the vice-chairman of CR Healthcare, which is
the Company’s controlling shareholder. Mr. Cheng served as
the deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren Intech
Hospital Management Consulting Co., Ltd. from 2006 to
2008 and the deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren
Intech Hospital Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Beijing
Intech Eye Hospital Co., Ltd. and Intech Medical Chain from
2008 to 2010. From 1999 to 2002, Mr. Cheng has served
various positions at Beijing Kangchen Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., including assistant to the general manager. Mr. Cheng
also served in various positions such as an attending doctor
at Dongzhimen Hospital Affiliated to Beijing University of
Chinese Medicine from 1988 to 1998. Mr.
currently the chairman of Beijing Jiangong Hospital Co., Ltd.,
the chairman of Run Neng Medical Management Co., Ltd.,

Cheng is

the chairman and general manager of China Resources
Hospital Management Consulting Co., Ltd. and he is also the
chairman and general manager of China Resources Hospital
Investment (China) Co., Ltd., and he also director of certain
other subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Cheng received a
bachelor's degree in Clinical Traditional Chinese Medicine
from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in Beijing in
July 1988.
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Ms. Ren Yuan, aged 48, joined the Group in October 2017
as an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer, and has
been appointed as a member
Committee in October 2019. Ms. Ren worked as the deputy

of the Remuneration

manager of the finance department of China Resources
Microelectronics (Holdings) Limited from June 2002 to
December 2006. From February 2004 to February 2010,
Ms. Ren served as the finance director of Wuxi CR
Micro-Assembly Tech., Ltd. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Ren worked as the consultancy general director and
deputy general director of the information management
department of China Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd. since
March 2010. Ms. Ren obtained her master's degree in
accounting from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
December 2007. Ms. Ren obtained the qualifications of
China Certified Public Accountant and China Certified Public
Valuer in December 1998 and September 1999 respectively.

Mr. Shan Baojie, aged 50, joined the Group in August 2021
as a non-executive Director and was re-designated as an
executive Director in December 2021. Mr. Shan obtained a
master degree in Accounting from Renmin University in
Beijing in June 2002 and a bachelor degree in Chemistry
from Wuhan University in Wuhan in July 1992. Mr. Shan has
of the
Company on August 25, 2021, and he is also currently the
vice general manager of CR Healthcare, the Company’s
controlling shareholder, and is also taking the office as a

been appointed as the non-executive director

director of a number of its subsidiaries. Prior to joining CR
Healthcare, Mr. Shan was with the Group from 2011 to
2016 as the executive general manager and then the vice
general manager, and he was also an executive Director of
the Company from February 2016 to November 2016. He
had served in a variety of roles at the State Food and Drug
Administration from 1998 to 2011. Mr. Shan also completed
a training program at the World Health Organization in 2007,
where he gained experience in the U.S. pharmaceutical
supervision and management system. From July 1992 to
July 1998, Mr. Shan worked in the general manager's office
of the Northeast Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Hu Hui, aged 53, joined the Group in December 2021
as a non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Hu obtained a master's degree in
international economic law from the School of Management
of Dalian Maritime University in June 1996; he graduated
with a bachelor’'s degree in the major of ocean-going vessel
manoeuvring from the Maritime Department of Dalian
Maritime University in July 1989. Mr. Hu currently serves as
the general manager of the Legal and Compliance
Department (and Assets Management Department) of CR
Healthcare (the controlling shareholder of the Company) and
is also taking the office as a director of a number of its
subsidiaries. He was previously the Senior Director of the
(then named China
Resources Medical Group Co., Ltd.) from November 2011 to
2014, Manager
Department of CR Healthcare from November 2014 to
November 2019, and the head of the Comprehensive
Management Department of CR Healthcare from November
2019 to December 2020. Prior to this, Mr. Hu served as a
senior manager of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group
Co., Ltd. from January 2008 to October 2011, and a senior
manager of the Strategic & Management Department of
China Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd. from June 2007 to
December 2007. He worked at China Resources Investment
Development Co., Ltd. from March 2001 to May 2007, and
at China Resources Company Limited from July 1996 to
February 2001.

Device Division of CR Healthcare

November the General of the Legal

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, aged 66, joined the Group in
August 2018 as an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman, and then resigned as the chairman in April
2021. Mr. Wu is a leader in the healthcare industry and has
extensive management experience
Mr. Wu joined the board of the Hong Kong Hospital
Authority in 1999 and was formerly its chairman from 2004
to 2013. He has so far been the longest-serving chairman of
the Hospital Authority. He has led the team of the Hospital
Authority to manage all public hospitals and public clinics in
Hong Kong and implemented the public health policy of the
Hong Kong SAR Government. He has also actively promoted
a number of public and private medical co-operation projects
during his tenure. Mr. Wu is currently the principal advisor

in medical system.

to the State Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine
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of the People’s Republic of China, a member of the Chinese
Medicine Reform and Development Advisory Committee. He
was a member of the State Council's Medical Reform
Leadership Advisory Committee and an advisor to the Public
Policy Advisory Committee of the National Health and
Family Planning Commission. Other important public
positions that Mr. Wu has served include member of the
12th and 13th Standing Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference National Committee, and a
member of the Chief Executive's Council of Advisers on
Innovation and Strategic Development and the Task Force on
Land Supply of the Hong Kong SAR, and has been awarded
JP and GBS by the government of Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Wu
also served as the chairman of the Chamber Council of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce from 2010 to
2012, and
committee. Mr. Wu was a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY")

is currently a member of its consultation
from 1985 to 2015, and served as chairman of the EY's Far
East Region from 2000 to 2005. He is currently the chief
advisor to MUFG Bank, Ltd., the chairman of The China
Oxford Scholarship Fund, an honorary professor of the
Faculty of Medicine of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and the Peking Union Medical College Hospital, and an
honorary fellow of the Hong Kong College of Community
Medicine. Mr. Wu also has directorships in certain listed
companies of the Main Board of the Stock Exchange: he is
an independent non-executive director of Sing Tao News
1105),
Holdings Limited (stock code: 006), Guangdong Investment
Limited (stock code: 270), China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 966), Cstone Pharmaceuticals

Corporation Limited (stock code: Power Assets

(stock code: 2616) and Venus Mecttech (Hangzhou) Inc.
(stock code: 2500). He also joined Ocumension Therapeutics
(stock code: 1477 as the independent non-executive director
in 2020. He joined CLARITY MEDICAL GROUP HOLDING
LIMITED (stock code: 1406)
executive director in 2021, and this company has gone

as the chairman and non-

public in early 2022. He was an executive director of
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444). He
was also an independent non-executive director of
Agricultural Bank of China Limited (stock code: 1288) from
2009 to 2015. He was also a director of the Fidelity Funds
from 2011 to 2014. Mr. Wu is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of
in England and Wales, and the
honorary chairman of the Institute of Certified Management

Chartered Accountants

Accountants (Australia) Hong Kong Branch.
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Notwithstanding Mr. Wu’'s engagement as an independent
non-executive director of eight listed companies (including
our Company) and an non-executive director of one listed
company, Mr. Wu confirmed that he would devote sufficient
time to act as our independent non-executive Director based
on the following:

° Mr. Wu is neither a full-time member of the
abovementioned companies nor involved in the
day-to-day operations or management of such
companies. As such, he has no executive and
management responsibility therein;

° he is not a chief executive officer or full-time executive
director of any listed company;

° with his background and experience, Mr. Wu is fully
aware of the responsibilities and expected time
involvement for an independent non-executive director.
He has sufficient understanding of his role as
independent director in different listed companies and
of estimating the time required for attending to the
affairs of each listed company. He has not found
difficulties in devoting to and managing his time with
numerous companies and he is confident that with his
experience in being responsible for several roles, he
will be able to discharge his duties to our Company;

° Mr. Wu's role in our Group is non-executive in nature
and he will not be involved in the daily management of
our Group's business, thus his engagement as our
independent non-executive Director will not require his
full-time participation.

Based on the foregoing, the Directors are of the view that
the various positions currently held by Mr. Wu will not result
in Mr. Wu not having sufficient time to act as our
independent non-executive Director or not properly
discharging his fiduciary duties as a director of our
Company.
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Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, aged 74, joined the Group in
September 2013 as an independent non-executive Director
and also the chairman of the Audit Committee and has been
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee on
March 23, 2018. He was the chief executive officer of Pok
Oi Hospital, a well-known non-profit hospital in Hong Kong.
As the chief executive officer, Mr.
corporate governance and management support to the board

Kwong provided

of directors for development, management and supervision
of the units under Pok Oi Hospital for the past 10 years. He
joined Pok Oi Hospital as an internal audit manager in 2003.
Mr. Kwong is a director of Yuen Long District Healthy City
Association Company Limited,
supporting the government to promote public healthcare

a non-profit organization

messages to people in the district. Before joining Pok Oi
Hospital, Mr. Kwong served as the principal auditor of the
Audit Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Mr. Kwong served in the
Audit Commission of the Government of Hong Kong since
1980. Mr. Kwong has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1982.

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy, aged 72, joined the Group in
March 2018 as an independent non-executive Director, and
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee. Ms. Chiu has years of
banking experience in Canada and the Asia Pacific Region.
Ms. Chiu was a senior vice president at the Republic
National Bank of New York and was responsible for the
management and investment of third party client’s funds.
Ms. Chiu has been an associate and a fellow of the
Institute of Canadian Bankers since July 1975 and August
1976, respectively. Ms. Chiu was appointed as a Justice of
the Peace by the Hong Kong government in July 1992 and
as a Cavaliere by the Italian Government in December 1998.
Ms. Chiu is the chairman of Prime Investments Group
Limited and the
Limited. She is currently an independent non-executive
director of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (stock code:
8200) and CPM Group Limited (stock code: 1932), whose
shares are all listed on the Stock Exchange. She was also
an independent non-executive director of National
Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code: 1236) from 1999
to 2019. Ms. Chiu is
management business under Type 9 regulated activities
under the SFO.

responsible officer of Masan Capital

licenced to carry out asset
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Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix, aged 40, joined the Group in
August 2015 as an independent non-executive Director and
also a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

He is currently a senior vice president of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited (“CTFE") with responsibilities in making
investments in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally and
a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CTFE. Mr. Lee is an executive director
of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 722; CTFE
shareholder of this company, and the
Company also indirectly owns 11.58% of this company as at
the date of this annual report). He is also an independent
non-executive director of Asymchem Laboratories (Tianjin)
Company Limited (which is listed on both the main board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6821) and the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 002821). He has over 15 years
of experience in law and finance. He was an associate with
the law firm Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer before he left in
February 2008 to join UBS AG, Hong Kong branch as an
analyst in the investment banking department until January
2009. He then joined the investment banking department of
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong branch and last held the
position of director in the Corporate Advisory Group, where
he worked from January 2009 to August 2014.

is a substantial

Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws from the London
School of Economics and Political Sciences and a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of
Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004, respectively. He is
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since September
2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts of
England and Wales since February 2013. Mr. Lee is also a
Vice Chairman of the China Committee, the Hong Kong

General Chamber of Commerce.
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Mr. Wu Xinchun, aged 50, is the vice president of the
Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as the vice president of
the Company in December 2018. From September 2016 to
November 2018, Mr. Wu served as the director and
chairman of China Resources Wugang Medical Management
Company Limited. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wu
was the director of technology management department and
technology innovation department of Wugang Group, steel
smelting factory’'s deputy general manager and the general
manager of innovation and innovation department, general
manager of Wugang Modern City Services Group*, chairman
of Wugang CR Gas*, general manager of Wuhan Yangtze
River Water*, assistant to general manager of China Baowu
Wugang Group* from September 2001 to November 2018.
He also served as deputy secretary general of China Iron
and Steel Industry Association. He was the independent
director of Kingray New Materials Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. (a company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600390). Mr. Wu was granted the title of senior
engineer at a professor level from Titles Evaluation
Committee of Hubei Province and obtained his doctor’s
degree from Wuhan University of Technology in December
2009 and June 2012, respectively.

Ms. Fu Yanjun, aged 42, is the vice president of the
Company. Ms. Fu joined the Group in December 2014 and
has been appointed as the vice president of the Company
since December 2016. Ms. Fu previously served as the
managing director of strategic investment department of the
Company, and she was also the executive Director of the
Company from October 2017 to December 2021. Ms. Fu
also worked for Ernst & Young Hua Ming from September
2002 to October 2010 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA
Ltd. from October 2010 to December 2014. Ms. Fu
obtained a bachelor's degree in accounting from Renmin
in July 2002 and obtained the
qualification of China Certified Public Accountant in May
2008.

University of China
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Mr. Zhou Hang, aged 53, is the vice president of the
Company. He joined the Company in August 2012 and was
appointed as the assistant president of the Company in
October 2018. Mr. Zhou served various positions in the
hospitals or companies affiliated to the Company, such as
the general manger of Jian Gong Hospital,
Mentougou Hospital and general manager of Central and

dean of

Southern China Department of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Zhou was the assistant manager of
general manager office of China International Cooperation
Company For Agriculture, Livestock and Fishery and deputy
director of logistics department of Beijing New Oriental
School. Mr.
Finance and Economics, majoring in audit.

Zhou graduated from Tianjin University of

Mr. Du Lin, aged 41, is the vice president and board
secretary of the Company. Mr. Du Lin joined the Company
in March 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Du was
the legal counsel on PRC law, senior legal counsel and chief
legal counsel of legal department of China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. from October 2008 to March 2018. Mr.
Du graduated from China University of Political Science and
Law with a doctor's degree in Law in 2008. He also
graduated from University of Leicester in the United
Kingdom with a master’'s degree in law in 2005 and
graduated from West China University of Medical Sciences
(currently known as West China Faculty of Medical
Sciences, Sichuan University) with a bachelor's degree in
medicine in 2002.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M AR

e
EY::

To the shareholders of China Resources Medical
Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or

106 to 275, which comprise the consolidated

loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

and have been

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"),
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

and we have fulfilled our other ethical

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report,
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

including in

consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

RRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREESPROAEHHN

Impairment assessment of goodwill and investment in a joint venture

BERR—EEERGZREZHETE
Goodwill as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB2,276,258,000. The carrying amount (before
impairment) of the investment in a joint venture,
CR Wugang (Hubei) Hospital Management Co., Ltd.
as at 31 December 2021 was RMB515,619,000.
The impairment tests performed by management
regarding the cash-generating units (“CGUs") to
which goodwill and investment in a joint venture
were allocated involved significant judgement for
the determination of the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs. During the year, an impairment of
RMB212,679,000 was made against the Group's
investment in the joint venture.

72021612 A31HEE B AR ®2,276,258,0007T °
2021128318 - R —H& & 2 F (FHER #H Of
i) BEREBARAR) 2 REZREME CRER) AA
R¥#515,619,0007T - ERERES R EHE LN —FEa
ERAIZRAEAZHGELBM ([REEAEM]) ETT
BRERAPRREER CEE BT E S REIE
HEBRHE - FAN - EEERZEERRIZRER
WA AR #212,679,0007T °

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude,
the complexity, and the management’'s estimates
involved in the impairment testing. The accounting
policies and related disclosures are included in
notes 2.4, 3, 17 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ERNREARSRNEE  BHEENEREEN MGG
BB RARESEE SRR REEARRERANES
R M 243 17%19°

Our relation to impairment
assessment of goodwill and investment in a joint
venture included:

BB LR —BE 2R R ZKRE ZRE A
TIRFBEE:

procedures in

° Evaluating the independent valuers’

competence, objectivity and qualifications;

o EBUMEMZBERN FEMEMREE:

o Involving our internal valuation specialists to
assess the discount rate applied underpinning
the discounted cash flow models by
performing re-calculations based on market
data and certain company specific parameters,
as well as evaluating the reasonableness of
parameters applied by the independent
valuers;

e  ERAMEERR  BREMSEENIE TR
EL28 - ETEFEE  UFHHBEBRSRER
BRI E - W BB EEMA28H
B

° Evaluating the reasonableness of other key
assumptions, such as growth rate and inputs
included in the financial forecast, by
comparing to historical performance and
industry data; and

o HIBERBRITEEIR - AT E TR R A
HthEF2RJIHIMEREARBAENSIEMN
&

° Performing sensitivity analysis and evaluating
the adequacy of disclosures of impairment

assessment.
o  ETHRESTULFEREN GZEENTR
o
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Key audit matter

BRETSBE

Accounting for business combinations
EBEOHETEE

As disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed several business
combinations of hospitals during the year. As at the
respective dates of business combinations, the
aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired amounted to approximately
RMB1,504,333,000 and goodwill of approximately
RMB804,390,000 was recognised arising from the
business combinations. The Group engaged certain
independent professionally qualified valuers to
perform the purchase price allocations on the fair
values of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in the business combinations.
WMERE M BRI T2 HE - EEERFRNTK
TEREREREH NREXBEHBEH  WENA
BAEEFENICABEABARARE
1,504,333,0007T * WHRRAXEBaHELENEHEOA
[R¥804,390,0007T - EEERBTETELEXES
BREVEER - LEBa TP PIRE R BRI EE K&
AN BENAABEETEEESR -

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude of
the balances involved and the significant
judgements and estimates involved in (i) the
assessment of whether the Group has obtained
control over the hospitals and whether the Group
has the practical ability to direct the hospitals’
relevant activities unilaterally; (i) the identification of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and (iii) the
determination of the fair values of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

TR ESFE - RARS RN AR &Y
RATEEHERABGMES : ()F7Eh EXERE

EESHEERNIZHE Uk EXERETAEES
RS BRABEABNERED  (VERMBEEM

AEENRE RiEEMBAERNEEMAENAE
MAREE-

The accounting policies and related disclosures of
the business combinations are included in notes
2.4, 3 and 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.
SRTBERMEB A OB E S NGRS B I SR M
2.4 - 342 -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
By &BE RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEESNFRNMEHY

Our procedures in relation to the accounting for
business combinations included:

B EBEHOETRIEMATIEF B

° Examining the terms of the relevant sale and
purchase agreements, service contracts and
other related documents to assess
management’s judgement that the Group
obtained control over the hospitals;

e EREEEENE  REARMEAMERBEXER
R U EREY BEXEEIGEEREHE
T VE &Y IR

° Involving our internal valuation specialists to
evaluate the valuation methodologies adopted
and the assumptions used to determine the
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed,;

e ERAEMEERR  FHEEMKEBAZEE
RATEREE BN AR BEMRANMGER AR
A&

o Evaluating the independence, objectivity and
competence of the external valuers engaged
by management; and

e IEEEEZEMIIBEEMOBE Y  FEM
NistEae 1 &

° Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in
connection with the business combinations.

o FHEREBEMFELONBERLTRED
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one

risk of not detecting a material
resulting from error, involve
forgery,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

as fraud may

collusion, intentional omissions,

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

in the circumstances,

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY&BET#RE

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Tsz Tat.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBEERR

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021F12 A31HIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARBTT ARBTT
REVENUE Wz 5 4,447,477 2,750,650
Cost of sales 5 & A (3,5613,922)  (2,114,143)
Gross profit EF 933,555 636,507
Other income Hab g A 6 120,700 104,310
Other gains and losses, net Efh W & 1B F R 7 (619) 28,958
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (16,782) (14,585)
Administrative expenses THER (471,447) (323,380)
Finance costs B ER 9 (17,834) (17,391)
Impairment losses on financial SREERBEFBFRE
assets, net (131,460) (19,937)
Impairment loss on an other HihmEEERBERE
intangible asset (11,150) (3,588)
Impairment loss on an investment HR—E&AZRAZEKE
in a joint venture 2R EEE (212,679) —
Other expenses Hi B (5,363) (7,677)
Share of profits and losses of: FE(R A R -
A joint venture CI =R W/NC] 1,519 1,072
Associates iR l/N] 82,035 33,896
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AT 8 270,475 418,185
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfile,(&A) 12 155,389 (97,864)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFE 425,864 320,321
Attributable to: FEfh -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEP=WN 417,915 310,131
Non-controlling interests IR 7,949 10,190
425,864 320,321
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAEBRER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BHEAEGER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 2 F
PARENT 14
Basic (RMB yuan) ER(AREIT) 0.33 0.25
Diluted (RMB yuan) g (ARKT) 0.33 0.25

106  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEETHEBRSERR

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z=2021F12 A31HIEFE

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
k=3 ARBTFT ARBTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFE 425,864 320,321
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hibh2EKA (E18)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) R EZBBEE TS EH
that will not be reclassified to NEEBZAEAM
profit or loss in subsequent 2EKA S (EE)
periods:
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on RERMNETEINES
defined benefit plans e (EiE) 35 8,453 (4,194)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  FE & HW A 425

FOR THE YEAR 434,317 316,127

Attributable to: FEAf -
Owners of the parent B RREA A 424,517 305,890
Non-controlling interests FEVE A% 2 9,800 10,237
434,317 316,127

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Investment in a joint venture

Investments in associates

Receivables from invest-operate-
transfer (“IOT") hospitals

Loan to a sponsored hospital

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Other financial assets at amortised
cost

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories
Trade and bills receivables

Contract assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Due from related parties

Financial assets at FVTPL

Other financial assets at amortised
cost

Restricted and pledged bank
deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals

Due to related parties

Payables to hospitals sponsored by
the Group (the “Sponsored
Hospitals”)

Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings

Lease liabilities

Deferred income

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES
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1,754,607
363,835
2,276,258
75,351
302,940
961,710

58,898

65,301
597,670
10,181
76,269

6,543,020

185,075

766,603
27,560

298,529
7,141

311,031

4,592
2,324,051

3,924,582

827,574
757,989
126,283
166
1,665,899
22,225
817
42,781

3,443,734
480,848

7,023,868

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E MR R

31 December 2021 72021412 A31H

805,149
240,483
1,471,868
1,345,623
514,100
41,397
77,214

51,197

92,718
100,095
188
76,269

4,816,301

142,035

618,103
19,840

372,395

5,472
105,296
164,927

17,454
2,701,370

4,146,892

564,125
577,102

97,751
217,717

684,301
19,398

46,792

2,207,186
1,939,706

6,756,007



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Notes

B

FnBEE

mEMBRRER

31 December 2021 742021412 A31H

2021
20214

RMB'000
ARETT

Lease liabilities Tﬂ%fﬁ_% 16(b) 40,250 46,775

Retirement benefit obligations RIREHAET 35 37,478 47,323

Deferred income I E U A 4,117 —

Deferred tax liabilities R IBAE 36 95,251 317,615

Provision B 37 327 3,840
Total non-current liabilities ERBAFEERE 177,423 415,553
Net assets BEFE 6,846,445 6,340,454
EQUITY E%ﬁ
Equity attributable to owners of ®AFEZFTEA

the parent LS

Share capital (LN 38 267 267

Reserves B 40 6,450,509 6,105,189

6,450,776 6,105,456
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 395,669 234,998
Total equity B 6,846,445 6,340,454
Cheng Libing Ren Yuan
R E TE
Director Director
EZE EZE
EHEBEZERERAT —T_—F%

109



EREZEBHBE

yGY'0vE'd 866'7EC  9GY'G0L'D 6LY'¥I9  (€€8'LT) L99 £99'0¢ (59.'282)  zev'88l  (060'zvE)  96L'LL8'G 9T H1EHTI 50202 020¢ 18quedeq L€ W
(veg'ol)  (veg'ol)  — — — — — — — — — — ) F s18pjoyaleys Buljjouod-uou 0} pled SpuspIAIC]
(¢e0'GLl)  — (ee0'GLl)  — — — — — — — (ce0'GLL)  — €l & XH ¥ 56102 PuspIAIp 610¢ [eul4
— — — (ive'oe)  — — — — LYE'0e - — — ENAZE FbE T 9AI8sal snjdins Asoiniels o1 uonendoiddy
08¢ — 08¢ — — — — 08¢ — — — — 6 G¥aHIT saleys Ainseal} 4o ajes
yTl'LL 8l 986'01 - - — 9860l  — — — — - 6 HENN YW ESTH 1uewabuele wswAed peseg-aeys pemes-Ainbg
(L08) (£08) — — — — — — — — — — EBUEHE-EE Ateipisgns e jo uonesnsiBaieq
965 — G695 — — — — — — 965 — — B — Aued paiejal e Ag uonnquiuod feyde)
086 086 - - - — — — — - - — BEEEWWTIAE  S1epjoyaleys Buyjonuod-uou Ag suoinguiuod [eyde)
(£89'78)  (v89'€8)  (€00'L) - - — - - — (€00°L) - — 194 BT $188191U1 BUIJ[013U00-UOU JO UONISINDIY
£66'18 €66'18 — — — — — — — — — — 144 ENA-IUEEYS i SaLIBIPISGNS JO UOIBPI[0SUOI/UIlSINbOY
[el'9le  LeT’oL 068'G0E  LEL'OLE  (vTh)  — - — - - - - BHYVHETHS Jeah a1 1o} aUIOOUI SAISUBYBIAWOD [0
(v6L'Y) Ly (Lve'y) — (1ve'y) — — — — — — — HEE IS ey sue|d 11jaUaq pauljap UO $8SS0| JusWainseaway
CHEBTYHES :Jesh 8y} 10} $SO| BAISUBYBIdWOD JsylQ
lze'oze 06101 ler'ole lerole — — - — — — — — EEE 1eah 8y} 1o} Mjoig
GLL'OVL'9 GLY'9ST  00L'€06'G 629'V8E  (26S'LL) L99 1196 (Gvl'e8z)  160'8Gl  (289'LvE)  888'766'G L9T H1H 1402024 020z Aenuer | 1y

UL
#HAY ‘
000.9NH  000.9INY
HE |

L
1Un022e
wniwaid

000.9INY 000.9INH
I , ¥

IV
sabueyd
enjoy

EIVEEE) EIVERS)] EIVEREY!
uonenionyy juswAed  sleys
abueyox3 paseq Ainseas|

-a1eyg

DEYE#ETE

EIVERET!
snjdins
Aioinieig

BAI8Sal
ende)

Aunba Sisalelul  [el0) sujoid

paulelay

|eyded
aleys

|elo| Bu||013u0d

ted Annual Report 2021

imi

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

N

n

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021F12 A31HIEFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERBBBER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z=2021F12 A31HIEFE

> (1£000'8YG'6 5 XY : 20202) 1£000'880'€S 42 YV
B ERE B Y B LRI FWNBE SV HEHNE LEH L 120TH

> (1£000'68L'G0L'9KEY : &
0202) 1£000°605"097"9 i Y & 25 0 Ly i 22 M WG [ O Ly 2 0 ) B 2 2

"9|geInquisip Jou ale ydlym ‘(000’875 '69INY :020Z) 000'880°'€GGINY J0 sjendsoy iyoud
+ -lojjou palep|josuod s,dnoin oyl Jo SHyold paleNWNOOe ik |Z0Z Joquisdad LE 1B Se 9dueleq oyl Ul pepnjou|

‘uonisod [eloUBUl JO JUBWSIRIS PBIEPIOSUOD Byl Ul
» (000'681'G0L'99INY :0202) 000'60G'0G7'98GINY O SOAIBSEI PO1EPI|OSU0D By} 8sLAWOD SIUNOJOE BAISSAI 8SaY L

Sry'ob8'9  699'G6€  9LL'0GY'9  «xLVS'TLO'L«(LET'SL)  «L9G *CEV'0E  «(8V1'082) «612'86L «(6VO'LYE) «2LY'SBL'S L9T HIEHTL 41200 1¢0¢ Jequede( |g Y
(ess’8)  (e88'8) = - - - - - - - - - L KB s18p|oyseys Buj0u00-UoU 0} pred SpuspiA]
(90°16) - (9L0°L6) = - - - - - = (9L0°L6) = €l T ¥l H020¢ puspiaip 0¢0z [euld
= = = (L8L'6) = = = = L8L'6 - - - EINA R gL anesal snjdins Aloimels 01 uonendoiddy
= = = = = = (690 €T - - grzy) - HBEEENEYY aWalg 8L} Japun paisen aleys
698°0L 1€ 8€8'0L = = = 8€8'0L = = = = = 6¢ BELNOYIE TR 1uswabuelle JusluAed paseq-aleys pafas-Ainb3
bg - ] - - = = = = ¥s = = B — Aved paejes e Ag uonnguiuod |eyded
(eeo’t)  (615°1) L6y = = = = = = L6y - - ey B HEL SysaJ03Ul Bulj0AUd-UOU JO UORISINDOY
el we'loL = = = = = = = - - - A% BYEWEE S5IIBIPISANS JO UOIBPII0SUO/UOIISINDIY
LIEVEY 0086 LlS'vey  GLE'LLY 2099 - - - - - - - BHVHETES 1B8A BY) 10} BUIOOUI BAISUBYBIdWOD (10|
59’8 168°L 209'9 = 209'9 - - - - - - - BB YT E LB sue|d Jjousq paulyep o suied lusLusinsesway

YHBIHHES .1eaA 8y} 10} BLIOOUI BAISUBYBIAWOD JBYLQ
y98'G2y  6¥6'L SLE'LLY  GLE'LLY - - - - - - - - B S Jeah 8y} 10} Jj0Id
ySy'0vE'9  866'vEC  9GY'S0L'9  6LY'P99  (E€8'LZ) L95 £€99'02 (99.'2827)  zev's8L  (060°2vE)  96L'LL8'S L9 HLIH 141202 1207 Asenuer | 1y

A g2 Ees A g2 ‘ e
wAY  BEY gAY R¥Y ¥y wAY
000.8NH  000.8NY  000.8N¥  000.8WY  000.8WH 000,9NY
2y i 3:% # , Yz
W 7 EBHRHE ‘ Gy

\chw sisalajul |el0] man EIVERET] oAlesal oAlesal EIVERET]

10| Buij0u0d peueley  sebueyo  uonenyon) juswAed  aleys
-UoN |euenidy  abueyox3  paseq Ainseas]
-8leyS

HEYEEEVE

L

#AY

000.9NY 000.9NH

A2
FINET] EINENSY] E:fooom |evdea
snjdins |ende) wniweid  8leyg
Aoinieig aleys

JusJed 8y} JO SIBUMO 0} B|qEINGUNY

iz
<
B
L
£
4
i
i)
S
)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREREERRK

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021F12 A31HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Notes

B E

KERKLHPNEERE

2021
20214

RMB’000
AR TIT

Profit before tax 5 B ) E 270,475 418,185
Adjustments for: S EE
Finance costs % E A 9 17,834 17,391
Share of profits and losses of JE(E —E& & A 7] R
a joint venture and associates &N RIMAE R EE (83,554) (34,968)
Interest and investment income B K15 & WA 6 (77,446) (79,930)
Dividend income on a financial LXQ/‘CETE?F%HE@
asset at FVTPL Bt A ABENEmE
ERREKA 6 (2,795) (2,618)
Depreciation of property, plant W - B REE
and equipment weE 8 153,535 86,572
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 8 22,651 18,913
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEHH 8 6,693 7,897
Covid-19-related rent concessions HEARENTERS
from a lessor HEHEeSER 8 = (1,791)
Gain on bargain purchase = EWE KR 7 = (9,428)
Gain on lease termination %ﬁ%%ﬂ:qﬁlﬁ?’i 7 = (341)
Gain on lease modification TEEHEHSZ 7 - (15)
Fair value losses on financial UWARBEdFEAE
assets at FVTPL FEETAERMN SR
BEAABAEEBRE 7 27,417 25,140
Foreign exchange differences, net bE N = E )% 7 (26,798) (44,314)
Equity-settled share-based LR EERMD R
payment expense =3 39 10,110 8,721
Impairment losses on financial TREEREERE
assets, net FER 131,460 19,937
Impairment loss on an other HEMEy EEREREIE
intangible asset 11,150 3,588
Impairment loss on an investment R—HEEERRIZKRE
in a joint venture ZRBIEEE 212,679 —
673,411 432,939
Decrease/(increase) in inventories HFERL, (3 m) 211 (23,294)
Decrease in trade and bills FE R 5 20 e e U
receivables EER A 139,185 88,818
Increase in contract assets =y ’]ﬁ?i‘ hn (7,720) (7,720)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEfIFIE « {R:&
deposits and other receivables JJ@JEH& IE/JEK J >/
(42 90) 132,340 (782)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due  J&E W AL 5 2B 4
from related parties () (1,669) 3,912
Increase/(decrease) in trade and BB 5 FmE M ER
bills payables S®EMCRD) (31,986) 82,013
Increase/(decrease) in other H b JE S 5008 K PR ST
payables and accruals BN CRd) (102,807) 66,053
Increase in amounts due to related &1~ B8 B 75 ZOIE 1 N
parties 26,734 92,908
Decrease in retirement benefit RIKEFEER LD
obligations (1,392) (1,309)
Decrease in deferred income PR FE WA (88) —
Decrease in provision BER L (3,643) (1,189)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERERE

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z=2021F12 A31HIEFE

2021
20214
Notes RMB'000
B 7 AR®EF T
Cash generated from operations KEMEABREMRE 822,576 732,349
Interest received B F & 23,844 9,613
Income tax paid ERER (135,990) (98,274)
Net cash flows from operating KEEBFSHRESRE
activities FER 710,430 643,688
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREESNHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Investment income on financial UArBEFEEH
assets at FVTPL T AEBZNS R
BERERZ 24,837 55,746
Dividend received from a financial BURAAREEFSFZAE
asset at FVTPL HEETAEZNES M
B EWEZ RS 2,795 2,618
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BELEE
plant and equipment THH (198,434) (209,547)
Proceeds from disposal of items of EEWE « MEM&E
property, plant and equipment IH B T8 5/7R 2,096 7,399
Receipt of government grant for WEZE - BB MEE2
property, plant and equipment X 3 17 B 3,405 —
Additions to right-of-use assets FREEERIG N (28,824) —
Settlement of consideration for the WEEMELEERN
acquisition of other intangible HELE
assets - (8,000)
Purchases of financial assets at BENUAREEFEAR
FVTPL HE8)i ABE/
TREE (3,495,401) (6,336,405)
Proceeds from disposal of financial EENAABEEAR
assets at FVTPL HEBrABEN
EEEEFERIE 3,892,561 6,741,505
Purchases of other financial assets & B H fb 32 $5 A A
at amortised cost ATEMERMEE (984,000) (363,721)
Proceeds from disposal of other B B H 0 1% #E SH AR R
financial assets at amortised cost ATENEREEMS
B 359,597 126,768
Repayment from 10T hospitals REIOTER Z B 11,187 13,353
Repayment from a Sponsored RERPERBR ZER
Hospital = 5,893
Investments in associates REBENRZ2RE (869,117) (7,350)
Acquisitions of non-controlling W IR IR fE 2
interests (18,328) (67,503)
Acquisition/consolidation of WHE, & BEH B A R
subsidiaries 42 (651,281) 117,216
Settlement of consideration for the  UgEEM B A & HY
acquisition of subsidiaries HE#EE = (190)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted and  [R&IEF D EIRRITFER
pledged bank deposits B, (35 hn) 12,862 (17,417)
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEEBFE(FTA)
investing activities HEmEFE (1,936,045) 60,365
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SREREREBRE

Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021F12 A31HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING KEREEDH

ACTIVITIES REeERE
Sales of treasury shares &S E A7 AR 1D - 380
Repayment to the Sponsored [ 22 413 e 8 B 58 3K

Hospitals (1,555) —
New bank borrowings FTERITE 6,072,644 455,237
Repayment of bank borrowings RITIERAER (5,087,477) (315,438)
Principal portion of lease payments  FEMZHI A E 2B H (18,467) (8,683)
Capital contributions by non- IEFERAR R T E

controlling shareholders = 980
Capital contribution by a related —ZB@EHHEE

party 544 595
Dividend paid B E (91,076) (115,092)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ST F IR R 2

shareholders A% 2 (8,883) (10,634)
Distribution upon deregistration of a i — BB Q&8

subsidiary balis = (507)
Interest paid [RENEIES) (19,774) (14,220)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEFBE(FTH)

financing activities HemEFHE 845,956 (7,382)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBLEEWILN/

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CRA) 58 (379,659) 696,671
Cash and cash equivalents at FYReRBEEEEY

beginning of year 2,701,370 2,006,220
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXFE T EFE

changes, net 2,340 (1,521)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREELRASEED

AT END OF YEAR 2,324,051 2,701,370
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office of the
Company is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, PO Box 10240, Grand Cayman
KY1-1002, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of
business of the Company in Mainland China is located
at 14/F, Kunlun Center Office Building, No. 5
Courtyard, No. 9 Fuyi Street, Fengtai District, Beijing,
the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC").

During the vyear, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were mainly
engaged in the provision of general healthcare
services, hospital management services, group
purchasing organisation (“GPO") business and other
hospital-derived services in Mainland China.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are disclosed in note 50 to the financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at FVTPL which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

B RS MR AR MR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

E=HEREITRERARNHAS ST
R R BREE AR o NARIGEMIE
B2 b3 A4th  Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, PO Box
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Cayman lIslands * N2 BIFE A B A Y
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REE RNRABREME QAR (FH
[AEE ) T2RENPBEAMIRHER
BEERY  RHBREERS &
REBAEM (TGPOL) XB AR EMEL
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i EE50 B -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M =

31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

116

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

REMBHmERBEEE2021F12A31
HIEFEAREEMNFERE - WE QA
BAARHEEEMEEEFENE
B(BEEAEHTER) EXKEHEEH
H2MEELZHIREL R ZEMA
E R ER] - WREA MR E B RERE
EHYER RS (BNIRARF A EAR
SEERRREBEEHRNBRAE
&) IR FEBUIEHIRE o

ERARAPERIERAFREHRIRN
RZBORZESIALER - AEER
AHEEHREHRELHEARIKE
EFAHBEERIER B -

(@) HEREHROEMEREREA
RIMH BT

(b) HMAKLHPTELNERN @ &
() AKRBNERERLRECRERE-

f R R 2 I R Ty IR A R BIAEE
MR E IR KA B ERERR
B MBEARZEEIEAEEESE
HIEE AREIESFE AR LEEZREA
R EEARMEFERLEERARL -

Ba M EMEEBRARNSHEKRED YR
BEBRAEEERRHEE A RIFIERE
& BB SR S| BUF R R S SRS B 1R
B BN AKRERERARIBR S 2
BEEEARSARZENEERARE
- WA FXRBRSREANEGS
ARSI -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark

IFRS 9, IAS 39, Reform — Phase 2
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (early adopted)

Amendment to
IFRS 16

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M =

31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are

described below:

(a)

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial
reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-
free rate (“RFR"). The amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest
rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying
amount of financial assets and liabilities when
accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of
financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a
direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for
determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise
on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and
recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to
entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR s
designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable
requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an
entity to disclose additional information to enable
users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity's financial instruments and risk
management strategy.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank
borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars
based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") and United States dollars based on the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") as at
31 December 2021. The Group expects that
HIBOR will continue to exist and the interest rate
benchwork reform has not had an impact on the
Group’s HIBOR-based borrowings. For the LIBOR-
based borrowings, since the interest rates of
these borrowings were not replaced by RFRs
during the year, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group. If the interest rates of
these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a
future period, the Group will apply the above-
mentioned practical expedient upon the
modification of these borrowings provided that
the “economically equivalent” criterion is met.

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021
extends the availability of the practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for
which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendment recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier
application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on
1 January 2021. However, the Group has not
received covid-19-related rent concessions and
plans to apply the practical expedient when it
becomes applicable within the allowed period of
application.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5ot 7% S

31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

AREBWEEMBHRERTEA T H
18 i R A R AT S B BT BB BA 7
AR o

[ == s VAN

Amendments to
IFRS 3
Amendments to

IFRS 10 and IAS 28

IFRS 17

Amendments to
IFRS 17

Amendment to
IFRS 17

Amendments to
IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice

Statement 2
Amendments to
IAS 8
Amendments to
IAS 12

Amendments to
IAS 16

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts? *

Initial Application of IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds

BR#BREERAERL
]

BRA B REEAF105%R

B g ERE28% 2
3]

BRMHRELAFTHR

A
B 7
BR#BRELERE17H

5]

BB REEAE 175

5l

Eli-RR AL ivA )

BREEAE1RR
AR BEREENER
B EYEpA

Bl Rl 8%2@5

SR g3 BIE 1282 54T

EABAER

REZBREETLE
REZEHEE
HELTE
ﬁ@Aﬁz
FEA

B BHEENZ7
FHERG FHEE
A9 — HEER
by dik

BEDERRDZ
Fii’

Bt BRNRE

BittEE
BE-RFELY

before Intended Use'

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of

IAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract’
Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 1,

to IFRSs IFRS 9, lllustrative

2018-2020 Examples accompanying

IFRS 16, and IAS 41"

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June

2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to
IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M =

31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity's right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of
the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments on
the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of
that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the

Group are as follows:

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

° IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in |lllustrative Example
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of

incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and a joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associates or joint venture, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint venture is
included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint venture.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

BENRAAEENRE —RADR20%
BAREEPHEREaNER B
AHEREBEEATEN  c EARENIE
HES B E WSRO IEEREN
N - BN S A EHEBE LR K
K -

ARERAE-BARRY - BXHHER
HRAZEGIR NI B EEZERE
RAZEERE - KAEHNEHRER
BEZ ATRI E KRS - HEEHIER
HRRE R EFHKZEFIRZET—
HRABZHRFAE -

AEBRBERRREERARNIRETS
BEASEREESEHARGEEFE
AR E B BN A AR B®K T
Bk MEABREFEEAA % H&
TEHAERE - AEBEEGBERFN
BELTWBRRELRAEMEEBAD
REFABREERBRRMREEM2EK
A BEAN - KRB E R RS A E AR
BaHEBRAZY  AKEENEE
BEEEHMREREEETAEE (H
R  ARBEERABEQARRAGER
AIfE1 32 5 9 AR B 3R W e S TR A A AR B
BRBERARHALERANRESRYE

BRI SN - WHREE 2 A A B A AR
BB DA AEARERNGE AR

HABATREN—HH -

ERERZERERAT —T-—FRK

127



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M =

31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

128

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’'s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group measures its financial assets at FVTPL at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

NABERVBRATELRENA
BEMAE  ERYAREEAERE
BEZMHEKF I ARIERI TPt
ERARBEBRT DA :

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in F—H — BEUBNEEXEER
active markets for identical assets or TR TS R TR AR (E
liabilities %

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which FH — BEBHAREBEHERE

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax
assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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An assessment is made at the end of each reporting SMEKR  eRERTEEMNTRE
period as to whether there is an indication that /T\?EHI MR R EBE T BTl
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer ERAEL T - WMEZTR - &M
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication A el eRE - LRI EE (TREIER
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A B)EROBEERE  ERANUNETZ
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset ﬁ?ﬁ’]THﬂZ@i%ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬂrﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%Mﬁé
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been M EBRESETIERRBRRBTFE
a change in the estimates used to determine the ﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁiéf%ﬁﬁa/u\/)ﬁiéﬁ)%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmE’\J
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an IREE (FOBREAIITE,#H) - BER
amount higher than the carrying amount that would BREBEREEHANTABRE

have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: RTINERT » — AR REREEE
A B -
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (a) ZHAE—BALTHZALRED
person’s family and that person i B AL
()  has control or joint control over the Group; (i) Bl EEESIAER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAKEBEREEH K
(il is a member of the key management (i) AEAEENAEEGAAN
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the FTEBTHEEKE
Group;
or %
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

WE - BERERE(ERIREN R
PR RET I E RAE DR EE R -
WE - BELRBERENKAREEE
(B RATAI B B B2 @ AR S b B 1
BERENERBERAE

WE - BELRBERERAELEREE
MEBRRESRX - —RRELHR
BEDEXNEG - AN SRR ENER
T ARERAXEAMERZEENK
H{E  EREERA © W% BE K&
RENBEEMOATHER - BIAKHE
MR E 0 AR E A F R E R
BEXHBETNE -

P PR E R B AR S A A 4
BREYE R RS ER MR
M EHRE - AR EEEE
P

Buildings 2% to 5% B 2% &E5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of HEEENR A 10%

lease terms and 10% (A E & A%)
Medical equipment 10% to 20% BERE 10% £20%
Motor vehicles 10% to 20% T 10% Z20%
Office equipment 20% to 50% N 20% Z£50%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

EME - BELREBEENSBIBT
E A AFER - ZBENKAEGESD
REZID  BSEILDBILAEN
E-RE- MFERFHRTEREED
REFBFEERETR KA (0B
) e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings
and related leasehold improvements under
construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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The operating rights are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful economic lives of
16 to 48 years.

Sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite
useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The GSP Licence is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its estimated useful economic life of 46 months.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets. At inception or on
reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component and non-lease components, the Group
adopts the practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components and to account for the lease
component and the associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

AR RERBEYIRR A
REGE A EREEFIMI6E48F A
BARRBEH -

150 A 6 H AR R e R o AR T & [RIA B
AR A (] R B & 1R 51 B -

GSP#F A] 78 #% A AR AE (TR (B 5 1R 51
R - IR AE FT AT 4R A AR F Hi461E A
WEGOREH

AEBRGHNBEFEERENEEE
HEXBEHE - Ha O ASBMBHEM
BT aE—BRYRADRRIEE 2 £ Rz
B AZeNEHEKREHE -

AEBHMBHEERAE R NTE
HE(EHHEREEEEEHEER
o) c AEEEAEEAGBMELAESE
NRERERKRERGEEEENNE
REEE - NEeasHEERD LIFHER
D ZERFIERAEMTER  AKE
RAATEREDE Y TR IFEER
7 U HEERY RAEIFEER D
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Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-

line basis over the lease terms as follows:

Leasehold land
Leased properties
Medical equipment

50 to 60 years
1 to 9 years
1 to b years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

(a)
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(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)

less any lease incentives receivable, variable

recognised at the

lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g.,
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

a change to future lease

(b)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business
model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
model are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a ERMAREGEN(BEemBEXI R
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from B8 MOTAE E\E:1%/\I%%T\i%§zj
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if BENLESERRR  EEER A
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely T/TEI/EJHHH%WE'JﬁﬁIE?Q? g
related to the host; a separate instrument with the TEMTEZR: BREEHNIWIEURARE
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet B2 BEEHT ABa - BIZITET
the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is HHFEIRATERBEBITETAY
not measured at fair value through profit or loss. B e ARDTET EBRAARBEE
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with ARBEEZHNERRER - EEGL
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of ERHIREF AR RNIBERNEEMERLT
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is FIEBReRER HERMBEZURR
either a change in the terms of the contract that BEFEEEZH TN EENCREE
significantly modifies the cash flows that would EEFHER  JHETERTMG -

otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss

category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract BRAREGEHN(BEEeREETRE) M
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for MTETAENSERYK eMEETE
separately. The financial asset host together with the HERBRANTETABEEEYBEAUA
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its AEEFEREEZHTABESNESRE
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit E e

or loss.
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’'s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or
effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated -credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s
own equity instruments.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to disposal.
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

AR REREAME ReMRE
ZEVBF/EFRRE  EHERLAIRE
RERSDHNBERE ALK EE
gHEkE B-RRBAET=EARN
FHMERSRPERE  NRERE
KEERBRAEER S ERERTD
HERITE X °

REEMBYIRBERNE  RekRe
FEYVEFEFHRRE MRTHESE - HY
BRERSBENTEHFRLERSE
EHRUNEE -

WMEBESEHELRABAEMEOCEESHE
E) - BERAIBEZAR BRI EIABETT
B MAZBEE TN SRAER F(AaT
iy - RIRER R o

WAERFEBEXN - AR ERERND
BAEITEETABME KRS HR R
THRGEEENRE - 2CRRRRERF
[ e a4 10 2 A 0 S 0 0 PR B R REAR

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to be that which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one vyear, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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(a)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provision of general healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of in-patient services
is recognised over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time when the
services are provided.

Provision of hospital management services

Revenue from
management services is recognised over time
because the customer simultaneously receives

the provision of hospital

and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

The service fees are calculated based on pre-set
formulas set out in the arrangements and certain
service fees are subject to limitations primarily
relating to the IOT hospitals’
Hospitals' net income before tax (3 & 8%) and/
or the performance rating assessments of the
Group. Such service fees are accounted for as

and Sponsored

variable consideration and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of such service
fees because this method best predicts the
amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

(a)

(b)
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(c) GPO business

Revenue the GPO business generated from the
sale of medical products is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the medical products.

(d)  Provision of other hospital-derived services

Revenue from the provision of other hospital-
derived services is recognised at the point in
time when the consultation reports are issued to
the customer or when the consultation services
are completed.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e.,
goods or services to the customer).

transfers control of the related

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

() The costs are expected to be recovered.
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The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Company operates a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of
an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms
of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and share
awards is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees, who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan
which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The benefits are
unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension
plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability) and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at
the earlier of:

o the date of the plan amendment or curtailment;
and

o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss by function:

° service costs comprising current service costs,
past-service costs, gains and losses on

curtailments and non-routine settlements

° net interest expense or income
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Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company's memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

These financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’'s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.
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The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the vyear are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.
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In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

The Group entered into a series of IOT agreements
with certain not-for-profit hospitals and their sponsors
in which the Group agrees to make investments to the
hospitals and/or the sponsors to improve the medical
facilities of the hospitals in exchange for the right to
manage and operate the hospitals and receive
performance-based management fees for periods
ranging from 16 to 30 years. The operating rights are
expected to be transferred back to the hospitals or
their sponsors after the end of these periods.

Management assessed whether or not the Group has
control over these not-for-profit hospitals through the
IOT agreements and whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the hospitals’ relevant
activities unilaterally. In making that judgement,
management considered the composition of the
internal governance bodies and certain committees
which oversee the operations of the hospitals. After
assessment, management concluded that the Group
does not obtain the decision making power under
these bodies and committees to direct the relevant
activities of the hospitals, and the Group does not
control these hospitals. Instead, these IOT agreements
are considered management contracts to generate
management service income.

REAREESARRNBIETR  BY
RAbErZ @5t BRI - EREIEL T5
HPBHRRANEER T EBRRERT
82

REB EE T IFE R BB LS AR]
M —ZHOTH - Bt A KB R E[R
ZEBR R RBRAELRE - WE
Bl BERM - UIBREN F16Z|
BFETENHEAERE R EEHREE
Be 0 WERAE S B IR B RVIER - TRAHE S
BB EZEPRERRBEZTERNK
HEBHA -

EEEBEEANAKRERTHBE I EIES
Bl RASN BERE N KA AEE
ERBEBIOTHAREAZEIFEFELR
ZIEBIRE o AR FIEEY - BIREE R
EEBEREENNIEARBRETE
BEmMAK - KBFHE BEER
B AEBRESZERELZESN
IRREAEEBEAARAE) - AIAKHE
HHERMER I EEGE - ZFI0T
EMEERELEEERBERAZERS
#) o

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group acquired the sponsorship rights from
other parties and became the sponsor of certain
not-for-profit hospitals. The Group also entered into a
series of service contracts with those not-for-profit
hospitals in which the Group agrees to provide
management services to the hospitals and receive
management fees. According to the service contracts,
the management fees to be received by the Group
shall be comprised of supply chain management
service fees and hospital management fees. The
supply chain management service fees were based on
a certain percentage of the procurement of the
hospitals, whereas the hospital management service
fees were based on certain percentages of the
revenue and net income before tax (U832 &5 %%)
generated by the hospitals.

Management assessed whether or not the Group has
control over these not-for-profit hospitals through the
sponsorship rights and service contracts and whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the
hospitals’ relevant activities unilaterally. In making that
judgement, management considered the composition
of the internal governance bodies and certain
committees which oversee the operations of the
hospitals. After assessment, management concluded
that the Group obtains the power to direct the relevant
activities of these hospitals and controls these
hospitals.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the fair value less costs of disposal of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the fair value less costs of disposal requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. As at 31
December 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill was
RMB2,276,258,000 (2020 : RMB1,471,868,000). Further
details are given in note 17.

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the healthcare sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in note 27 and note 28 to
the financial statements, respectively.

Business combination requires an extensive use of
accounting estimates to allocate the purchase price to
the fair market values of the assets and liabilities
purchased. Determining the fair value of property, plant
and equipment and financial assets at FVTPL at the
date of business combination requires the Group to
make estimates and assumptions that can materially
affect its consolidated financial statements.

Any difference in the purchase price and the fair
values of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as either goodwill in the consolidated
statement of financial position or gain on bargain
purchase in profit or loss. The Group’s business
combinations have resulted in goodwill, which is
subject to yearly impairment testing and whenever
there is an indication that goodwill may be impaired.
The Group also assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets
(including the right-of-use assets) at the end of each
reporting period.
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The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are given in note 17
to the financial statements.
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The Group’s management estimates the service fees
from the hospital management services, which contain
variable consideration. The relevant service fees are
recognised based on pre-set formulas set out in the
arrangements and subject to limitations primarily
relating to the IOT hospitals’ and Sponsored Hospitals’
net income before tax (W # #) and/or the
performance rating assessments of the Group. Where
the finalised net income before tax (U 4584) is more
or less than expected, or the finalised performance
ratings of the Group are higher or lower than
expected, the difference between the finalised revenue
and the estimated revenue is recognised in profit or
loss.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a)  Self-owned hospitals — this segment engages in
the provision of out-patient and in-patient services
by the consolidated hospitals and the provision of
services to the unconsolidated hospitals;

(b)  1O0T/operate-transfer (“OT"”) hospitals — this
segment engages in the provision of services to
IOT hospitals and OT hospitals; and

(c) Others — this segment engages in the provision
of services to other kinds of clients.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

AREBEIEE A BREIEREHRE
g ETEANENE - HERSED
RIBLZYEIATE AR - XXER
T2 HRIOTE R &S B WS s
BN AR BRRE R EORE -
RN EHSZ NP RIEREAE
BHREKRBERERIENRTEL - BY
RIB R AR et B R s AV 2=
B e

RERE N AEERERG AR
BE - YA TH = AT RELES

%

@) BHEBRE — ZoHEFRER
WERHPIZ RERRS - UK
) I fF 2% B8 e B2 fH AR 7%

(b) 10T/&E — BX([OT))ERK
— O EBMERIOTE N OTE
PRiR L ARTS + &

(©) Eft — ZoabieEmEMER
BEP MR -

ERERZERERAT —T-—FRK

169



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk M =

31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

170

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
facilitating decision-making process of resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measurement of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss
before tax except that fair value gains/losses on
financial assets at FVTPL, dividend income on a
financial asset at FVTPL, gain on bargain purchase,
investment income on financial assets at FVTPL,
investment income on other financial assets at
amortised cost, unallocated interest and investment
income, unallocated impairment losses on financial
assets, net, impairment loss on an other intangible
asset, equity-settled share-based payment expense,
unallocated finance costs, foreign exchange
differences, net, unallocated share of profits and losses
of associates, as well as other unallocated income,
other unallocated administrative expenses, and other
unallocated expenses and losses are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, financial assets at
FVTPL, other financial assets at amortised cost,
restricted and pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
changed the internal reporting structure for making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. The “consolidated hospitals” segment and
the "“unconsolidated hospitals” segment have been
aggregated into a new reportable operating segment of
“self-owned hospitals”. Accordingly, the amounts
previously reported under the reportable operating
segments have been aggregated to conform with the
current year's presentation.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue

and results, and assets and liabilities by reportable

operating segments.

Segment revenue and results
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2021F12A31ALEE
External revenues shEpdas
General healthcare services GEBERE 3,088,545 - - 3,088,545
Hospital management services BlREERE 37,880 33,500 - 71,380
Third-party supply chain service fees E-HHREEREE 179,776 54,356 = 234,132
GPO business GPO%7% 662,258 365,987 - 1,028,245
Other hospital-derived services HBRITERE — - 25,175 25,175
Inter-segment revenue ’“BFWI@
Hospital management services BiR% 93,014 - - 93,014
Third-party supply chain service fees %Eﬁﬁi\ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?g (831) - - (831)
GPO business GPO%7 225,643 - - 225,643
Other hospital-derived services HinBRITE RS 15,530 = 4,216 19,746
Segment revenue Pl 4,301,815 453,843 29,391 4,785,049
Eliminations %] (333,356) - (4,216) (337,572)
Consolidated revenue 2EeNE 3,968,459 453,843 25,175 4,447,471
Segment cost BETIE (3,169,038) (315,087) (29,797)  (3,513,922)
Other income Hep A 32,395 7,915 6,012 46,322
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (11,791) (4,533) (72) (16,396)
Administrative expenses THER (308,498) (18,602) (5,326) (332,426)
Finance costs HBER (2,450) = (66) (2,516)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net SREERESBTFE (77,539) - - (77,539)
Impairment loss on an investment in a joint venture R-—EAERRZEEZREFE (212,679) - - (212,679)
Other expenses ﬁ’rﬁl,ﬁﬁ (2,488) = (463) (2,951)
Share of profit of a joint venture ElE—RagArFE 1519 - - 1,519
Share of profits of associates EEBENRFE 82,034 - - 82,034
Segment results PEEE 299,924 123,536 (4,537) 418,923
Fair value losses on financial assets at FVTPL AR EEEAEZBHABEN

TREAELABERE (27,417)
Dividend income on a financial asset at FVTPL AR EE 2 BEZBH ABRN

SREENRSMA 2,795
Investment income on financial assets at FVTPL WAREBEIEBARETABEN

SRHEEREMA 24,837
Investment income on other financial assets at HiiE A ENepnEE

amortised cost REWRA 19,276
Unallocated interest and investment income FOBRFBRBERA 25,418
Unallocated impairment losses on financial assets, net ~ A2 E¢BEERBERTE (53,921)
Impairment loss on an other intangible asset EtEMEENBER (11,150)
Equity-settled share-based payment expense BREEEEURDATHRAZ (10,110)
Unallocated finance costs FARYHER (15,318)
Foreign exchange differences, net ERERFH 26,798
Unallocated share of profits of associates ROBEEEHEARFE 1
Other unallocated income ERARBA 2,052
Other unallocated administrative expenses EtRARTBER (129,297)
Other unallocated expenses R HRER (2,412)
Profit before tax A 77 270,475
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. K& HER w

(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

DM ERERE @

Self-owned |0T/0T
hospitals hospitals Others
BAER  I0T/OTER it
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
(Restated)

RMB'000
ARETT

Year ended 31 December 2020 220205128318 LFEE
External revenues IS e
General healthcare services GABERY 1,643,620 — — 1,643,620
Hospital management services BREERE 47,889 31,012 — 78,901
Third-party supply chain service fees E-HHREREREE 108,683 71,603 - 180,286
GPO business GPO¥R 163,267 658,241 — 821,508
Other hospital-derived services HibBRITERS — — 26,335 26,335
Inter-segment revenue R EL €
Hospital management services BlREBRE 58,957 — — 58,957
GPO business GPO%7 184,404 - — 184,404
Other hospital-derived services HiBRITERSE 4,310 — 2,865 7,175
Segment revenue AERE 2,211,130 760,856 29,200 3,001,186
Eliminations g (247,671) - (2,865) (250,536)
Consolidated revenue GEakE 1,963,459 760,856 26,335 2,750,650
Segment cost PEKA (1,527,682) (566,051) (20,410) (2,114,143)
Other income Hel A 14,075 9,588 5,526 29,189
Other gains Hnlfa 356 - - 356
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (6,280) (7.921) - (14,201)
Administrative expenses THER (157,806) (33,641) (10,374) (201,821)
Finance costs HHBER (2,422) - (22) (2,444)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net CREENESRTE (18,258) (1,920) - (20,178)
Impairment loss on an other intangible asset EtEREERESR - (3,588) - (3,588)
Other expenses HtwBA (7.173) - (219) (7,392)
Share of profit of a joint venture EE—FAE 0B 1,072 — — 1,072
Share of profits of associates AR & AR - 34,047 - 34,047
Segment results PUEE 259,341 191,370 836 451,547
Fair value losses on financial assets at FVTPL AR EEFEALEBHABEN

CREELRBERR (25,140
Dividend income on a financial asset at FVTPL AL BE;FEEREHFABRD

SREENRSMA 2,618
Gain on bargain purchase HEWE 9,428
Investment income on financial assets at FVTPL AR EE RSB ABRN

SREERERA 55,746
Investment income on other financial assets at HtRB Rt enemEE

amortised cost BERA 2,955

Unallocated interest and investment income AABRFERTERA 11,641
Unallocated impairment losses on financial assets, net A2 E 4 BEEREFEFSE 241
Equity-settled share-based payment expense BREEEURMETEX (8,721)
Unallocated finance costs FARMBER (14,947)
Foreign exchange differences, net ERERFHE 44,314
Unallocated share of losses of associates AOEEEHEARER (151)
Other unallocated income HEt R HEBA 2,161
Other unallocated administrative expenses R ARTBER (113,222)
Other unallocated expenses HtRkHERER (285)
Profit before tax BRIFE 418,185
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. K€ 2 ER @

(continued)

THEEREE

Segment assets and liabilities

Self-owned |0T/0T
hospitals hospitals

ERER I0T/OTZ bz
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT

Others
Hify 1]

T ARETT

As at 31 December 2021 R2021512A31A
Segment assets PHEE 3,146,178 256,595 75,389 3,478,162
Goodwill Bl 2,276,258
Financial assets at FVTPL AR BEFEAEZHA

BRENEREE 65,301
Other financial assets at amortised cost HinRBER AT ENSRERE 908,701
Restricted and pledged bank deposits RHEME ERRITER 4,592
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHSEED 2,324,051
Corporate and other unallocated assets ARIREMANEREAE 2,224,915
Elimination of inter-segment receivables AEBEEYTEE H (814,378)
Total assets BEE 10,467,602
Segment liabilities AHEE 1,651,377 23,589 62,804 1,737,770
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEBTER 1,646,624
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities RAREMKARERE 1,051,141
Elimination of inter-segment payables AREERTEEH (814,378)
Total liabilities BERE 3,621,157

Self-owned |0T/OT
hospitals hospitals
ERER I0T/OTE %

Others
Hity 1]

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFTL AR
(Restated)
(mE351)

G ARETT

As at 31 December 2020 R2020512A31H
Segment assets AHEE 3,534,469 731,302 70,173 4,335,944
Goodwill 5k 1,471,868
Financial assets at FVTPL AR BEEREZHHA

BRMeREE 198,014
Other financial assets at amortised cost HiREEKATENEREE 265,022
Pledged bank deposits BEABITER 17,454
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY 2,701,370
Corporate and other unallocated assets RAREMKAREE 270,755
Elimination of inter-segment receivables P BB R (297,234)
Total assets BEE 8,963,193
Segment liabilities AHEE 1,243,196 22,602 71,324 1,337,122
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEBTER 684,301
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ARREMRSIEERE 898,550
Elimination of inter-segment payables ABEERTEEH (297,234)
Total liabilities Baf 2,622,739
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. K& 9 3ER @)
(continued)
Geographical information ihE &R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) HKEIZBEFE KA
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AREETIT
Mainland China/the PRC FE A, 4,447,477 2,750,650
The revenue information above is based on the A ERAEBEREE 2ttt -

locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets (b) HFREEE
The Group's operations are located in the PRC REB 2 EEFHUNPER - H
and substantially all of the Group's non-current REREEZzE2HIEREBEEY
assets are located in the PRC. LA E o
5. REVENUE 5. W=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wamo T

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBETT
Revenue from contracts with EP&ERKA
customers 4,447,477 2,750,650
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5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& m
Revenue from contracts with customers EFERWBA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) Wz EH A
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE2021F12A31 HiFFZF

Other

General Hospital hospital-

healthcare management GPO derived
services services business services  Elimination Total

RER  BREE Ak
AR 7% % GPOXE®  FTERH H3 5t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Types of goods or services BRARBER

General healthcare services REBRRE

In-patient {Ehz RS 1,587,188 - - - - 1,587,188

Out-patient P2 RS 1,501,357 = = = = 1,501,357

3,088,545 = = - - 3,088,545

Hospital management services BREBRY

From self-owned hospitals REEEER - 130,894 - - (93,014) 37,880

From 10T hospitals REIOTER - 15,598 - - - 15,598

From OT hospitals REOTER - 17,902 - - - 17,902

From third party suppliers (note) REE=HHER () - 233,301 - - 831 234,132
- 3976% - - (92183) 305512

GPO business GPOX#

From self-owned hospitals REEHER = = 887,901 - (225,643) 662,258

From 10T hospitals KAIOTER - - 365,987 - - 365,987
- - 1253888 - (225643 1028265

Other hospital-derived services HitBRTERY = = = 44,921 (19,746) 25,175

Total &t 3,088,545 397,695 1,253,888 44,921 (337,572) 4,447,477

Timing of revenue recognition He 2 ki Y 5

A point in time RE (AR 2 1,501,357 - 1,253,888 44,921 (245,389) 2,554,777

Over time R—RERA 1,587,188 397,695 = = (92,183) 1,892,700

Total At 3088545 397,695 1253888 44921  (331572) 4447477
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& m
Revenue from contracts with customers EFAERWA @
(continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (a) WmEHR A &)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z2020F12831HIFFZE

Other

General Hospital hospital-

healthcare management GPO derived
services services business services  Elimination

2Bz
GRBERE BREERY GPO%7% TR B8 1)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT AREBTE AR%TT ARETE AR%Tn

Types of goods or services BRI BB ER
General healthcare services FEBERE
In-patient bR 763,313 — — — — 763,313
Out-patient M2 R% 880,307 - - - - 880,307
1,643,620 — — — — 1,643,620
Hospital management services BREERS
From self-owned hospitals REBEER — 106,846 — — (58,957) 47,889
From |0T hospitals KEIOTER — 21,717 — — — 21,717
From an OT hospital RE—FOTER — 9,295 — — — 9,295
From third party suppliers (note) REE=HHERE () — 180,286 — — — 180,286
— 318,144 — — (58,957) 259,187
GPO business GPO%7#
From self-owned hospitals REBEER — — 347,671 — (184,404) 163,267
From 10T hospitals RAIOTER — — 658,123 — — 658,123
From an OT hospital RE—HOTZER — — 118 — — 118
— — 1,005,912 — (184,404) 821,508
Other hospital-derived services H BT ERE — — — 33,510 (7,175) 26,335
Total =H) 1,643,620 318,144 1,005,912 33,510 (250,536) 2,750,650
Timing of revenue recognition BRI A
A point in time REEEES 880,307 — 1,005,912 33,610 (191,579) 1,728,150
Over time R — RN 763,313 318,144 - - (58,957) 1,022,500
Total ait 1,643,620 318,144 1,005,912 33,510 (250,536) 2,750,650
Note: P aE
The Group entered into agreements with its third party suppliers AEEHEAS = FHERFTIRSERR
for the joint development of a regional integrated pharmaceutical NERAEMEERE B EREREERE
and/or medical consumable supply chain management system (the W ((EREELRERR] - AEE Rt ER
“Supply Chain Joint Development Agreements”). The Group IREHERETIERE - WiRREEELER

provides supply chain management services to suppliers and HATHMOTEE AN ERBR N o
recognises relevant revenue based on pre-set formulas set out in

the Supply Chain Joint Development Agreements.
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Information about the Group's performance
obligations is summarised below:

General healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of general healthcare
services is mainly derived from hospital services
provided at the consolidated hospitals, which is
recognised when the related services have been
rendered to customers.

For in-patient services, customers normally
receive in-patient treatment which contains
various treatment components that are all highly
interdependent and regarded as a single
performance obligation. The period of in-patient
services is usually within about eleven days.
Since the patient simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the Group's
performance in the medical treatment, the
relevant revenue of in-patient services is
recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. The
progress towards the complete satisfaction of
performance obligation is measured by direct
measurements of the value of individual products
or services transferred by the Group to the
customer.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time, i.e.
when the services are provided.

Hospital management services

The Group provides comprehensive hospital
management services to hospitals and receives a
management fee from each of the hospitals. The
Group also receives supply chain management
service fees from third party suppliers through
setting up a supply chain management system.

ot 755 R 2 B =

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

AEEROFEHOERBLLT -

e BRIRE

REFSBEERFEENKREE
ZRENGRE R HERR
% HRAE P R AR RS B
R -

HRERRE  EPBEERXE
boaE HRBE&8E2HMER
*HE@&%EZ@Z%E—E%’J%E%E’UM
BHD ERERBEROT—
RZW > ARE AR R UE KB
FREASEETERRENN
Eb AR 75 H AR B M 2R 72 & 40 B
BBSETRENERFHER N
RIER - TRBHORGHEERETS
ERERFEARBERNETPEE
FERIE MR EEREE -

HRAFI 22 AR 7% &0 k25 72 K (B B )
B (ADER AR TS B ) AR

Ebr B IR
AEEMERREREEBRER

RBILWIRERE - AEEIE
BET—EHEREIERRESE
=77 e v WA 5 B IR AR A
% o

ERERZERERAT —T-—FRK
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31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

Hospital management services (continued)

For the hospital management services rendered
on various aspects of daily operations of the
hospitals mentioned above, the contracts contain
multiple deliverables. As such services have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer, it is
therefore regarded as a single performance
obligation.

Revenue from the provision of hospital
management services is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards the
complete satisfaction of performance obligation is
measured by direct measurements of the value of
the services transferred by the Group to the
customer. The relevant revenue is recognised
based on pre-set formulas set out in the
arrangements and subject to limitations primarily
relating to the 10T hospitals’ and Sponsored
Hospitals’ net income before tax (W 3z 45 4) and/
or the performance rating assessments of the
Group.

The Group receives the payments of service fees
on a quarterly or yearly basis after the provision
of the services. A contract asset is recognised
where the Group’'s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer is conditional.

The estimated amounts of variable consideration
are updated to reflect changes in factors that
attributes to the measurement of consideration
for the performance obligations satisfied.
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GPO business

The Group derives revenue from the sale of
merchandise, such as pharmaceuticals, medical
devices and medical consumables. Revenue from
GPO business is recognised when control of
merchandise is transferred to the customer, i.e.
when the merchandise is delivered and
simultaneously accepted by the customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
accepted as this is the point of time when the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Other hospital-derived services

It mainly represents the provision of professional
medical consultation services. The relevant
revenue is recognised at a point in time, i.e.
when the consultation reports are issued to the
customer or when the consultation services are
completed.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

6. OTHER INCOME

Interest and investment income on:
Financial assets at FVTPL

6. HflA

2021
20214

RMB'000
ARETT
MERZEERA
RonEEAEAR

2020
20204
RMB'000
AR®ET T

BB ABENES R
BE 24,837 55,746
Other financial assets at amortised HARE NG 26
cost TREE 19,276 2,955
Receivables from IOT hospitals R EIOTE R 2 fEU
A 7,915 9,588
Bank deposits RITFER 23,844 9,613
Loan to a Sponsored Hospital ) — SR B b iR i
&N 1,574 2,028
Dividend income on a financial asset RARBEFEAHES
at FVTPL AFABRRNEREED
A B A 2,795 2,618
Government grants I #7 BY) 2,938 3,772
Others Hib 37,521 17,990
120,700 104,310

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7. HtWaE REEFE

2021 2020

20214 20204F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFTT AR®BTT

Gain on bargain purchase R = 9,428

Gain on lease termination WIEHE W= - 341

Gain on lease modification MEZE R - 15
Fair value losses on financial assets NAREBEFEAHES

at FVTPL FRABEGNEREE

AREEER (27,417) (25,140)

Foreign exchange differences, net PEN ZE S 26,798 44,314

(619) 28,958
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31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. HiaIFE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after RNEBOBATFIE LM (GEA) A
charging/(crediting): THESRH :
2021
20214
Notes RMB’000
B 5 AR®EF T
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAK 2,301,267 1,469,284
Depreciation of property, plant ¥% - BiE N & E
and equipment e 15 153,535 86,572
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEERE
assets 16(a) 22,651 18,913
Amortisation of intangible mEEBH
assets (included in cost of (FFASHE R AN)
sales) 18 6,693 7,897
Total depreciation and WEREHERE
amortisation 182,879 113,382
Lease payments not included FEERHEEEETEN
in the measurement of lease HERK
liabilities 16(c) 10,791 4,609
Auditor's remuneration % BN B 4,330 3,770
Employee benefit expense BT/
(including directors’ (BIEEEHE)
remuneration) (note 10): (FFsE10) -
Wages, salaries, bonuses ITE - %o
and allowances TE4T 2Bk 1,082,934 653,088
Equity-settled share-based RS EE
payment expense BB 10,110 8,721
Pension scheme RKE FHEI
contributions* 86,888 23,088
1,179,932 684,897
Pending medical dispute FARABEFZRFD
litigation provision: B
Additional provision g 37 - 1,052
Impairment of trade FEWE 5 5RIB R E
receivables, net* HER 27 77,647 20,432
Impairment/(reversal of CEMEERECRE
impairment) of financial B (Gt AR
assets included in HIE - REBES R
prepayments, deposits and H b pEURGRIR) FRE*
other receivables, net* 29 37,272 (495)
Impairment of receivables from  JEUZIOT & Bz 18
|IOT hospitals* B * 21 16,541 —
Covid-19-related rent HEARHOIERS
concessions from a lessor HEHeER 16(c) = (1,791)
Gain on lease termination HEX IR 16(c) = (341)
Gain on lease modification HESE W 16(c) = (15)
* Included in “Impairment losses on financial assets, net” in the * FFAGAEEREANS@MEERAEBBT
consolidated statement of profit or loss. ] e
# There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group # WEBZ MR ATHANER (EREX) Ak
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. BARIR B KT -

ERBREZERERAT —Z=_——F3F® 181



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BIKEH

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBEBRI>TWET :

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AREBTT

Interest on bank and other borrowings 817 & H b & 5 FIl & 12,621 13,012

Interest on payables to the Sponsored  F&{< 5% 3 i B& b 20 E 2
Hospitals FE 493 765
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 3,120 3,242
Others Hi 1,600 372
17,834 17,391

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EER AT 2 <

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the BEEBBERZAERAA([EH
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the BT #EH EMAR - BB(AENE
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong 1) 25383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) ()& R LA
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), A (BRBESMNRER) BO)E 250
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong EEZNMARFANNESHEEDT ¢

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

Group
KEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBET T AREETIT
Fees we 1,427 1,836
Other emoluments: Hihi g -
Salaries and allowances e KRG 5,154 6,328
Performance related bonuses RIREERIELL 5,355 9,199
Equity-settled share-based payment IRAERR S E AR N =X
expense A 2,067 2,067
Pension scheme contributions RIRE FT MK 145 57
12,721 17,651
14,148 19,487
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMU NERATION (continued)

In prior years, certain directors were awarded shares,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the
Share Award Scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 39 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such shares, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

10. EERABB 2L @

FEURTFE - RIEA R R M A R T
g FTESEHEYAEEMNRG ME
A - FIEENM T RA M S It
FRNHENFBPERSRERNOA
BEDRETBRETE - st ARFHH
BERWEH  CHALLERERRA
B E -

(a) BAKHITES

FALZNTFRLIFERTESNE
Ep NS

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk Anthony HHE MBS A
(SR MBSEA)* 589 887
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB B S S A4
(BB 5 % 4F) 346 443
Mr. Lee Kar Chung (ZEREX4) FRELAE 243 240
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HE R+
(i t) 249 266
1,427 1,836
* During the vyear, the Group recognised an equity-settled * FA - AEERAAEREERTH

share-based payment expense of RMB1,069,000 (2020:
RMB1,069,000) in respect of the shares awarded to Mr. Wu
Ting Yuk Anthony.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2020: Nil).

RN ERIZE S EE ARG RAL
AR#1,069,0007T (20204 : ARH
1,069,0007T) °

FRMEEMMENBIIERNTE
EMENS (20204 : M) o

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EER#ERBR M < @

REMU N ERAT'ON (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-
executive directors

(b) BITEERFHUITES

Equity-settled
Performance  share-based Pension
Salaries and related payment scheme Total
allowances bonuses contributions remuneration
74 gk Rike
LAY e SR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT ARETT AREBTT
Executive directors: YITES:
Mr. Song Qing (/& % 4) REFE - - 285 - 285
Mr. Cheng Libing (A% £ 5t 4 ) ARy 2,192 2,447 285 53 4,977
Ms. Ren Yuan (fEE % 1) FEZLT 1,604 1,666 214 39 3,523
Mr. Shan Baojie (EE 75 4)* BERGEY - - - - -
Ms. Fu Yanjun ({$#E3# 22 £) B Z+* 1,358 1,242 214 53 2,867
5,154 5,355 998 145 11,652
Non-executive directors: FYTES:
Mr. Hu Hui (B384 ) [l bt = = = = =
Mr. Wang Yan* TERE = = = = =
5,154 5,355 998 145 11,652
Equity-settled
Performance  share-based Pension
Salaries and related payment scheme Total
allowances bonuses contrib remuneration
Eo3iiiN | j
e TE4L Meaat
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Song Qing (& % 4£) RIBFE - — 285 — 285
Mr. Cheng Libing (A3 &5t 4) KiERE 2,688 3,598 285 4 6,575
Ms. Ren Yuan (EE%ZT) fFai+ 1,823 3,146 214 49 5,232
Ms. Fu Yanjun (ff#3E 2 1) MHBRLL 1,817 2,455 214 4 4,490
6,328 9,199 998 57 16,582
Non-executive director: FUTES:
Mr. Wang Yan (£ E % 4) IERAE - - - — -
6,328 9,199 998 57 16,582
* On 25 August 2021, Mr. Wang Yan resigned as a non- * MR2021F8H25H » TESEREIE

executive director and Mr. Shan Baojie was appointed as a
non-executive director.

# On 30 December 2021, Ms. Fu Yanjun resigned as an
executive director, Mr. Shan Baojie was re-designated from
a non-executive director to an executive director and Mr. Hu
Hui was appointed as a non-executive director.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable
by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office (2020: Nil).

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable (2020: Nil). No
consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services (2020:
Nil). There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors, their controlled body
corporate and connected entities (2020: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2020: Nil).

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2020: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2020: two) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

10. EERABB 2L @

FA - AEEREREENREMNE
MBS EREMARRE RN AR E
B 2 B2 B S BB AR (B (20204F : ) o

FA - WEBR I EERE T EE X
BRAEEXNHEHRAKREN - MEsk
Mt BT E AR (20204 - ) -
BRARRHEERENE =FRHURE
% & YR (20204F : &) < R BB MR
B HEHlepi A NERMERERN
EFR - EERIEMR S (20204 :
&)

FABMBES B NBRXRBREL
o] B 1) %2 HF (20204F = &) o

"M ENBESHES
FRNREUE=FEE B E=4(2020
F ZR)EF FEMEFHBIEN L
AP EE10 o B B8 G W FE B W & (2020
F WB)EaFES (WEAARAE
ERRH) NS FBOT ¢

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTET

Salaries and allowances e HEah 2,582 3,848

Bonuses TEAT 1,980 3,472
Equity-settled share-based payment T 55 45 E AR (D AP 3R

expense 53 428 428

Pension scheme contributions (defined iRk $ 5T 3%
contribution scheme) (FREHENRETED 105 8
5,095 7,756

ERBRERERAF
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E R E

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES M. A UGEEFREREw

(continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

e F T BENIFEE IR
SFEEHBLT

Number of employees

EE&H

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0018 T E
3,000,0007% 7T 1 —

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 TE
3,500,000/ 7T 1 —

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/ L&
4,500,0007% 7T - 2
2 2

In prior years, shares were awarded to non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in
respect of their services to the Group, further details
of which are included in the disclosures in note 39 to
the financial statements. The fair value of such shares,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil).

HAREE - RIFESNFRERDH
BERAAKERERSED AREFR TR
o FIBER M BRI o FK
NEREENEREXBERANRAEE
TR T BHIEE - st ARNFHHHRE
BWeR CMALMEEIFEERNIEAE
BERSFHEEMSORKE -

FA- AEBEROUSRSHES X
BN EMMEEREMAREE LR
IR SR BB 2 B2 ) SR B A (B (2020
FE)-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. INCOME TAX

The PRC enterprise income tax has been provided at
the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the estimated
assessable income arising in the PRC during the year.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2020: Nil).

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

12. Fi8 %

ERBEEAGETERRRAL @ RAF
B AR B E TS 25% (2020
F:25%) MR AEERAEE RN
EEEEELED BN EGHRERBRFE -
&t g),ﬂi\ TR & B T 15 11 8 % (2020

2021 2020
20214

20204
RMB'000
ARBEFIT

RMB’000
ARETTT

Current — Mainland China

BIER — B A

Charge for the year rEEER 129,388 99,138
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFEREETR
in prior years (EBRERE) 2,591 (867)
Deferred (note 36) IERE (F15E36) (287,368) (407)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year AEEHBEEAR,/(HR)
BEE (155,389) 97,864

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the PRC statutory tax rate to the tax
charge/(credit) at the Group's effective tax rate is as

AT BDRE B R E R ATFE
B AREE G AR EAENTIRER,
(%) WEERMT :

follows:

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARBTT

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBTIT

Profit before tax 75t Al 270,475 418,185
Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate of P BLEE B E25%

25% (2020: 25%) (20204 : 25%) &Y

I8 67,619 104,546

Lower tax rates enacted by specific BEREERETHRIE

jurisdictions RS 443 (1,029)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of LB HAIR B EAFI E A

previous periods TR 2,591 (867)
Profits and losses attributable to a joint [E{H—FEAZ A A&

venture and associates g N a M E R EE (20,888) (8,742)
Income not subject to tax RETRIMA (17,979) (14,938)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR FRIBHR A T 22,168 15,478
Super deduction on eligible research BERMEXAER

and development costs B AR (389) —
Tax losses utilised from previous BAREEANTREEER

periods (2,856) (5,661)
Tax losses not recognised KRR A 75 B 18 11,364 5,147
Deferred tax credit upon derecognition  #X |FFERERIiHE N RIS S

of sponsorship rights and service FIEAAIRER IR R

contracts (220,828) —
Others Hitb 3,366 3,930
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's REEBURBERTIE

effective tax rate BR/(ER) (155,389) 97,864

ERBRERERAF



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

12 INCOME TAX (continued)

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting
to RMB27,275,000 (2020: RMB11,349,000) is included
in “Share of profits and losses of associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

13. DIVIDENDS

Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
Final 2020 — HK8.82 cents (2019:
HK10 cents) per ordinary share

A2

12. Fr 8% @

DIEBERANTERAARE
27,275,0007C (20204 : AR ¥
11,349,0007T) B & Er A BmMER L
[ E R RFEREE] -

13. BB

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREEFTT

RMB'000
ARETT

ERSAFEADEN

2020 KRE] — &
B 8.828

(20194F : 1071L) 94,054 119,218
Less: Dividend for shares held under B IREBERD R EhE 2
the Share Award Scheme B RD RS (2,978) (4,126)
91,076 115,092
AV A 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Final dividend proposed after the end of  ¥R& HiFK % KR
the reporting period: REARRE. -
Proposed final 2021 — HK12 cents B 12552021 F K &
(2020: HK8.82 cents) per ordinary — EREER
share 12781l (20204 -
8.82/81l) 155,601 114,367

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’'s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

REFRFIR RS HF AR BRRE
B BT RBEF ARG LI -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share are based on:

Earnings EF
Profit for the year attributable to

ordinary equity holders of the parent

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

14. oA EERBEREAARE
HEERER

BRERREERFIRBIATHES
H o

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB'000
ARBT T

RMB’000
ARETT

R R BRERLEE
BNz B RRE R

for the purpose of the basic and BafEARGFE
diluted earnings per share calculation pE 417,915 310,131

Number of shares

gnE- 4=
2021 2020
20214 20204
‘000 ‘000
+ +
Shares Bz 5
Weighted average number of ordinary  FA{EtEFRERET 2
shares in issue during the year for MmEFHFARNDET
the purpose of the basic earnings per TR S B
share calculation 1,255,952 1,255,930
Effect of dilution — weighted average  JIEFH L BREE #8
number of ordinary shares: -2
Shares awarded under the Share BRI 15 2B AT IR
Award Scheme Z WA 7,777 5,140
Weighted average number of ordinary  FA{E:tEZKRE SR 2
shares in issue during the year for mEFEHFA
the purpose of the diluted earnings EETEMEEREA
per share calculation 1,263,729 1,261,070

The weighted average number of shares used for the
purpose of calculating the basic and diluted earnings
per share for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 has been arrived at after adjusting the effect of
shares repurchased and held under the Share Award
Scheme.

B E#HZE20214 2020912 A31
HIEFESBRERBZFAEERDF 2N
ETEHRMNOEE - TS HEZRGN ZE
FrEIEERBEERND OV EBETES
m o

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERR®E

Leasehold Medical Motor Office  Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total

By HEEESR BRIE "B BARE  ERIR &t

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETE

31 December 2021 20215128318
At 31 December 2020 and at R2020F12A318 &

1 January 2021: 2021%F1A18 ¢

Cost A 507,361 119,645 343,021 11,972 74,750 42,185 1,098,934

Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (67,202) (60,138)  (127,015) (3,289) (36,141) - (293,785)

Net carrying amount REEFE 440,159 59,507 216,006 8,683 38,609 42,185 805,149
At 1 January 2021, net of 20211 A18 - Mk

accumulated depreciation ZitiE 440,159 59507 216,006 8,683 38,609 42,185 805,149
Additions NE 117 30,790 95,949 1,234 19,656 59,093 207,893
Acquisition/consolidation of Weis /BB B AT

subsidiaries (note 42) (MzEa2) 461,075 41,037 325,637 3,001 27,113 39,333 897,196
Disposals BE (33) (809) (143) (164) (720) (227) (2,096)
Depreciation provided during the FRTERE

year (32,825) (17,615) (82,518) (4,506) (16,071) = (153,535)
Transfers =3 6,229 7,874 43,062 615 (16) (57,764) -
At 31 December 2021, net of #H2021512A318 « Mk

accumulated depreciation 2EHE 875,776 120,784 597,993 8,863 68,571 82,620 1,754,607
At 31 December 2021: #H2021512A318 :

Cost A 975,803 198,537 807,526 16,658 120,783 82,620 2,201,927

Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (100,027) (77,753)  (209,533) (7,795) (52,212 - (447,320)

Net carrying amount REEFE 875,776 120,784 597,993 8,863 68,571 82,620 1,754,607
31 December 2020 2020128318
At 1 January 2020: R202061 A18 -

Cost A 75,413 94,031 144,49 3,525 45,535 25590 388,588

Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (47,156) (48,373) (84,218) (2,163)  (25,303) —  (207,213)

Net carrying amount IREEFE 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25,590 181,375
At 1 January 2020, net of 2020518168 - Mk

accumulated depreciation e 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25,590 181,375
Additions wE 117,906 4,983 48,153 602 13,562 27,299 212,505
Acquisition/consolidation of Wiis /BB B AR

subsidiaries (note 42) (MzE42) 298,846 12,321 149,334 7,854 13,411 23,474 505,240
Disposals BE (257) (6,019) (263) 9) (305) (546) (7,399)
Depreciation provided during FRFTERE

the year (20,046) (11,765) (42,797) (1,126) (10,838) - (86,572)
Transfers S 15,453 14,329 1,303 — 2,547 (33,632) -
At 31 December 2020, net of #2020 128318 « Mk

accumulated depreciation ZitinE 440,159 59,507 216,006 8,683 38,609 42,185 805,149
At 31 December 2020: 20205 12A318 :

Cost A 507,361 119,645 343,021 11,972 74,750 42,185 1,098,934

Accumulated depreciation BEHE (67,202) (60,138)  (127,015) (3.289)  (36,141) —  (293,785)

Net carrying amount REEFE 440,159 59,507 216,006 8,683 38,609 42,185 805,149
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office properties and
medical equipment used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the owners with lease periods of 50 and 60
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of office
properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 9
years and leases of medical equipment generally have
lease terms between 1 and 5 years.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

16. HE

REBEE/EBEA

AEBEREKETEROBRRIFERE
BRBHEAHESR - —RMEMNEFE
EIE B E R E S THE R0 &
BOFMMEE Lt - BREEL T
HOGRR > BRESNRIE - PRFE
HENHEHRRBER/IZIF  BE
REHENHERRBE /1255 -

(a) EFAEEZE

A EEE R AR EEREER
EHMT -

follows:

Leasehold
land

HELH

RMB'000

ARETT

Leased
properties
HEWE
RMB'000
ARETT

Medical
equipment
BEERAE
RMB’000
ARBTT

Total

At
RMB'000
ARETTT

At 1 January 2020 202041 A18 136,970 19,080 — 156,050
Additions NE 24,395 2,072 — 26,467
Additions as a result of RUREE /A I B

acquisition/consolidation of NEMAE

subsidiaries (note 42) GEZY) 20,831 71,469 5,414 97,714
Depreciation charge during the FNHEER

year (3,639 (13,820) (1,454) (18,913
Lease termination HE®RIE — (19,836) — (19,836)
Lease modification — Reduction ~ FEEE — HEHE

in the scope of leases 2Ry — (999) — (999)
At 31 December 2020 and at M2020F12 318 ]

1 January 2021 20214F1 B1H 178,557 57,966 3,960 240,483
Additions NE 28,824 2,694 — 31,518
Additions as a result of RUREE /A BB

acquisition/consolidation of RAEIMARE

subsidiaries (note 42) (HiEE42) 102,410 9,995 2,080 114,485
Depreciation charge during the FNFEER

year (5,453) (15,407) (1,791) (22,651)
At 31 December 2021 20219125318 304,338 55,248 4249 363,835

As at 31 December 2021, the land use certificate MR2021F12 A31H » AEBE K

of a leased land with a carrying amount of W REE A AR %23,251,000

RMB23,251,000 (2020: RMB23,726,000) was not 70 (20204 : AR #23,726,000

yet obtained by the Group. TL)MHEE TR T A E o
EHBEZERAERAT —ZT—_—F® 191



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE @)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEHEABEA @
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the FRNHEEENEREEELRESN
movements during the year are as follows: ™~

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 66,173 18,883
New leases FEE 2,694 2,072
Additions as a result of EU g, A B A R
acquisition/consolidation of mARE (F5E42)
subsidiaries (note 42) 12,075 76,883
Accretion of interest recognised FAERFEL K
during the year 3,120 3,242
Covid-19-related rent concessions HEARENFHTETHFS
from a lessor HEHE S ER — (1,791)
Payments during the year FERK (21,587) (11,925)
Lease termination MEKIE - (20,177)
Lease modification — Reduction HESE — HEHE
in the scope of leases Vo — (1,014)
At 31 December ®12A31H 62,475 66,173
Analysed into: Pk Iv=1
Current portion BRHERER 2 22,225 19,398
Non-current portion JEBNEAES & 40,250 46,775
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEBENIHO T EMBERE
disclosed in note 49 to the financial statements. M 5499 5 55 o
The Group has applied the practical expedient to HREHEAFARE TWERE
all eligible rent concessions granted by the RENFAESERHEESER - K
lessors for leases of certain properties during the SECEATITHERESE -
year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

16. fHE @)
AEBEEAEAEA @
BERENSBEMNERERINT :

16 LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(¢) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (c)
to leases are as follows:

2021 2020
20214

20204
RMB'000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEEENFE 3,120 3,242
Depreciation charge of right-of-use {FHAEEEMNNEER
assets 22,651 18,913

Expense relating to short-term B HHERBAMMX
leases (included in cost of (BIEEHEEXARA)
sales) 6,979 362

Expense relating to short-term B HHER B

leases (included in (BIEETRERA)

administrative expenses) 3,812 4,247
Covid-19-related rent concessions  HHARMHAFTHESHE

from a lessor e ER = (1,791)
Gain on lease termination HEK FlE = (341)
Gain on lease modification HEZE W = (15)
Total amount recognised in profit  RIBRIERHE 58

or loss 36,562 24,617

(d) FHERSRLAOBEMBHREN
FE44(c)PIFEE o

(/) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 44(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain buildings and office
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB1,393,000 (2020: RMB1,549,000).

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
are as follows:

—F N

Within one year

AEEESHBEA

AEERBCELHAELHEEESH 2
EY R NERME - AEBRFAERL
e WA B ARK1,393,0007T (2020
£ AR¥1,549,0007T) °

MN2021F12A318 > REFGEBEL
AN T REBUB K S ETE N AR KE
B R ITIRBENSFKAT ¢

2021 2020
20214

20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
925 1,306

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

17. GOODWILL 17. BE&
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETT

At 1 January: B1A18 :

Cost DN 3,199,367 3,191,110
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (1,727,499) (1,727,499)
Net carrying amount BREEFE 1,471,868 1,463,611

Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated %181 BB A » R

impairment RETRE 1,471,868 1,463,611
Acquisition/consolidation of subsidiaries U && & GtHI B 2 A

(note 42) (FF7E42) 804,390 8,257
At 31 December R12H31H 2,276,258 1,471,868
At 31 December: R12H31H :

Cost B AR 4,003,757 3,199,367

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (1,727,499) (1,727,499)

Net carrying amount RMEEFRE 2,276,258 1,471,868
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Goodwill acquired through business combinations and
sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite
useful lives with carrying amounts of
RMB2,018,658,000 (2020: RMB1,463,611,000) and nil
(2020: RMB1,252,429,000) are allocated to the cash-
generating units of Ample Mighty Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries
(the “Ample Mighty CGUs") for impairment testing.
Goodwill acquired through the business combination of
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital Company Limited with a
carrying amount of RMB8,257,000 is allocated to the
cash-generating unit of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital
Company Limited (the “Zhong Qi CGU") for
impairment testing. Goodwill acquired through the
business combination of Sinophi China Hospitals
Limited with a carrying amount of RMB249,343,000 is
allocated to the cash-generating unit of Sinophi China
Hospitals Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Sinophi
Group CGU") for impairment testing.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

FHREBE O 2 B R B R R
BEeR(ABEERACAFH) 2KkE
BEAAR®2018,658,0007C (2020
F: AR¥1,463,611,0000) X &
(20204 : AR #1,252,429,0007T) -
ENREARRZEEMBRARIERE
RAGIREWNBARMNRECEEEN
([BHRESEEEM]) MERBERR -
FRBERBEABRARARZERE N
Wkg 2 B EREEAARKS257,000
L BENEEEREEEAERARA RN
ReEsBEnN((ERReEEEMN]
VAYE R 1B 8l & » 3% #Sinophi  China
Hospitals Limited 2 ¥ 7% & 0f i i 2 78
ZIRHEE A ARM249,343,0007T ' B
2 Bid ZSinophi China Hospitals
Limited X B ARIMNR S EEEN
([SinophiE B IR & E L BN ) LAER
BRI -

ERBRERERLARA —T——FH
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B Rk M =

31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

The recoverable amounts of the Ample Mighty CGUs,
the Zhong Qi CGU and the Sinophi Group CGU have
been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal calculations using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management and are within Level
3 fair value measurement. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 15% (2020: 15%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
Ample Mighty CGUs, the Zhong Qi CGU and the
Sinophi Group CGU beyond the five-year period is 3%
(2020: 3%). This growth rate does not exceed the long
term average growth rates for the relevant markets.

Assumptions were used in the fair value less costs of
disposal calculations of the Ample Mighty CGUs and
the Zhong Qi CGU for 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 and of the Sinophi Group CGU for 31
December 2021. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill and sponsorship rights and service contracts:

Budgeted
revenue budgeted revenue is the average

— The value assigned to the

revenue achieved in the year
immediately before the budget
year, taking into account the
expected growth rate.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant
units.

Growth rates — The growth rates used are with
reference to the long term
average growth rates for the
relevant markets.

BHBRSELBEMN BERRSEESBMN
. Sinophif B35 & E A B 2 7] I [E
THEIOBRBARABERERENAR
migEER - ERANRESREEAULER
SREREEDEIARE R F RN
BrEEmMES - WrlkbEBRAAAE

f qugEl’J’*_ﬂ& © Eﬁﬁbﬂfﬁﬁ/mi%g/ﬂu
AL IR K B15% (20204 : 156%) ° A
R GER L FR BEREEELSE
i - BRI EEE BN KSinophisk
fﬁé?%ﬁhZﬁém%EﬁE%?%
3% (2020 : 3%) - ZIEREX T H A
HETS L RATHERE -

EBBREREETEN2021F12/831H
F2020F12A3MBMEHRBREELSE
A E TR EEE B ARR2021F
12 A31 B &) Sinophifs @R & & 4 B {1
WARBEREEEXNAFER - TX
T EREENERRERAEE
B RBIFENRSE RETRERNFHA
BEBERER

Ul — SREEHKER
EEREEESE
ZHIE —F PR
0 F 3 Ut - RS
EZEHEMERE -

BLIR & — FTAZERRERH
A R I B B R B
U EBEERRE

HRE — FTRAZEREXAEZ
ZEBEMEHNRE

FIHRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

18. HW B EE

Sponsorship
rights and
service
contracts  GSP Licence Total
BPER GSP
R#sE R AR &&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TIT ARETRT AR®ETR

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Operating rights
under 10T
arrangements

IOTZH T2
RMB'000
AR¥ET T

31 December 2021

Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated

2021%12A31H

N2021F1A18H

amortisation B - Ak Rt 93,194 1,252,429 — 1,345,623
Additions RE - 759 = 759
Considerations for business combinations EBAHZHE

(note 42) (PHE42) - (1,253,188) —  (1,253,188)
Amortisation provided during the year FREEEE (6,693) - - (6,693)
Impairment during the year FRHE (11,150) = - (11,150)
At 31 December 2021 RH2021F12A31H 75,351 = - 75,351
At 31 December 2021: R2021F12 4318

Cost BRAR 149,639 = 4,185 153,824

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2R EERRE (74,288) = (4,185) (78,473)

Net carrying amount REEFE 75,351 = = 75,351
31 December 2020 2020%12A31H
At 1 January 2020: A2020F1R18 :

Cost A 299,639 1,844,203 4,185 2,148,027

Accumulated amortisation it (108,301) — (3,964) (112,265)

Net carrying amount BREEFSE 191,338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated 20201 A1HE

amortisation B - AR R 191,338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762
Additions RE — 10,403 — 10,403
Transfer to other receivables (note 29) EBREHMERZIE

(PH3E29) (86,880) — - (86,880)
Considerations for business combinations EBAHcHE

(note 42) (Bf5T42) — (602,177) - (602,177)
Amortisation provided during the year FRE R (7,676) - (221) (7,897)
Impairment during the year FERME (3,588) — — (3,588)
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H 93,194 1,252,429 — 1,345,623
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021: 2020128318

20211818 ¢

Cost AR 149,639 1,252,429 4,185 1,406,253

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2R RRE (56,445) — (4,185) (60,630)

Net carrying amount REEFE 93,194 1,252,429 — 1,345,623

Sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite
useful lives are allocated to the Ample Mighty CGUs
for impairment testing. Details of impairment testing
are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

EER ] A F e R ENIRE A F
PEERERSELFEMIERERN
RERI R FHE R M T IR M7

EHBRERERARF

T —FRR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

19. R—EEERFAZRE

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARETT

Share of net assets DIHEEFE 515,619 514,100
Impairment BB (212,619) —
302,940 514,100

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

Place of
registration and
Particulars of capital held business

P EREM GRS Sl

Percentage of
ownership interest
held by the Group  held by the Group  Principal activity

AREBESERRMNERNAT

Percentage of
voting rights

AEERRMAEES AKERTERREE

CR Wugang (Hubei) Registered capital of PRC/Mainland
Hospital Management RMB433,041,528 China
Co., Ltd.
("CR Wugang")

FRAMORL) BlxEBE AMERARK hE/
AR ([#EEM]) 433,041,5287C TR A

ZEDL ZBAD FTEXEK
2020 2021 2020
2020F 20214 20204
51 51 51 Hospital
consulting
services
EUEEL

The above investment is indirectly held by the
Company.

CR Wugang, which is considered a material joint
venture of the Group, is accounted for using the equity
method.

Since the sponsored hospitals of a joint venture,
namely Wuhan Iron and Steel (Group) Corporation No.
2 Staff Hospital (FZHH# (£E) QF)E BT k)
incurred higher-than-expected operating losses during
the year, an impairment assessment of the investment
in the joint venture was carried out as at 31
December 2021. As a result of the impairment
assessment, an impairment of RMB212,679,000 was
made against the Group's investment in the joint
venture during the year.

The recoverable amount of the investment in the joint
venture of RMB302,940,000 has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections of China Resources Wugang General
Hospital (ZEE {42 %K) and Wuhan Iron and Steel
(Group) Corporation No. 2 Staff Hospital (& 2 i $# (&
E)A~a s BT %) based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 15%. The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the CR Wugang
Hospitals beyond the five-year period is 3%.

PR E T HARRBEEFE -

EBERMERSAREANERAER
Al EERESIAAR -

FRZAEERA TEBNHA —REBHE
B — RENE (EE)RARFE BT
BIRELToRTEHNEEEE - it
R2021F12 A3 BUHRNZAESRAZ
WEEITRERS - LCREFGEE  F
N AEEERELERAREREAR
#212,679,0007T °

RZBERAZIZREZAIKEIEEAR
#302,940,000 L HiRIEFE A EEME
FOREREENESREREBZERN
RFHIEEE  REAE R INAER
MEEMBE(EE)RARFE BT ER
FIRERBAMEFTESE - EANRRS
AR BEIE R B15% o AR HEH (8
BREH EFERINEER R RS RE
KR EB3% o
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of CR Wugang adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the financial statements:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R EE

31 December 202

19.

TRHEAT EREEB N
2 MEBEHERES
HEITTHE WO R
BEETHE

12021412 A31H

R—EEELATAZE’E@m

KB 15 B KR
AR ER
WK R

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRESZEY 97,635 96,766
Other current assets HimEh&eE 414,696 411,666
Current assets MENEE 512,331 508,432
Non-current assets IERBEE 7,071 7,960
Current liabilities mEBE (113,835) (113,804)
Net assets BEFE 405,567 402,588
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HAEEREE QAN
in the joint venture: W AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHEENELE 51% 51%
Effect of fair value adjustment RUEE R A (B E TS
at acquisition T 308,780 308,780
Impairment BB (212,679) —
Carrying amount of the investment KHERRHRE 302,940 514,100
Revenue Wz = —
Interest income FEWA 3,024 3,164
Depreciation and amortisation 188 K 5 5,728 892
Tax FiIE = —
Profit and total comprehensive income  FEFIE &2 HEURAEEE
for the year 2,979 2,101
EHBEERERAT T —F®



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REBEERTFIZRE

Share of net assets

DIEEEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARETT
961,710 41,397

On 28 June 2020, the Group entered into a
restructuring agreement on the formation of two
associates (the “Restructuring Agreement”) with Beijing
Jing Mei Group Company Limited (It RREEEHE R
al) (“Jing Mei Group”), pursuant to which Beijing Jing
Run Renkang Hospital Management Co., Ltd. ("JR
Renkang”) and Beijing Jing Run Renkang Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (“JR Holdings”) were established and held by the
Group and Jing Mei Group as to 49% and 51%,
respectively. Upon establishment, JR Renkang and JR
Holdings became associates of the Group. Pursuant to
the Restructuring Agreement, the entire interest in
Beijing Jing Mei Group General Hospital and its
branches and affiliated medical institutions (the "Jing
Mei Hospital Group”) would be injected into JR
Holdings by Jing Mei Group and JR Renkang would
provide hospital management services to the Jing Mei
Hospital Group.

On 10 November 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement for the increase of capital of JR Holdings
with Jing Mei Group, pursuant to which the registered
capital of JR Holdings would be increased to
RMB1,000,000,000 and the Group committed a capital
contribution to JR Holdings in the amount of
RMB869,117,000. During the vyear, the capital
contribution of RMB869,117,000 was made to JR
Holdings.

Particulars of the material associates are as follows:

ANEER20205%6 A28 AL R A&
BEBER AR ([ REEE ) 54/
g nmE] L EA R ([EARE]) -
BHATIERABECEERERBEEREAD
Al (TRBECRE]D R4t REUEC R
BERAR ([RBEZER]) THAEE
FREEEDREHEBEL9% K51% ° K
& ROBCERREERKAAEER
AR o RIBEAWDE  ERAEE
Bl M E SR M BEEEE ([ R
HEREE M2 PEEEARES
BiF AFUEIER - OBCRAR REE
brie B BB P B I AR TS o

REFER2020F11 AI0B E R EEH
TEUBIER IR E BT o IRIFEE R
& RBEREMEABGENE AR
1,000,000,0007¢ B 7N & B & & 15 4 =
IR & AR K869,117,0007T °
AEE  AEEERAREERIFEAR
#869,117,0007T °

EABEATERMT

Place of registration
Particulars of capital held and business

Percentage of ownership interest

attributable to the Group Principal activities

P EREH P R i B AREEEFERERA DL IEEH
2021 2020
20216 20204
JR Renkang Registered capital of PRC/Mainland China 49 49 Provision of hospital
RMB5,000,000 management
services
TBCE AMERARE RE/ B A RUBREERE
5,000,0007C
JR Holdings Registered capital of PRC/Mainland China 49 49 Provision of
RMB1,000,000,000 corporate
management
services
TEER AfMERARE RE/RE R RERTERRY
1,000,000,0007C

LRI ETIRARREERE -

The above investments are indirectly held by the
Company.
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

JR Renkang and JR Holdings are considered material
associates of the Group and are accounted for using
the equity method.

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information in respect of JR Renkang and JR Holdings
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H
20. REEE RN R ZRE @m

RBECEMUBERERAAEENE
A E R R MEmIEIIRR -

TRIATERRBCREMBZE HxEI’J
MBEMEE  MABERCRES
BRHZERETTTHE - WERES ﬁ?f
BHER P ORREEETHRE

financial statements:

JR Renkang
TBCR

RMB’000
AR TIT

JR Holdings
FUBERX
RMB’000

ARET T

Current assets MBEE 126,741 1,003,306
Non-current assets EMENEE — 856,425
Current liabilities mEBE (16,908) (6,889)
Net assets BEFE 109,833 1,852,842
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest ,\ZFEIE’\H WAL

in the associates: W E AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHEENELSE 49% 49%
Group's share of net assets of the REER D (REE QA

associates and carrying amount ﬁ%xﬁﬁ&%%&ﬁm

of the investments REE 53,818 907,892
Revenue & 134,170 116,793
Profit and total comprehensive income  FEFE L2 EWAESE

for the year 98,080 69,335

JR Renkang
B

RMB’000
AR TIT

JR Holdings
OB
RMB’000

ARET T

Current assets MENVE E 103,300 13,573
Non-current assets EMENEE — 10
Current liabilities mEIAE (30,776) (1,624)
Net assets BEFE 72,524 11,959
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in B ZREE R E & N A

the associates: AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership rEEHEENELSE 49% 9%
Group's share of net assets of the REBHH(hEE AT

associates and carrying amount of the BEFERZZREN

investments BRTEE 35,537 5,860
Revenue & 92,736 3,491
Profit and total comprehensive income — FEFE KL 2 E WA LEEE

for the year 67,524 1,959

EFEEERERATE —ZT——FiFk 201



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REEE RN R 2B’ E @)
(continued)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINRTHRAEEEFHIEE KRR
information of the Group's associates that are not ENAINRRUBER

individually material:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) FE(REEZ AR FEERE,
and total comprehensive income/ (1) Re2ml A/
(loss) for the year (E518) Ra% 1 (151)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERBERRZIRE
Group's investments in the HMEREE
associates - —

21. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS 21. RBEIOTE 2B KR E

2021 2020

20214 20204

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

Bt 5 ARBFT ARBTT

At 1 January ®m1A1H 88,790 92,555

Repayment from |OT hospitals B I0TEf 2 &K (11,187) (13,353)

Interest income B WA 6 7,915 9,588

Impairment BB (16,541) —

At 31 December M®12A31H 68,977 88,790
Less: Current portion included & @ st A& ZIE -
in prepayments, RiES REAM

deposits and other FEWRIE 2
receivables BB & 29 (10,079) (11,576)
Non-current portion JERNHER &L & 58,898 77,214
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

21. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS 21. R BEIOTEfr =2 FERFE @)

(continued)

Pursuant to the IOT arrangements with certain not-for-
profit hospitals, the Group made investment amounts
to the 10T hospitals that will be repaid to the Group
(the "Repayable Investment Amounts”) in return for
the operating rights of the 10T hospitals over a tenure
ranging from 16 to 30 vyears. The Repayable
Investment Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
will be repaid to the Group in equal annual instalments
during the tenure of the 10T arrangements.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of receivables from IOT hospitals are as follows:

RIBEETIFLNERMIOTRY &
SERIOTERELRESHE %52
BEREELAKSEB(REERED
1) ARRIOTERGEHE - RH
16E30F -BEERESE/ER
2B WHRIOTRHMERER
FEOHEETAEHE -

REIOTERR 2 B U FRIB 2 R B 2 &
N

AVVA 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTIT ARBTT

At beginning of year FUIRREE = —
Impairment loss (note 8) WEE K (MEES) 16,541 —
At end of year FRHEE 16,541 —

22. LOAN TO A SPONSORED HOSPITAL

Loan to a sponsored hospital
EX

. A-EREREERREENE

=h
FA

2021 2020
20214

20204
RMB'000
ARETIT

RMB’'000
ARETTT

[ — P SR A R B B e (R A

- 51,197

As at 31 December 2020, the loan to a sponsored
hospital was unsecured, bore interest at the prevailing
benchmark lending interest rate of 4.75% per annum
as promulgated by the People's Bank of China and was
repayable in November 2023. During the year, the loan
to a sponsored hospital was eliminated upon
consolidation of a subsidiary (note 42).

2020512 A31H @ M — &R EEe
RRENERAEER  FHEAHE
ARBRITEMHORITEREER X
4.75% N AR2023F 11 ABE - &F
A M ERREEREENERER
& OFBT 8 & R ¥ 85 (fi7E42) -

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 23. AR REEGELEEH

Listed equity investment, at fair value — EWBRAEKRE  HAR

20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEFIT AR FIT

(note (i) BE (FEEa) 65,301 92,718
Unlisted investments, at fair value JELEMIRE AR
(note (ii) BE1E (FFFEG)) - 105,296
65,301 198,014
Analysed into: 2R i
Current portion mENE D — 105,296
Non-current portion ERBIE D 65,301 92,718
65,301 198,014
Notes: P &E

(i) The listed equity investment was classified as financial assets at (i)
FVTPL as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value
gain or loss through other comprehensive income. It was held for
long-term strategic purposes. The Group does not intend to
dispose of it within twelve months after the reporting period.

(i) The unlisted investments were wealth management products issued (i)
by banks in Mainland China, with expected annual return ranging
from 2.8% to 3.1% per annum. They were mandatorily classified
as financial assets at FVTPL as their contractual cash flows are not

solely payments of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

25.

AMORTISED COST

24.

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

HA R A A RS R
4%

2021
20214

2020
20204F
RMB’'000
ARET T

RMB'000
ARETTT

Unlisted debt investments, at JELETEBIRE -
amortised cost bire: i) WN 908,701 265,022
Analysed into: PR i
Current portion mENER D 311,031 164,927
Non-current portion ERENE 597,670 100,095

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s other financial
assets at amortised cost represented unlisted debt
investments with fixed interest rates ranging from
3.36% to 4.20% (2020: 1.05% to 3.46%) per annum
and maturity dates in 2022 to 2024 (2020: 2021 to
2022).

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

In 2019, the operation of 999 Medical Clinic
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“999 Clinic”) was suspended as
the location of the site was included in the local urban
renewal plan. The Group entered into an agreement
with a real estate company in which the property of
999 Clinic would be demolished and a new property
with a floor area of no less than that of the
demolished property would be given to 999 Clinic as
compensation when the construction and the
development of the new property have been
completed. Accordingly, property with a carrying
amount of RMB76,269,000 was classified as other
non-current assets.

25.

HZE2021F 128318 KREBHMIZ
B ATENSMEEAIELTER
®"E  BEEMNERTF3.36%E420%
(20205 : 1.05% £3.46%) ' 2/HAR A
20224F 20244 (20204 : 2021F &=
20224 ) °

HttERBEE

R2019% « AR E WA TEEH
B AUEET ZABREM R H R
I BERECRR ([ZAMDEH]) wE
¥ KEER-MEREARRTT —
I - BESZAPID MY LIRS
T TR TR R RBITES ¢ ISR
ERT ORI R ORI 4G
SNPIRHIERTME - Bl - BEEAR
AR¥76,269,000 TR EE D ARHE
tIERBAE -

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

26. INVENTORIES

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETIT ARETIT

Pharmaceuticals &5 161,716 125,723
Medical devices and medical BEREWNMEREN

consumables 23,359 16,312

185,075 142,035

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

fEW E 5 30R

Trade receivables
Public health insurance programs

27. EWWESREREKREE

2021 2020
20214

20204
RMB’000
AREET T

RMB'000
AR TIT

AHBEERREE K

and social organisation for medical BERGHLHELE
services 510,076 214,361
Other customers Hipz= P 339,717 429,319
Bills receivables JE W R 15 370 400
850,163 644,080
Impairment B (83,560) (25,977)
766,603 618,103

The Group's trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. The credit
periods range from 30 to 180 days. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

REBHEFHRGEREENMEER
it BREPRIN IRFBESR

ALK - (ERHEA30E/180K « A&
5] 57 b AR R A LS R T A R R AR B
= WERBEEESEH - LREEE
Efg - 2R ERETHEMBBER -
REEW LW E 5 E K ERER
ERFAEMERRSERE M EES
REHE - BREZIREREREEAR
BE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

27. EWESREREREE @

RIREBREWE 5508 KRR SRR
R T (IRIFER B B RINBRE BB
) mT

2020

AVVA
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTIT
Within 1 year 1FE RN 673,611 540,565
1 to 2 years 1224 45,678 75,382
2 to 3 years 2E3F 47,314 2,156
766,603 618,103
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment FEWE S IEREEERENEEIER

of trade receivables are as follows:

W :

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB'000
ARBTIT

RMB'000
AR TIT

At beginning of year F4 25,977 755
Acquisition/consolidation of subsidiaries Y B& & GFHt B A F) — 33,585
Impairment losses, net (note 8) B EE B FRE (i is) 77,647 20,432
Amount written off as uncollectible £ Q= Ok e (20,064) (28,795)
At end of year FR 83,560 25,977

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than three years and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

REHE B RRAEEREEETRED
i HEBRBEEERE - BHXERA
BERUEBREANSEE S ER D ER
HIRER o %R R IR T BRI
EERENRERS AU ESN AR
BEFM - BATORFARREEAR NI
AMAEMERENEN - — KM=
WMREWEZFRBA=FNLE - WA
WEHITITE) - RIMKEHFIA -

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27. EWESREREREE @
(continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk BREAEEFERABREEEAENERE
exposure on the Group's receivables from other R PRIBNEERBEREINNT

customers using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021 M2021%F12831H

Past due
Less than 1to 2 2 t03

Current years years
B Al S 1229  2E3F

Trade receivables from public — FEURAHEEFRBK S

health insurance programs kBERETE

and social organisations for HE 58

medical services (note): (3% -
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEIEX 7.30% 2.88% 6.23%  13.10% 100%  15.80%
Gross carrying amount BERHEE

(RMB'000) (AR®FIT) 336,060 34,341 45408 48,368 45,899 510,076
Expected credit losses TEHEEEE

(RMB’000) (AR®F7T) 24,525 988 2,828 6,337 45899 80,577

Trade receivables from other EREMBEFE S

customers: A
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEIEX - 0.02% 0.26%  55.92% 100% 0.88%
Gross carrying amount HRERTHE

(RMB'000) (AR¥FT) 13,310 321,036 768 3,857 746 339,717
Expected credit losses TEHE E &R

(RMB’000) (ARBFT) = 78 2 2,157 746 2,983
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

As at 31 December 2020

27.

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

EWRESFEREKREE @

12020512831 H

Past due

Current
B Al

Trade receivables from public — EUW A HEE(RE 2

health insurance programs MBEERKHTE

and social organisations for HAE H 08

medical services (note): (BRFEE) -
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEX 10.94%
Gross carrying amount HERREE

(RMB'000) (AR®FT) 214,361
Expected credit losses EHEEES

(RMB'000) (AR®FT) 23,451

Less than
1 year

DR1E

1 to 2 to
2 years 3 years
182245 2E3F

— — — 10.94%

— — — 214,361

— — — 23,451

Trade receivables from other W E R P

customers: B 558 :
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEEX . 0.06% 0.37% 1.82% 100% 0.59%
Gross carrying amount REEEE
(RMB’000) (AR®FT) 13,859 335,740 75,512 2,196 2,012 429,319
Expected credit losses TEHEEEE
(RMB'000) (AR¥F7T) — 193 281 40 2,012 2,526
Note: Under the current policies of the PRC public health insurance Mz : REBEPEAKBERBETEORITEER

programs, a government-approved quota is assigned annually to
each medical institution in respect of the medical fees that are
allowed to be recovered from the public health insurance
programs. The Group estimates, when preparing its financial
statements, the quota approved by the public health insurance
authorities and assigned to its hospitals and recognises the
impairment losses for the amount that it estimates to be
unrecoverable in the statement of profit or loss and write off such
trade receivables in the statement of financial position when such

amount becomes unrecoverable.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for bills
receivables as at 31 December is within one year and
the loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
was assessed to be minimal.

MEERESFERITMIRBERRRTE
WeImEEERES K EBRFEEE -
FEBRUMBHRERE - SEFARBER
R E RO TETREROEE -
I 7 4R 55 AR A BL G EH T AT IR el MY SRR RERR
WEEE  ERBRERSEER KD - B
ERBHRRBREAMBEZSERE ZE -

MR2021FM2020512 A31H » EWRZE
ER12 A31H A/ TE AU [ o) 75 18 A fE
B—FRN - B EBERETK-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

28. EHEE

28. CONTRACT ASSETS

31 December 31 December 1 January

2021 2020 AOPAS)

20214 20204 20204

12H31H 12H31H 1H1H

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

AR¥ETTT ARETF T AR®EF T
Contract assets arising ABREEXRH :

from:

Hospital management B EIE R

services 27,560 19,840 12,120

BHREERITHE B & I AR AT EREX
H U EE T A8 HERR R AR (B O R ER
RN BORB SN - ERERE
B A% B 16 A B (BN ST R IR B AT
) BRBANEENEREND
BRENEZFIA - 2021FEHNEE
Y32 N (20204F ¢ 38 A0) T IR N g

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the provision of hospital management
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on the performance rating assessments of the Group.
The amounts recognised as contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables when the rights to
consideration become unconditional, i.e. when the

performance rating assessments are finalised. The HEREERIEATE

increase (2020: increase) in contract assets in 2021

was the result of the increase in the provision of

hospital management services at the end of the year.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for MR12A3MBEHNEEMRENLEEE

AREA—FR -

contract assets as at 31 December is within one year.

REHRE B HPRA B EREETRED
i AERHREEEE -FTEANEE

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected

credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on days past due of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

BHEEEEBRANBEE - KRR
WESHEMRAE  REARAHNEE
kEWESFBETNRARREFE &
NEEMBERTREALFELUESE
BRHOFFER DA EKE 58S
HAIRBIGTE - ZatE R TR gL
R EXHENURREBEHTESNE
BBEEM - B AR R R AE R
ERHEEREEENER - %2021
FR%2020912A31H » B HEEE
(RN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

29. ﬁﬁﬁfﬁtlﬁ ‘REESREME

e

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTT ARBTET
Prepayments to suppliers M) FE R 2 R TR 3R 30,456 38,102
Current portion of receivables KRB I0TER: 2 fE U K18
from IOT hospitals #) BN EA 8 o 21 10,079 11,576
Other receivable from “Yan KA FRC BT EAM
Hua Hospital” (note (i)) JFE W SRR (BHEE() 189,747 189,747
Other receivable from “Jing e RmEER I EM
Mei Hospital” (note (i) JE Wk E (B X (i) - 86,880
Others Hh, 106,216 47,337
336,498 373,642
Impairment BB (37,969) (1,247)
298,529 372,395
Notes: B3 -

(i)

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 15
January 2019, 21 January 2019 and 17 April 2019, Beijing Yan Hua
Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Company Limited (“Yan
Hua Phoenix"”), the sponsor of Yan Hua Hospital, and Yan Hua
Hospital unilaterally terminated the |OT agreement entered into
between the Group, Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital (the
“Yan Hua IOT Agreement”) from 21 January 2019. The Group has
submitted a civil claim statement against Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital in relation to the Yan Hua IOT Agreement dispute to
the Beijing Second Intermediate People’'s Court on 17 April 2019
to seek the court’s ruling that the unilateral termination of the Yan
Hua 10T Agreement by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital on
21 January 2019 shall be void.

Having considered the terms of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement, the
Group has further claimed that Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital should be liable for damages for breach of the Yan Hua
IOT Agreement. Accordingly, the Group classified the related
receivables and operating right under the IOT arrangement with
Yan Hua Hospital as other receivables.

On 18 December 2019, the Beijing Second Intermediate People’s
Court issued a judgement in favour of the Group. Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital filed an appeal to the Beijing Higher People’s
Court in January 2020. On 22 November 2021, the Beijing Higher
People’'s Court handed down a judgment which rejected the appeal
filed by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua upheld and upholds the
original judgment, and adjudged that such ruling shall be final.

(i)

AR AT BHA201941 5158 - 20194
1A218 K2019F417THM R EFTHE -
FBRMERALRREBEREEEES
BHRAR ([FBE]) FFIEBRRRL2019
F1ANAREFERILEAER - HEER
L FEACBR AT MIOTH & ([FA(LIOTH
) o REBBR2019F4 817 A5 E/IOT
BHEFHEEARTE _RBARZEZRESR
FRHFREBFRCBERFCER - BRoE
B 41 7 #e{C BB R (L B8 BT 20194 1 B 218
B ERBRMCIOTIR#ER -

ZEIFIOTIHRNGR  AREE—HE
AR RAA B A ERFIEI0TH
BEDE o B AEBEREHEEIOT
RHTHEBRESORAAREELEDER
H YRR -

20196128188  ERWE—FRARE
IREMmBEMEFRER  RNEBMBF - H(E
BB B B R 2020F1 AR R T R
ARZEFTIRE EFF - 2021911 8228 4t
R EAAREREMG AR BB CEE
MFCEITIRER L5 B RAR - W
TEULHR B EHIR -

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(ii) As disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements, the Group

29.

entered into the Restructuring Agreement with Jing Mei Group on
28 June 2020. Pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement, the 10T
agreement with Jing Mei Hospital (the “Jing Mei IOT Agreement”)
was terminated. The Group is entitled to a refund from Jing Mei
Hospital of the carrying amount of the operating right as a result of
the early termination of the Jing Mei IOT Agreement. Accordingly,
the Group reclassified the operating right under the I0T
arrangement with Jing Mei Hospital to other receivables during the
year ended 31 December 2020. During the year, such amount was
refunded to the Group.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of other receivables are as follows:

ANRE RESREME

U FX I8 ()

(ii) INEA R T RE20 P N EE - A B E K &
B 70202056 A28 BRI L EME B - RIBEE
B ERREENIOTHE ([ REIOTH
A1) EUE o fE R TR AT K L RIEIOT 1) 28 B0 4%
RAEEEENRABR WA SRR
BB AR - AR - AEEREZ 20204
12ANHEFEB B RKER ZHNI0TER
HTHEERBN D AE LM EKFR - A
SERSFEREZERA -

o R R S R R B SR
mF -

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT

At beginning of year F4) 1,247 1,127

Acquisition/consolidation of subsidiaries 488 & GFHt B A 7 — 615
Impairment losses/(reversal of BEEE,/ CREEE

impairment losses), net (note 8) D) F5E (MeE8) 37,272 (495)

Amount written off as uncollectible RIS A SE IR (550) —

At end of year FR (37,969) 1,247

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to deposits and other receivables for which
there was no relevant history of default. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at
31 December 2021 was 11% (2020: 0.3%).

g ER RSN EERSHRA
BHORLHRBTLMEMERIES
e mEABRT @RS B
BBEREBOEL BELHEAES
TEHEITREDN - ARBEEXRNEE
J B & AT AR 0 AR R A B AR S B TR
Bl o R2021F 12 A31BIR AR EIB R
£11% (20204 : 0.3%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BUE R E U

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 30. RE€RREEFYRRH M

RESTRICTED AND PLEDGED BANK MEEFRITER
DEPOSITS
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Cash and bank balances 8 & MIRTT 8 2,328,643 2,698,107
Time deposits FHF R — 20,717
2,328,643 2,718,824
Less: Pledged time deposits as A BRI RN IR AR
guarantee for the acquisition of 23 1) 7E BF
non-controlling interests T = (17,454)
Pledged bank deposits BEEFRITER (32) —
Restricted bank deposits R &SR T1F 3R (4,560) —
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEEY 2,324,051 2,701,370

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB2,293,954,000 (2020: RMB2,688,115,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and
three  months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and restricted and pledged bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RREER - AEBUAREENE
e RBETEHEBSERAREK
2,293,954,0007T (20204 : AR ¥
2,688,115,0007T) - AR T8 B M
R EAE R - R TP B A2 S
PE B IR0 M AEEE - SERNSEEEAR
TE o RNEBE R FE R ITINE KR
EBHNRITHARBEIBAHME

RITRE AT RRITEFF B R IR
ME - BHERFRFIAN T —RE=
BEATE  RFEAKENARREEK
e - WeH B 85 HIE B 30N = B
HRORS o SRTT 48R S R I 1M AN E 4 IR
TEFAFEAGER S IOREENT
ZIRTT °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

31. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 1. ENESZRERENEE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at WMEHARNENE HFERENZEER
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of AT DERZNEmBABELNT

delivery of goods, is as follows:

AOVA 2020

20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBET T AR T IT

Within 60 days 60K A 561,418 347,108
61 to 180 days 61£2180K 209,643 186,274
Over 180 days 180K A I 56,513 30,743
827,574 564,125

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally granted on a credit term of 0 to 90

days.

32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32.

RNESHERENZEARE  —&
WOEQARMEEHEML -

Hitt BN REBERETER

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBFT ARBTT
Staff cost payables e B T KA 407,804 249,946
Deposits from suppliers HERRFES 35,513 28,182
Other PRC tax payable B H fth JE B A & 27,721 29,080
Unpaid travel expenses and RMI 2z ZRAS &
administrative expenses THEA 11,612 13,052
Unpaid expenses in relation to B2 ¥ iR 7% H A &9
professional services RATFIZ 1,074 14,774
Payables for purchases of BEME  BEEEEZ
property, plant and FEFROE
equipment 41,417 4,838
Unpaid consideration for the U B FE I AR A 2 Y
acquisition of non-controlling RERMRE
interests = 17,184
Payable to Healthcare Security B EEREBFIE
Administration = 13,709
Contract liabilities BHBE (a) 90,900 117,176
Others H fth, 141,948 89,161
757,989 577,102
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(continued)

Note:

(a)

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

32. EMENSFEREFGERA @

(a) EXHEEMBANT

31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
20214 20204 20204
12H31H 12A31H 1H1H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETTT AR¥EFTT AREEFTT
Short-term advances received from BREF RSN
customers:
General healthcare services HAEBERS 90,454 110,924 —
Hospital management services BT B R = — 1,649
GPO business GPO7% 446 6,252 3,013
Other hospital-derived services H BB AT £ BRTS = — 4
Total contract liabilities AHaERE 90,900 117,176 4,666

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to provide
general healthcare services and hospital management services, to
deliver medical products, such as pharmaceuticals, medical devices
and medical consumables, and to provide other hospital-derived
services. The decrease (2020: increase) in contract liabilities in
2021 was mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances
received from the public health insurance authorities in relation to
general healthcare services at the end of the year (2020: the
acquisition/consolidation of hospitals during the year).

BHAREEREHSE BRREMERE R
R X %R BEEMEERET SR
BRaG AR HE M B 07 £ R w4 2
HRE BB - 2021 A M A EHR A (2020
F N TERANF ARG BRRBER
RABBRRB UKD B F0R D (2020
F o mRARFYRE AR o

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

33. PAYABLES TO THE SPONSORED
HOSPITALS

The payables to the Sponsored Hospitals are
unsecured, bear interest at a rate of 0.35% (2020:
0.35%) per annum and are repayable on demand.

34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

Effective

interest rate

33.

34.

FE 2 R B B 7R

TR B R A EEE  FH X
£0.35% (20204 : 0.35%) ' ZBIREK

E& -

HERTERREMER

Effective
interest rate

RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000

Current b (%) Maturity
BRI (%) Bl

Borrowings — fBm —
unsecured Egiigi 1-9 2022

ARBTIT  BEME(%) ZMA AR®TT

1,665,899 1-3 2021 684,301

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT
Analysed into: DT
Bank and other loans repayable: RITREMERER -
Within one year or on demand —FRFIZEK 1,665,899 684,301

Except for bank and other borrowings of
RMB19,275,000 (2020: RMB12,000,000) and
RMB883,672,000 (2020: Nil) as at 31 December 2021,
which are denominated in RMB and United States
dollars, respectively, the remaining bank and other
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

R2021F12A318 B ABHARE
19,275,0007C (2020F : AR
12,000,0007T) & A K #883,672,000
7L (20204F : )W RIT R EMERD
BIAANRE RETEHEIN - HHBRIEITR
H g R UBITTEHE »
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. R{kR@EAEE
SR E &R

2021 2020
20214

Defined benefit plans

Total estimated benefit payable to
qualifying staff BEE

20204
RMB'000
AREEFIT

RMB'000
ARET T

ERTEN A ERABRH

37,478 47,323

The Group operates unfunded defined benefit plans for
qualifying staff of Jian Gong Hospital and Huaikuaug
Hospital. Under the plans, the qualifying staff are
entitled to retirement benefits.

The plan exposes the Group to interest rate risk and
the risk of changes in the life expectancy for the
pensioners.

The movements in the present value of the defined
benefit obligations are as follows:

AEERREESERMEBEERNAER
ABEERHENRERIGE - RIE
ZEE AERABAEZT RS
Rl e

ZatEIEAKEEERNERBRMEARE
EMEZSHR AR -

REBNBEET2REZLBOT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETFT

At 1January ®1A18 47,323 18,120

Consolidation of a subsidiary (note 42) & GtHIEB R F) (Mf:E42) — 26,318

Current service cost g RS A 927 802

Interest cost FLE A 1,585 1,351

Benefit paid 21548 A (3,904) (3,462)
Remeasurement losses/(gains) in other REMEE U AR EH

comprehensive income EEE () (8,453) 4,194

At 31 December ®12H31H 37,478 47,323

The remeasurement of the defined benefit obligations
represent mainly actuarial losses arising from changes
in demographic assumptions, financial assumptions and
experiences adjustments.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.

REBNEENEFAEIERANA
AR ~ M RERMERAENE(CM
EENBEEERS -

RERMEEZHMOBEMLETERE
AEBEMERBEMEEESH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. R{KEREF w0

(continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued) RAERAGE @
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end MEMKRTEANEIER/ERIKLOT ¢

of the reporting period are as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
Discount rate AL = 2.45%- 3.05%—
3.25% 3.80%
Expected rate of the average per TEET A A Z R A S
capital disposable income growth R K 0%-9% 10%
Average longevity at retirement age EREERAKABNTY
for current pensioners = 96 94
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant HERETHR  HEERIOTEHX
assumptions as at the end of the reporting period is EoWI TN

shown below:

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in defined Decrease in defined

Increase in benefit in rate/ benefit
rate/year obligations year obligations

A E&F RERR
&, BEEHEN Fl= / BEEE
F EUE N ORd) FB8RLD ORA)

% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT
2021 20214
Discount rate BRI & 1.00 (3,734) 1.00 4,699
Expected average per TEE A AT TR IR A
capital disposable TR =
income growth rate 1.00 4,500 1.00 (2,117)
Average longevity at RINFER B FEEw 1 year 1 year
retirement age — 1,369 — & (1,387)
2020 2020%F
Discount rate BRI & 1.00 (4,231) 1.00 5,204
Expected average per TEEA A AT T AR A
capital disposable F iR R
income growth rate 1.00 3,630 1.00 (2,877)
Average longevity at RIKFEROTHES 1 year 1 year
retirement age —F 2,174 —4F (2,256)
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The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based
on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
may not be representative of an actual change in the
defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that
changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group expected to make
payment of RMB3,636,000 (2020: RMB4,604,000)
under the defined benefit plans in the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

EXE2IMBRRED T RRIE—ETE
MASH » &% A A B R RS BR
TERRBELAEZ MY ERME
TEENTE - GREINMEREER
RE)E(E > MATA BRI S T
& o X Z25IHBURE DT AR RERR
ERMEENERZL  BABRTK
AIREBM B AR -

R2021F12H31H - A&EERERE
BFIET 8 B mE BRI AR R+ =
REEEHEMARMS 636000T
(20204 : AR#4,604,0007T) °

ERBRERERLARA —T——FH



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

36. DEFERRED TAX 36. IELER
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FARERBEEREEZZEEHNOT :

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities FEEHEEE

Fair value Depreciation
adjustments Fair value allowance in
arising from changes of excess of

acquisition of ~ financial assets related
subsidiaries at FVTPL depreciation
WAREE

BEEETE
N B MiTERE £t et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT NS NS NS
At 1 January 2020 202051 718 315,748 2,274 - — 318,022
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the  FRMA/GIA) A
consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ EBHEHE ZELH

during the year (note 12) (H&12) - [1579) 1,690 282 393
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 202012 A31H &

31 December 2020 and 202118182

at 1 January 2021 BEEHEEE 315,748 695 1,690 282 318,415
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 42) Wik B AR (Fista2) 53,451 - 1,560 - 55,011
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ERMAIGIA) FE

the consolidated statement of BRBRELH

profit or loss during the year (note 12)  (Fi{&E12) (276,172) (695) 685 861 (275,321)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R2021512A318 2

31 December 2021 BELHESR 93,027 - 3,935 1,143 98,105
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36 DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

36. &

Impairment
of financial
assets

RE
RMB'000
ARBTT

Losses
available for
offsetting
against
future
taxable

profits Others

o] FR A
N

M EE Rt
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTL

st
RMB'000
ARETT

At 1 January 2020 #®2020%1H18 188 — 188
Deferred tax credited to the FRFAGEBERRERZ

consolidated statement of profit or ERER (f5E12)

loss during the year (note 12) 800 — 800
Gross deferred tax assets at 202012 A31H K

31 December 2020 and 2021F1 8182

at 1 January 2021 BETHBEE 988 — 988
Deferred tax credited to the FRFAGEERREL

consolidated statement of profit or ERR (f3E12)

loss during the year (note 12) 9,309 1,854 884 12,047
Gross deferred tax assets at 2021124318 2

31 December 2021 BELERIELE 10,297 1,854 884 13,035

EHEBEZERERAT —T_—F%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. ﬁﬁﬁ(fﬁ)
Deferred tax assets (Continued) EEREEE @
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets BMYFHME - BEHELEHIBEEENAE

and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the
deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

EEMBEIMRREFEE - W TRAE
B R E M S A EE R BRE A D
#r

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB'000
ARBEF T

RMB'000
ARETT

Net deferred tax assets recognised ERE RS AR R R IERR

in the consolidated statement of BETIBE EFE

financial position 10,181 188
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE IR SR HE R

in the consolidated statement of ZIEREFIBEBEFE

financial position (95,251) (317,615)
Net deferred tax liabilities EEHIEBEFE (85,070) (317,427)

Deferred tax assets have not been
respect of the following items:

recognised in

IATIEE MERREERIBEE

2021 AOPA)

20214 20204

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ARBTET

Tax losses M EE 40,309 19,079
Deductible temporary differences ANz ERER 22,787 22,784
63,096 41,863

The above tax losses arising in Mainland China will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the above items as it is not considered
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the above items can be utilised.

bBarEhERELEREEREHIN =
hERBIBPAREEREEREBRA
A ARRERLAE - Lalt1R B T A
RRELERARE - YHREFRRE
ARA AL fE A Bl R B 8E 2 AT BE
BIK -
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Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries and a
joint venture established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries and joint venture will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB2,647,057,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB2,265,509,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to
the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

RIBFRBMEREHE  HEREA
B WINIR B ERINRIREET K
HRR BB 10% MTEIRE - BEEK A
20081 A1 B RBER - #AMN2007F
12A3MB 2 BFTEEMIIE - IR+
Bl At NI EENEEE s AR
WtpE - BIATEASIEATEIRBE o 3t
REEME - HAMEA10% - Bt -
FLAE2008F 1 A1 H A E £/ W
REEE S EREEF B R AT
BAEDBE AR ERBTERT

M2021F 128318 - EAAREBR
R A 2 B AR A E A RIA
BUANTEIR T 2 RIE B W KBS HTE
R MERELER - EFRAE - BELM
BARIME E AR TERAG RS
B U 25 B AT RE M BRR © 7420214F12
A31B  TEBEIELCHBEAMGE 2 H
RPN B AR REE AR ZEE
HEZEREZRZRABHAARE
2,647,057,0007C (20204 : AR ¥
2,265,509,0007T) °

AR BRI R S A B3 & B AR
PIEH®ER -

ERERZERERAT —T-—FRK
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37. PROVISION

37.

Be

Pending

medical

dispute

litigations

SN

BEFHEFA

RMB’000

ARET T

At 1 January 2021 20211 A1H 3,840
Acquisition of a subsidiary U & — I BT B A &) 42 130
Amounts utilised during the year FASBHTHE (3,643)
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H 327
The provision for pending medical dispute litigations HARBEFRFANBEEREERE

was estimated based on management’s best estimate
of the Group’s liabilities of the settlement of the
pending medical dispute litigations. The estimation is
reassessed on an ongoing basis and revised where
appropriate.

38. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised: ETE

3,040,000,000 ordinary shares of

38.

SRR TR R A0 B A S T EAD B 1R
FRYEH M A T S - B3 EE
BEBME LA NER TR
4T -

IR
R 1

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB'000
AR®ET T

RMB’000
ARETT

3,040,000,000 8% & A%

HK$0.00025 each 0.000257% T Hy & 18 i 633 633
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE
1,296,676,516 ordinary shares of 1,296,676,516% &%

HK$0.00025 each 0.000257% JT Hy & 18 i 267 267

Share awards

Details of the Share Award Scheme and the shares
awarded under the Share Award Scheme are included
in note 39 to the financial statements

B 17 52 B

F i BE AT &) AR IR AX 0 BB AT &R
HO AR A0 B R 1B R B TS SRR P RE 39
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On 7 July 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme as a means to recognise the
contribution of and provide incentives for the key
management personnel, employed experts and core
employees.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme
include the Group's directors, senior management,
employed experts and core employees of the Group.
The Share Award Scheme will remain in force for 10
years from 7 July 2014, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to
be granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited
to 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 August 2018. The maximum number of shares
which may be awarded to each eligible participant in
the Share Award Scheme is limited to 1% of the
issued share capital of the Group as at 31 August
2018.

The eligible participant for participation in the Share
Award Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected
and the number of shares to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme is determined by the board of
directors. The board of directors also determines
whether the shares will be awarded with or without
payment of a price by the Selected Participant (the
"Grant Price"”) and the amount of the Grant Price. The
shares to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme
will be purchased by a trustee (the "Trustee"”) from the
open market out of cash contributed by the Group and
be held on trust for the Selected Participant until such
shares are vested with the Selected Participant in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award
Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in
respect of any shares held on trust for the Company
or the Selected Participant.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

R2014F7H78 » NRABIERMI 5 28
Betg UREFBEBRASR - ERHE
RXEZLIEEN TR 4 T HEE -

Bin BT EIM A K2 RERIEASE
MEE A5ESREERE  JEMNR
KMiZLE T - Rip ZENET S8 82014
F7R7BREMAAI0OF BRIESTT
BUB B ER ©

EHZE2018E8A31H * BB LEET
EERIAARTHNSEARNDEBERT B
RATEBEITRABS% o AT LA TR
MNEREETEINEEEGKR2EENEAR
MEERNAEER2018F8H31HE
BITIRAE1% o

2mEh ZEFENAR2EE (&
B2 EE ) RARE R B S 2R
MBRNBE AEFTFEBERRE - &
FERATREHEEZEENER
KE TR (TR ER]) MR ER
MEE X ATZFEADBRER
D B ER TR - BRAREH
BEMREPRAFMHEE - WAE
FAREESRERS  BRELRND
IR BB RERB RS A
BRI

XAEANBHUERTAFANARF
SHEES BB NERRDITERRE -

ERERZERERAT —T-—FRK
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39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 39. Hﬁﬁﬁ%@]ﬁ%ﬂ(%)
The following shares awarded under the Share Award FA - BRERD ZEIGEIRE A TR
Scheme were outstanding during the year: 1718 R AT -

Number of shares

RAEE
Share price
as at the date As at As at
of grant Grant Price 1 January Granted during  Vested during Forfeited 31 December
Date of grant 2021 the year the year during the year 2021 Vesting period
] ; 120216 120214
pituel =p 1R18 FREL ENGEE ! 12A318 BEHHE
30 May 2019 5.27 5.27 4,384,950 - (4,284,950) - 100,000 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2021
2019F5A4308 20191818 2202164718
30 May 2019 5.27 — 8,979,900 - (250,000) (451,000) 8,278,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2022
2019%5A30A 2019518108 22022F4 1A
13,364,850 - (4,534,950) (451,000) 8,378,900

Number of shares

A
Share price
as at the date As at As at
of grant Grant Price 1 January Granted during  Vested during Forfeited 31 December
Date of grant 2020 the year the year during the year 2020 Vesting period
el =p
] 1820205 120205
bl =k BT BT 1A1A FRR NGB 5 12A318 BEHHE
30 May 2019 527 527 9,279,900 - (4,894,950) - 4,384,950 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2021
2019457308 2019F1R1BE202154 418
30 May 2019 527 - 9,239,900 - - (260,000) 8,979,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2022
2019457308 2019F1A182202244 418
18,519,800 - (4,894,950) (260,000) 13,364,850
During the year, the Group recognised equity-settled RAFE  AEBRRILEREE AR
share-based payment expense of RMB10,110,000 HRZAZAEARY10,110,0007T
(2020: RMB8,721,000). (20204 - AR¥8,721,0007T) °
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39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

The movements
reserve during the year are as follows:

in the Company’s treasury share

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

39. R BIEE @)

FAXRRBNEFRO#EE 2 ZEH0M
I

Treasury share

reserve

JEE 13 A& 10 6 4

RMB’000

ARBTT

At 1 January 2020 72020518 1H (283,145)

Sale of treasury shares & E 7R D 380
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 7202012 H31H &

202141 A1 H (282,765)

Vesting of shares &1 5 8 2,317

At 31 December 2021 7202112 H31H8 (280,448)

40. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's

movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

reserves and the

40. fZ &

REBRAREEMURFENREBDRE
LEEHERAMERERFEINCEESE
TMEREHEREHRERFPIR -

equity on pages

110 to 111 of the financial

statements.

(a)

(b)

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China, a portion of the profits of the
Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China has
been transferred to the statutory surplus reserve
funds which are restricted to use.

Share-based payment reverse

The share-based payment reverse comprises the
fair value of shares awarded which are yet to be
vested, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to treasury share reserve and
capital reserve when the related share awards are
vested, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related share awards expire or be
forfeited.

(a) ZEBHLE

REBEHBE ARG RBERER
2R R R ER P B B B R R A
MONEEREANEERBITE
ERXR -

IR A2 1 SR

PS4 158 3R 1t 88 B2 38 10 K B B A 2
Bk ArEE MM ERE
B FE2.4 70 AR D XA & R BUR
SRR o AR
B ZBEBEREREBEFRD
MR ERNATE  HERBERD
REE RSO W B ERE T
e

(b)

EHREERERAT —T-—F®m 227
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40 RESERVES (continued) 40
(c) Actuarial changes reserve

The actuarial changes reserve comprises the
remeasurements arising from changes in
demographic assumptions, financial assumptions
and experiences adjustments, as further explained
in the accounting policy for defined benefit plan in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

41. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 41.
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material

ER A

(c) BEEHHE
BEEHREELETHMIAAR
% BIRSRER A S AR E L
MEAMNEHT=E @ OB KHR
KisF2.4h A FEBFHEI S
R iE— DREE -

BEEARFEREZZIE
EME QA

TREINEEREEEAIERERNA

non-controlling interests are set out below: SEMBARMEES
2021 2020
20214 20204
Percentage of equity interest held by HRIEIERERISA R
non-controlling interests: AR #E LI
Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd. ERmREBRER AR
("Jian Gong Hospital") ([ME=8kl) 20% 20%
Runneng Medical Management Co., Ltd JHEEEEEHGR QA
("Run Neng") ([Eeel) 35% 35%
Huai'An Huaiyin Hospital Investment L TERBIRIRE
and Management Co., Ltd. BEEAR AT
("Huaiyin Hospital Management”) ([EREER]) 20% —
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to IR R E D R
non-controlling interests: FREME(EE) :
Jian Gong Hospital i = B ft 10,904 2,110
Run Neng HEE 9,234 3,960
Huaiyin Hospital Management ERER (13,459) —
Dividend paid to non-controlling XA TR B BT IE AR
interests of Jian Gong Hospital RS 8,883 10,454
Accumulated balances of non- R¥E R 2 ReHIEER
controlling interests at the reporting R
date:
Jian Gong Hospital 2= Bk 114,098 110,092
Run Neng T aE 131,573 118,430
Huaiyin Hospital Management AR ER 147,783 —
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MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

=450 PNGIRC )

41. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 41. BB E RFEERERE 22

AP~ B Y BB E B E S
T Bz eRESBARRMEE
Al Z 258

Jian Gong Huaiyin
Hospital Run Neng Hospital
2= %kt e HERR BB
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTET
Revenue U =5 782,883 589,446 246,034
Total expenses, net RS R (728,361) (563,063) (313,328)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFE/
(F518) 54,522 26,383 (67,294)
Total comprehensive income/  FEZmEUEA
(loss) for the year (E518) %8 54,490 26,383 (67,294)
Current assets MENEE 488,442 421,666 477,673
Non-current assets FERBEE 283,964 158,664 512,619
Current liabilities mBEE (195,314) (176,104) (199,405)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (6,603) (28,304) (51,972)
Net cash flows from operating #&&/EBFE
activities REMEFHE 66,604 84,415 25,731
Net cash flows from/(used in) & EHME
investing activities (FFA)B®
mE R (31,612) (158,192) 168,956
Net cash flows used in BEEENFT A
financing activities HWeREFR (44,419) (25,975) (1,615)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash IR&NMBEEH
and cash equivalents By FE N,/
ORL) (9,427) (99,752) 193,072
ERBRERERAT T —F®W
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41. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 41. BEEKFERERZHESR
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING == NGIC )
|NTERESTS (continued)

Jian Gong
Hospital Run Neng
fid = BB b Hee
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT
Revenue g 620,710 13,933
Total expenses, net BFEZFEE (610,159) (2,620)
Profit for the year FEFE 10,551 11,313
Total comprehensive income FEZERALE
for the year 10,789 11,313
Current assets mENEE 496,193 232,225
Non-current assets ERBEE 288,435 111,586
Current liabilities nBBE (217,450) (5,441)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (16,718) —
Net cash flows from operating KEEBATSIR S
activities mEFE 81,354 1,052
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing &&EZEME(FTH)
activities BemeEF5 85,358 (8,841)
Net cash flows used in financing BmEEFFAR®
activities MEFHE (50,179) —
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekBeFEEMZ
cash equivalents SEE O ) 116,533 (7,789)
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During the vyear, the Group had following events/
transactions which constituted business combinations

in accordance with

IFRS 3 (Revised) "“Business

Combinations” (“IFRS 3 (Revised)”).

(a)

On 28 March 2021, the Group entered into a
share purchase agreement with independent third
parties to acquire 100% equity interest in Sinophi
China Hospitals Limited (“Sinophi Hospitals”) for
a consideration of RMB894,293,000. Sinophi
Hospitals indirectly holds 80% equity interest in
Huaiyin Hospital. Sinophi Hospitals and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Sinophi Hospitals
Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of
general healthcare services.

On 17 June 2021, 99.19% equity interest in
Sinophi Hospitals was transferred to the Group
and the remaining 0.81% equity interest in
Sinophi Hospitals (the “Remaining Shares”) were
pledged in favour of the Group. The Remaining
Shares will be transferred to the Group and the
Group will pay the consideration for the
Remaining Shares of RMB7,232,000 to the sellers
on the fifth business day after the assignment,
transfer or grant to the Group of the cooperation
agreement entered into between the sellers and
Huaiyin District Government (the “Cooperation
Agreement Assignment”). If the Cooperation
Agreement Assignment does not occur on or
before the first anniversary of the closing date of
the acquisition (i.e. 17 June 2021), the
consideration for the Remaining Shares will be
adjusted to RMBb5,063,000 (i.e. 70% of
RMB7,232,000).

The Group has elected to measure the
non-controlling interests in the Sinophi Hospitals
Group at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the Sinophi Hospitals
Group’s identifiable net assets.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

RAE - REBENINTES,/ R SHEK
B B B %5 ¥ 5 X B SB35 (1B A1) % 7%
& 61 (T B BR Bf 75 ¥ 5 28 Bl SB35k (18
EIDRDRCIEE:0E 0 S=n v

(a)

EHBRERARAA

202143 A28H - AEEEE
NE=ZREAURMDEERE K
B Sinophi China Hospitals
Limited ([ Sinophi Hospitals |) &9
100% ik #E REAARK
894,293,0007t ° Sinophi
HospitalsE#Z F B ER BT K
80% fi% # > Sinophi Hospitals &
HWB AR (HKBWISinophi
Hospitals & & ]) = ZE# F1R 4R
EBER -

R2021F6H178 © Sinophi
Hospitals #799.19 % M #E % & 7
EAREE - F#HBSinophi
Hospitals #90.81% % #E ([ F #4 I%
DHOEERTAEE - ERASE
EHEZ SR TEHHER
B HAETNE ERE (&5 1EH
FEEDTHNENEREIE
B F#pBRHEERERAEE -
AEBRBINHEAAREK
7,232,000 7T HI 4B - IR & 1EH
FERSETWER (812021456
A7) B —FARNELE T
BRNIEESERAERRARK
5,063,0007T (BP AR #7,232,000
TLHI70%) °

REEDEERIIFTERERIRL
%1 5> 1k 8 Sinophi  Hospitals %
Al % Bl & E ¥ 1E - 5 ZSinophi
Hospitals & B 09 JE 1% A 1 25 ©

—E-—FR
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31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

On 30 August 2021, the articles of association of
Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital (“999 Brain
Hospital”), Xuzhou Mining Hospital (“Xukuang
Hospital”) and Huaibei City Mental Health Center
("Jing Wei Center”) were amended. Having
considered the power of the Group based on the
amended articles of association together with the
relevant service contracts entered into between
the Group and 999 Brain Hospital, Xukuang
Hospital and Jing Wei Center, in the opinion of
the Group has obtained the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
999 Brain Hospital, Xukuang Hospital and Jing
Wei Center unilaterally and control over these
hospitals since the effective date of the amended
articles of association on 30 August 2021.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of these
hospitals were consolidated in the Group's
financial statements thereafter.

the directors,

Prior to the business combination, the Group was
the sponsor of 999 Brain Hospital,
Hospital and Jing Wei
sponsorship rights and service contracts held by
the Group were recognised as other intangible
assets. Accordingly, the sponsorship rights and
service contracts with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB1,253,188,000 formed the
considerations for the business combinations.

Xukuang
Center and the

b)

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 42. XBE @

Year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) BZ2021F12A831BLLFE
(#]&)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities Sinophi Hospitals®& B + = /1§ &} 2

of the Sinophi Hospitals Group, 999 Brain Hospital, bt - IRIEE MEAEP ORI EAIEE

Xukuang Hospital and Jing Wei Center as at the dates RBREZARBEEEBEHBLT

of business combinations were as follows:

Sinophi

Hospitals 999 Brain ~ Xukuang  Jing Wei
Notes Group  Hospital Hospital Center

Sinophi

Hospitals = JLIS®

i3 &E Bh GRER BETL
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000

ARE  AR®  ARE  AR%

T T T T

Property, plant and mE - BER&
equipment 15 490,402 237,801 132,751 36,242 897,196
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16(a) 37,321 41,380 30,083 5701 114,485
Inventories FE 18,007 19,393 3,576 2,275 43,251
Trade and bills receivables  JEUE 5B R
Rl Z 5% 237,456 100,040 15,512 12,324 365,332
Prepayments, deposits and T HIE « RES
other receivables T H fth JE Uy 208 44,963 235,727 2,291 106 283,087

Financial assets at FVTPL ~ UA#ZBEER
HEHH ABH

MeREE 171,864 120,000 — — 291,864
Cash and cash equivalents B4 REELZEY 43218 149,825 30,135 10,211 233,389
Trade and bills payables ERESHER
ANES S (115,284)  (78,460)  (96,147) (5,544)  (295,435)
Other payables and Hth e 5008 R
accruals B ER (44,056) (175,527)  (24,259)  (40,509)  (284,351)
Due to a related party FE < BB EE 7 3R 0E (1,798) — — — (1,798)
Interest-bearing bank and T BIR7T 1‘*‘ka
other borrowings HifE R (20,890) — — — (20,890
Loan from the Group EEEX — —  (52,964) —  (52,964)
Lease liabilities HERE 16(b) — (9,996) (2,079) — (12,075
Deferred income B A — — — (1,617) (1,617)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE 36 (55,011) — — —  (55,011)
Provision BE 37 — — — (130) (130)
Total identifiable net assets &AL BEZ A H
at fair value RIEEFELS 806,192 640,183 38,899 19,069 1,504,333
Non-controlling interests R E R (161,242) — — —  (161,242)
Goodwill on acquisition WEEENEE 17 249,343 420,349 118,028 16,670 804,390

894,293 1,060,532 156,927 35,729 2,147,481

Satisfied by: AT EAZA
Cash Be 884,670 — — — 884,670
Consideration payables ERHE 9,623 — — — 9,623
Other intangible assets HEmEREE — 1,060,532 156,927 35,729 1,253,188

894,293 1,060,532 156,927 35,729 2,147,481
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31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

The fair values of the trade and bills receivables
and other receivables as at the dates of business
combinations amounted to RMB365,332,000
and RMB262,080,000, respectively. The gross
contractual amounts of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables were RMB518,992,000 and
RMB279,795,000, respectively, of which trade and bills
receivables of RMB153,660,000 and other receivables
of RMB17,715,000 are expected to be uncollectible.

Goodwill arose in the business combinations because
the considerations paid for the business combinations
effectively included, inter alia, amounts in relation to
the benefits of expected synergies from combining the
respective operations of the Sinophi Hospitals Group,
999 Brain Hospital, Xukuang Hospital, Jing Wei Center
and the Group. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using
the present value of the remaining lease payments at
the dates of business combinations. The right-of-use
assets were measured at an amount equal to the
lease liabilities.

REBEHBE - BIKE SHRIEREK
ZEEHMBEBWRIEN AN EBED A
AR #365,332,0007T & A R #&
262,080,000t ° FEUWE 5 718 & FE UL
ZEEHEMBEBWRIENRERSED R
A AR ¥518,992,0007T & A R #
279,795,0007T - A - EUWE 5 I8
& U ZE % A R #153,660,0007T A &
E e GRIB A R#E17,715,000 7L 78 £
ORI o

HEBEEBEHPESE  THRERKS
HIENOEEBERWBIET - BREM
4h - B84 PfSinophi Hospitals & & -
= NISEIERT - RIEERT - BAEP LR
SERS B EBEROTE R
HEMNSE - SLEMRTEEEE D H
BR - AAEMTRERNREREE
MFERIZE - FT A C R E R TERT
TEEIERTISRL A E IR ©

AEEFEAREHEH A MRBGOEE
NHRE - FFEMBBENHEHERE - &
REEENIZASNEE R EN KRR

=
£ -°
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BUE R E U

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 42. #1586t w

Year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) BZE2021F12831B8LLEE
(#&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of these ZEEXEBEHNBERESNET ¢

business combinations is as follows:

RMB’000
ARBT T

Cash consideration RERE (884,670)
Cash and bank balances acquired BWEBIR S MIRITHEER 233,389
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Eﬁ{%&iﬁ@%{g%ﬁ;ﬁﬁj
included in cash flows used in investing Sj;k&ﬁﬁibﬁmﬂiﬁﬁ
activities B (651,281)
Since the business combinations, the Sinophi Hospitals B #7154 #F AR Sinophi Hospitals &
Group, 999 Brain Hospital, Xukuang Hospital and Jing T NISEIERR - RIBER RIEET
Wei Center contributed RMB674,896,000 to the DAEREBEZE2021F12A3181IEF
Group's revenue and loss of RMB62,749,000 to the EmAER T ARE674,896,000
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December T aHMETGFATEEARY
2021. 62,749,0007T °
Had the combinations of the Sinophi Hospitals Group, 1R % Sinophi Hospitals&£ & + = S
999 Brain Hospital, Xukuang Hospital and Jing Wei RIEePr - IRTRE BT SR LA S BFEE
Center taken place at the beginning of the year ended FHEHE2021F12A3MBIEFEL
31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group and the AEEHE2021F12A31HIEFER
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December WARMAMBEBE DA BAREK
2021 would have been RMB5,546,629,000 and 5,546,629,000 7T 1 A R # 426,106,000
RMB426,106,000, respectively. JC °

FERBEERERAT —ZT - —F%
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31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
had following events/transactions which constituted
business combinations in accordance with IFRS 3
(Revised).

(a)

On 3 December 2019, the Group entered into an
agreement with China National Zhong Qi Group
Co., Ltd. (REEAIEEBEFRAQF]) ("CNHTC"),
pursuant to which (i) a company, Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital Company (“Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital”),
would be established and held as to 75% by the
Group and 25% by CNHTC; and (i) cash of
RMB254,235,300 and the hospital-related assets
(e.g., sponsorship right, land use right, buildings
and medical equipment of a hospital in Jinan, the
PRC, etc.) would be contributed into Jinan Zhong
Qi Hospital by the Group and CNHTC,
respectively. Immediately after the completion of
transactions on 30 March 2020, Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital became a subsidiary of the Group.

On 2 May 2020, the articles of association of
Huaibei Miner General Hospital (“Huaikuang
Hospital”) were amended. Having considered the
power of the Group based on the amended
articles of association together with the relevant
service contract entered into between the Group
and Huaikuang Hospital, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group has obtained the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of
Huaikuang Hospital unilaterally and control over
Huaikuang Hospital since the effective date of the
amended articles of association on 2 May 2020.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of
Huaikuang Hospital were consolidated in the
Group’s financial statements thereafter.

Prior to the business combination, the Group was
the sponsor of Huaikuang Hospital and the
sponsorship right and service contract held by the
Group were recognised as other intangible assets.
Accordingly, the sponsorship right and service
contract with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB486,000,000 formed the consideration for the
business combination.

MNEZE2020FE 12831 B IFEE » K&
BRI TES, X PER BRI SRS
AERIZEISE (BR]) ATIEMEB S 6 -
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On 1 June 2020, the articles of association of
Beijing CEEC Hospital, Beijing CEEC Shuozhou
Hospital, Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital,
Guangxi Hydropower Hospital, Gaoxin District
Xingyuan Community Healthcare Centre, Gaoxin
District Tianle Community Healthcare Centre,
Tiandong Street Dianchang Road Community
Healthcare Centre and Hefei Gaoxin District
Changning Community Healthcare Centre
(collectively, the “Run Neng Hospitals”) were
amended. Having considered the power of the
Group based on the amended articles of
association together with the relevant service
contracts entered into between the Group and the
Run Neng Hospitals, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group has obtained the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the Run
Neng Hospitals and control over the Run Neng
Hospitals since the effective date of the amended
articles of association on 1 June 2020.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the Run
Neng Hospitals were consolidated in the Group's
financial statements thereafter.

Prior to the business combination, the Group was
the sponsor of the Run Neng Hospitals and the
sponsorship rights and service contracts held by
the Group were recognised as other intangible
assets. Accordingly, the sponsorship rights and
service contracts with an aggregate -carrying
RMB116,177,000 formed the
consideration for the business combination.

amount of

EHBRERARAA

B RS ERAR M EE
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R2020F6A1H » bR EEEE
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ERBEL (B AIHERESE
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Al ERASEBENKLIERMA
BMERMBIAMEEE RBEPTET L
WEARGERZESN  EFR
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MRBEREKT LIBEESE O
B RAE -

—E R

237



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 42. ¥ & 8tw
Year ended 31 December 2020 (continued) B Z£2020F12HA31HLEFE
()
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities REBEHBE  ERERER - EE
of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital, Huaikuang Hospital and the B R HERBRAAIEINEERAR

Run Neng Hospitals as at the dates of business ZARBEAT :
combinations were as follows:

Jinan
Zhong Qi Huaikuang Run Neng
Notes  Hospital Hospital ~ Hospitals Total
il RS

i3 Eﬁ%ﬁ i34 1 b a5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%  AR® AE%  AR%
Ft fn Fx Fn

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 15 69,900 362,310 73,030 505,240
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16/(a) 45,796 — 15,918 97,714
Inventories lea— 6,450 29,313 20,857 56,620
Trade and bills receivables WEH&E%WE&M&H% 31,732 97,672 17,105 146,509
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ BT FUE - RES R
receivables JE 38 643 74,498 21,709 96,850
Financial assets at FVTPL WRREBEGEEEED
TABGNEREE — 200,000 70,000 270,000
Pledged bank deposit BEBBTER — 37 — 37
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkREEEY 260,787 52,755 57,909 371,451
Trade and bills payables ERNESFER
ENER (34,514)  (137,210)  (69,085)  (240,809)
Other payables and accruals HuENHIER
st ER (27,858)  (162,028)  (53,920)  (243,806)
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FTERTER — — (12,0000  (12,000)
Lease liabilities HEAR 16(0) (24,965) —  (51,918)  (76,883)
Retirement benefit obligations RINENERE 35 —  (26,318) —  (26,318)
Provision BE 37 — (5,029) — (5,029)
Total identifiable net assets at fair Tiz“‘ﬁ{ﬁfﬁz—f%kﬁﬂﬁﬁ
value FEER 327,971 486,000 125605 939,576
Non-controlling interest RS (81,993) — — (81,993
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEEMEE 17 8,257 — — 8,257
Gain on bargain purchase ZEWELRE 7 — — (9,428) (9,428)
254,235 486,000 116,177 856,412
Satisfied by: ITRBI AR LA
Cash Be 254,235 — — 254,235
Other intangible assets HiEpEE — 486,000 116,177 602,177
254,235 486,000 116,177 856,412
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The fair values of the trade and bills receivables and
other receivables as at the dates of business
combinations amounted to RMB146,509,000 and
RMB74,633,000, respectively. The gross contractual
amounts of trade and bills receivables and other
receivables were RMB180,094,000 and
RMB75,248,000, respectively, of which trade and bills
receivables of RMB33,585,000 and other receivables of
RMB615,000 are expected to be uncollectible.

Goodwill arose in the business combination of Jinan
Zhong Qi Hospital because the consideration paid for
the business combination effectively included, inter alia,
amounts in relation to the benefits of expected
synergies from combining the respective operations of
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital and the Group. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The gain on bargain purchase of RMB9,428,000 arising
from the business combination of the Run Neng
Hospitals was primarily attributable to the
consideration for the business combination of
RMB116,177,000 being less than the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the Run Neng Hospitals.

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using
the present value of the remaining lease payments at
the dates of business combinations. The right-of-use
assets were measured at an amount equal to the
lease liabilities.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

REBEHBEH  BRESFIERERK
SEREHMEWREN AR BED A
AR®146,509,000T & A R #&
74,633,0007T © U E 5 FIE K EWERE
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AR #180,094,000T & A R #&
75,248,0007T + HA - EWE HFIAR
eI ZE 3k AR EE 33,585,000 70 MA M E A
JE U R TE A R 615,000 70 78 HA 5% Uk
@ °

PHEABRNEBEHELRE 2
HREBAHAXNOREER L2
(Hh B #eBmE Bk AEE
& B B L8 T8 B EE A 15 (R R ER P s R Y
B ERAE - 2 SH S A EEE
DHER  RARZFERLARTEA]
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EHAEHR A AR SR -

B RBREBEHEENZEEBUEL
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HERBRABNEEFENAAE
R

AEBEAREBEHAMRGNEE
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E R E

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of these
business combinations is as follows:

EBEHHw
BZE2020F512A318 LEE

(&)

ZEXBAFNRSRESHTNOT

RMB’000
ARBTT

Cash consideration HeERE (254,235)
Cash and bank balances acquired BUWEEIR & MIRIT4 371,451
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ReRFeZEEBWERA

included in cash flows from investing (GFARBEBMGERS

activities mE) 117,216

Since the business combinations, Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital, Huaikuang Hospital and the Run Neng
Hospitals contributed RMB1,027,862,000 to the
Group’'s revenue and RMB16,537,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Had the combinations of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital, Huai
Kuang Hospital and the Run Neng Hospitals taken
place at the beginning of the year ended 31
December 2020, the revenue of the Group and the
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have been RMB3,154,349,000 and
RMB307,970,000, respectively.

BEBESOAK - BrEAER - ERE
Bl EERBR A AREEEZE2020
F12A3MBLEFENRATBRT AR
#1,027,862,0007T * A& B F B & B
T AR¥16,537,0007T °

R B E)TER - EREBRAEE
RERNEHEETEZE20206F12 A
NBELEFEY  AKXBEEZE20205F12
RA31BIEFEHRAMAER D BB
ABR# 3,154,349,0007C 1 A R #&
307,970,0007T °
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(a)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition to the acquisition of 49% equity
interest in Beijing Runtou Medical Technology
Co., Ltd as detailed in note 50 to the financial
statements, on 9 February 2021, the Group has
acquired the remaining 49% equity interest at a
cash consideration of RMB1,022,000.

In addition to the acquisition of 75% equity
interest in Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital as detailed in
note 42 to the financial statements, on 21
August 2020, the Group has succeeded in the bid
for the remaining 25% equity interest in Jinan
Zhong Qi Hospital held by CNHTC at a cash
consideration of RMB84,687,000 through the
listing-for-sale process conducted by the
Shandong Property Rights Exchange Centre. The
acquisition was completed on 31 August 2020.
The carrying value of the 25% interest in the net
assets of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital as at the date
of acquisition was RMB83,684,000. Accordingly,
the difference of RMB1,003,000 was recognised
in capital reserve.

(i) During the vyear, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB2,694,000 (2020:
RMB2,072,000) and RMB2,694,000 (2020:
RMB2,072,000), respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for office properties.

(i) During the ended 31 December 2020, the
payables to the Sponsored Hospitals of
RMB37,854,000 was settled by offsetting
against trade and bills receivables.

(il)  During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group acquired right-of-use assets and
other intangible assets of RMB24,395,000
and RMBS8,000,000, respectively, and the
considerations were settled by offsetting
against other receivables.

(a)

EHBRERARAA

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

B n Bt 75 =R 3R B 5 50 By 2t Ut B b
THEBERMARAF49% K
SN - RNEEEF 202152 A9H M
AR #1,022,0007CH) IR 4 HHEEL
BT EHR49% %1 o

B B 75 3R 2R BT 5242 BT it 9 U B S
B REEPT75% AR EIE N
REEKR2020F8 H21H@ AL
REEBRRSFLETHEE L
EREF - LALAR¥84,687,0007C
WIREHEKIKETHPREER
AESEERAENEREAIERF
#R25% AR #E o U fE 11202048 A
3MHZEK - RWER  BRENA
B FEEDL%MEENREE
A AN R #83,684,0007T ° 8 E
i ZFARE1,003,000 TR

(i) FA AEEBGEABEAYER
ETHEBCERAEEER
HEBBNIERSIEND T
B ANRM2694,0007T
(20204 : AE®2,072,000
JC) A R #2,694,0007C
(20204 : AE® 2,072,000
JL) °

(i) #HZ=2020F12A31HLLF
& FERT R BRI EA
R#:37,854,0007T J53@ B
SHEUE 5 F0A K e =g
MiEHE -

(i) #HZ=2020%12H318 It F
B AEBERSTEEAA
R #24,395,000 7T &9 {# A #E
EEMNMTEAARE
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 44. FEREREB/ROME w0
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from

(b) REMEEFTHELENEE

financing activities S E
2021 20214
Interest-
Payables to bearing bank
the  borrowings
Sponsored and other Lease
Hospitals borrowings liabilities
BT E
JEfTERpE RITEBERR
BB IR H a3 HEBME
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETET
At 1 January 2021 M2021FE1H1H 217,717 684,301 66,173
New leases NHEE - - 2,694
Changes from financing L8R eREH
cash flows (1,555) 985,167 (18,467)
Foreign exchange ME 5 & B
movement = (24,459) =
Interest expense FERX — 12,621 3,120
Interest paid classified as D EAZEE
financing cash flows REeMHOEN
AR - (12,621) (3,120)
Increase arising from WHE & BEH B
acquisition/consolidation N A)EE A R38N
of subsidiaries = 20,890 12,075
Elimination upon G GFHT B A 7
consolidation of B K 85
subsidiaries (215,996) = =
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H 166 1,665,899 62,475
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from

financing activities (continued)

2020

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

44. ZERERERROM T @

(b) BEMETHELENEE
BE ()

2020 F

Payables
to the
Sponsored
Hospitals

JE A £ i
2 B SR
RMB'000

ARBTT

bearing bank

Interest-
Lease
borrowings liabilities
FTBERTT

&k

RMB’000
ARBTT

HERE
RMB'000
ARBT T

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1H1H 255,571 578,337 18,883
New leases wHE — — 2,072
Changes from financing E8RenE

cash flows — 139,799 (8,683)
Foreign exchange bE 5 & &)

movement — (45,835) —
Interest expense FMERX — 12,797 3,242
Interest paid classified as DEAEEESR

financing cash flows 7B FLE — (12,797) (3,242)
Increase arising from WihE, & B A

acquisition/consolidation A A /938 0

of subsidiaries — 12,000 76,883
Covid-19-related rent HHEARERHIE

concessions from a mEREESE

lessor ik — — (1,791)
Lease termination ME&IE — — (20,177)
Lease modification — HESE — HESH

Reduction in the scope B 2R

of leases — — (1,014)
Set off with trade and bills 2B E 5 K IE &

receivables FEW IR 8 (37,854) — —
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 217,717 684,301 66,173
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PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 44. ZEREREREXVHFTE @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERESRHALE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the UTAEBRSRERKATBEIENTE
statement of cash flows is as follows: EReROETEE -

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT
Within operating activities KEEEN 10,791 4,609
Within financing activities BEEHN 21,587 11,925
32,378 16,534
45. COMMITMENTS 45, E1IE
The Group had the following capital commitments at REERBMERARBIUNT 2 EAEIE :

the end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARBTT

Contracted, but not provided for: SHEREES: T

Property, plant and equipment B@ME - BE
& 32,658 20,429
Repayable investment RIRIOTZ HE M)
amounts to 10T hospitals IOT & B 1 1 Y
under |OT arrangements JEEEIRE
TR - 538,000
Capital contribution ) — A& AR
to an associate B (i) - 869,117
Note: PR -
(i) On 10 November 2020, the Group entered into an agreement for v 2!»‘%%1%%_3?2022%11)5! 125?&1*;*%
the increase of capital of the Group's associate, JR Holdings, with iiy%;g;:ﬂ/igixggﬁz jiét%g
Jing Mei Group, pursuant to which the registered capital of JR 1,000,000,000 7T + i 7% £ M 7 52 ) SUR 42 5%
Holdings would be increased to RMB1,000,000,000 and the Group A AR®S69,117,0007C « XA HBBAR
committed a capital contribution to JR Holdings in the amount of 869,117,000 7T A AN 4 & [A) FUB PR AR L1+ =

RMB869,117,000. During the vyear, the capital contribution of
RMB869,117,000 was made to JR Holdings.
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BUE R E U

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

46. BB T X 5

PR AN B 7 90 2% L 4 B 43 P 0 45
B RHERXSHHEN AEE
FRNERBEHTOEAZZOT

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the balances, arrangements and (a)
transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®FTT
Healthcare services BBk
Subsidiaries controlled by FEEBERA
China Resources Al ([ EE
Company Limited B Tz §I Y
(“CR Co.")* LN NCI 1,693 1,113 A
GPO business GPO% 7%
Subsidiaries controlled by R B 2 R P4
CR Co. EO)iOPEERNG] 11,836 — B
Hospital management BREERE
service
Subsidiaries controlled by Fp [ 2 B P 4% )
CR Co. ol EN NG 31,682 — C
Other hospital-derived Hi BT E R
services
Subsidiaries controlled by B 2 R P4
CR Co. ol N NG 595 198 A
Other income H i A
Subsidiaries controlled by P B2 B P
CR Co. B B 2 A 109 982 A
Purchases of goods EBEm
Subsidiaries controlled by rh [ 2 8 P 4% )
CR Co. olieg-s NG 358,812 264,730 D
Investment income on NAnEETTER
financial assets at FVTPL HEBH AERE
HNEmEERE
WA
Subsidiaries controlled by B 2 R P
CR Co. EOapEERNGT 800 2,105 E
Interest income on bank BOTERFERKA
deposits
Subsidiaries controlled by R B 2 R P4
CR Co. oleg-s NG 626 452 E
Other purchases and HttXBEREA
expenses
Subsidiaries controlled by Fp [ 2 P 4% )
CR Co. ol NN 7,103 4,070 F
Lease payments HAEMAR
Subsidiaries controlled by R B2 R P4
CR Co. ol iy NG 6,043 5,621 G

CR Co. has significant influence over the Group.

*

ERHER

TEEEYAEEREATEN -
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties:

Due from related parties

46. BB AR Z

(b) EABEEETT MV REESER

FE: W 2 Bt 75 RO

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREFTT

RMB’000
ARBTIT

Subsidiaries controlled

B R AT 51 &Y

by CR Co. i 8~ ]

Trade in nature g 58 5,294 3,538 H

Non-trade in nature FEEHE 1,847 1,934 I
7,141 5,472

An ageing analysis of the trade-related
receivables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

RE|BEMRREER AR RNR
EiRREE7INEMREKE SR
HERRE DT

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB'000
AREEFT

RMB’000
ARBETIT

Within 60 days 60K A 3,740 3,342
61 to 180 days 61Z180K 1,554 196
5,294 3,538

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one

year.

FEA BB ) IR R BT - B
REAR—FAEE -
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31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BB AR F @
(continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) HEMAINEREELEL  (B)
(continued)
Due to related parties P& 1 B8 Bt 5 Tk OE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Subsidiaries controlled o B0 5 R P A 6 A
by CR Co. P 8 2 ]
Trade in nature B8 120,132 93,361
Non-trade in nature FEHIE 6,151 4,390 J
126,283 97,751
The amounts due to related parties are JENBEB I RIBEAEET 28
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on NBREREE -
demand.
Bank balances RITHEER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
Subsidiaries controlled Fh [ 2 O P i I 9
by CR Co. SPEENET 93,280 260,427 E
The bank balances carried interest at a rate of RITHEBR D EFFE0.35%
0.35% (2020: 0.35%) per annum. (20204 : 0.35%) 5t & °
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BB A X Z w0
(continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) HEBMIMEREESELR (&)
(continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL UAREBEFTEEHZE
FFABERNEREE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR TIT ARBT T
A subsidiary controlled B R AT A
by CR Co. —MEKE AT - 2,519 E
As at 31 December 2020, the financial assets at R2020F12H31H - LARE
FVTPL carried interest at a rate of 2.8% per B2 BEEHTABENESR
annum. BERFMNE28%ETE °
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of (00 AEEFZEEBAB ZHM:
the Group:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Short term employee benefits EHEERN 22,067 32,758
Post-employment benefits BBt A 379 89
Equity-settled share-based 122 B 4 B DA RS A S A
payment expense -3 2,890 3,050

Total compensation paid to key MEZEBABLNEHN

management personnel N4 EE 25,336 35,897
Further details of directors’ and the chief EERBEAOME R E B
executive’s emoluments are included in note 10 R SRR MFE10 -

to the financial statements.
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The corresponding related party transactions constituted Continuing
Connected Transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (“Connected Transaction(s)”) but were fully exempted from
the relevant disclosures and other requirements, including,
announcements, circulars and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements and annual reports in accordance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) (the “Relevant Requirements”)
pursuant to rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

The corresponding related party transactions constituted Connected
Transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which
was governed by the cooperation agreement dated 25 June 2021
entered into between Beijing Yisheng Yongxin Medical Equipment
Co.,Ltd. (At R a4 K15 BEEM AR 2 7)) and Nanning Yuenianhua
Rehabilitation Hospital Co.,Ltd. (FZEEMHFEFREERFRAR) for
fiscal year 2021, and were subject to the Relevant Requirements
but were exempt from circular and independent shareholders’
approval pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and such
Relevant Requirements had been complied with.

The corresponding related party transactions constituted Connected
Transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which
were governed respectively by the cooperation agreement dated 1
July 2020 entered into between Beijing Phoenix Lianyi Supply
Chain Management Co., Ltd. (Jt R [BEHEHEEHEEEHRAR) and
Beijing Jing Run Renkang Holdings Co., Ltd. (At R B EIERE
fR/A7F]) and the cooperation agreement dated 12 March 2021
entered into between Hubei Runkang Healthcare Management Co.,
Ltd. (Mt ERBEEEHFREFE2AF) and Shenzhen Runtou
Consulting Co., Ltd. CRYITTEEAFABRR AR, and were subject to
the Relevant Requirements but were exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules, and such Relevant Requirements had been
complied with.

The corresponding related party transactions constituted Continuing
Connected Transactions, which were governed by the original
pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables supply
framework agreement dated 7 November 2019 entered into
between the Company and China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CR Holdings”) for fiscal year 2020 and 2021, and were
subject to the Relevant Requirements. The Relevant Requirements
with respect to these transactions had been complied with.

f i

EHBRERARAA

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

HERREM T X 2BK T EBMRIAES LT
HEAI([EWARB F1AATFE RN FERM
Bz ((HEZ5])  BRELTRAE
T4A.76(1) (5 T 2 8 28 <7 A BB E M K
BE - BREAS  BREBIBRRIERTE
IARFER(THEEER]) -

HERRE T 2 B EMRBEVIAZEFIE
EORERS  ER2021FHBRFERZIER
BAEKGEEREMAR AR EEED N FE
BERKRAR A AN202146 250 7T LH)
EiEMAERTT  RETHEBEESR  EREL
AR B S 14A.76(2) 167 34 5 38 <7 3 (1 S B L
R EZ BR  MZERHEHETHE

2R e

AR XS EK ETAAF4ATHE
BWHER S - W BlRAL B 2 B 8
BERBRARELRRBCERZERERA
AR 20207 A1 BRI & 1B KoL E
FEATEARATATERIITERES
BIRARN2021F3 8128 LB A &
Wi BESTHEBER  BREFTRANE
14A.76/(2) 151 B % 38 <738 ol [2 8 S AR AL
ZEX: MzERHBETHEEX -

HHEBRB X IBERBERERS BER
2020 %2021 F M B FE R AN A R B (%
E)FRAR([ZEHEE]) R2019F11 77
BATS AR B - BRI I B8 AR AE M (i pE
ERGHENT  WEETHEZER mMZE
RHBETHMAEX -

T —FR

249



250

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5ot 7% S

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

Notes: (continued)

The corresponding related party transactions constituted Continuing
Connected Transactions, which were governed by the original
strategic cooperation agreement dated 7 November 2019 entered
into between the Company and China Resources Bank of Zhuhai
Co., Ltd. ("CR Bank") for fiscal year 2020 and 2021, and were
subject to the Relevant Requirements. The Relevant Requirements
with respect to these transactions had been complied with.

The corresponding related transactions amounting to RMB3,388,142
in 2021 constituted Continuing Connected Transactions, which
were governed by the strategic cooperation agreement dated 22
November 2021 entered into between China Resources Hospital
Management & Consulting Co. Ltd. (ZEHEBEREEZAERADA)
and Resolink Software System (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (HESEUF R
CFID) BBRAF]) for fiscal year 2021, and were subject to the
Relevant Requirements but were exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules, and such relevant requirements had been
complied with. The remaining transactions in 2021 and 2020
constituted Connected Transactions which were fully exempted
from the Relevant Requirements.

The related party transaction amounting to RMB1,627,597 in 2021
(2020: RMB1,002,000) constituted a Continuing Connected
Transaction, which was governed by the cooperation agreement
dated 7 November 2019 entered into between the Company and
China Resources Leasing Company Limited (ZEfEHR A7), and
was subject to the Relevant Requirements. The Relevant
Requirements with respect to this transaction had been complied
with. And the related party transactions amounting to
RMB4,329,324 in 2021 and 2020 constituted Connected
Transactions, which were governed by the lease agreement dated
23 May 2019 entered into between CR Hospital Management &
Consulting as lessee and the Fengtai branch of China Resources
Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (¥ H&
AR (ER) BHEREERATLEH AR, which is a branch
company of a subsidiary of CR Land) as lessor, and were subject
to the Relevant Requirements but were exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules, and such relevant requirements had been
complied with. And the related party transactions amounting to
RMB86,100 in 2021 (2020: RMB289,777) constituted a Connected
Transaction, but were fully exempted from the Relevant
Requirements.

BEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes: (continued)

Among the total outstanding amounts due from related parties as
of 31 December 2021 which are trade in nature, RMB1,900,000
were management service charge receivable, which were governed
by the cooperation agreement dated 1 July 2020 entered into
between Beijing Phoenix Lianyi Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.
(b =Bl R B L fESE B T2 B R A F)) and Beijing Jing Run Renkang
Holdings Co., Ltd. (Jt R FUB{CFEIER AR A R]), and RMB1,337,460
was receivables for equipment which were governed by the
cooperation agreement dated 25 June 2021 entered into between
Beijing Yisheng Yongxin Medical Equipment Co.,Ltd. (1t Sz 4K{E
B R M AR A7) and Nanning Yuenianhua Rehabilitation Hospital
Co.,Ltd. (FAEMHFERERRAMRAAF]), and were subject to the
Relevant Requirements but were exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules, and such Relevant Requirements had been
complied with. Other remaining amounts as of 31 December 2021
were incurred in relation to the transactions with connected parties
of the Company which were fully exempted from the Relevant
Requirements.

Among the total outstanding amounts due from related parties as
of 31 December 2021 which are non-trade in nature, RMB786,000
(31 December 2020: RMB786,000) were deposits paid pursuant to
the lease agreement dated 23 May 2019 entered into between CR
Hospital Management & Consulting as lessee and the Fengtai
branch of China Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (ZEHEHAS (bt R) BHEMEERARLZ
A% A7}, which is a branch company of a subsidiary of CR Land)
as lessor, and RMB105,000 (31 December 2020: 105,000) were
deposits paid pursuant to the lease agreement dated 7 November
2019 entered into between the IOT Hospitals, Guangdong CEEC
Power Hospital and Xuzhou Mining Hospital, as lessee, and China
Resources Leasing Company Limited as lessor. The corresponding
related party transactions were subject to the Relevant
Requirements but were exempt from circular and independent
shareholders’ approval pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules, and such Relevant Requirements had been complied with.
Other remaining amounts as of 31 December 2021 were incurred
in relation to the transactions with connected parties of the
Company which were fully exempted from the Relevant
Requirements.

Among the total outstanding amounts due to related parties as of
31 December 2021 which are non-trade in nature, RMB5,083,319
was loss investment to the fund, while the remaining amounts as
of 31 December 2021 were incurred in relation to Connected
Transaction under the Subscription Agreement entered into by
Union Champ Limited and China Resources Healthcare Fund
Management Limited (ZERBEREESER (H2)), were subject to
the Relevant Requirements but were exempt from circular and
independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules, and such Relevant Requirements had been
complied with. Other remaining amounts as of 31 December 2021
were incurred in relation to the transactions with connected parties
of the Company which were fully exempted from the Relevant
Requirements.
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N

period are as follows:

2021

Financial assets

Financial
assets at
FVTPL —

Mandatorily

measured as
such
ARBEE

HEEH
BBEA
18258 % B
g —
AU 3
RMB’000
AREFTT

Receivables from 10T

KEIOTE B 2 e

47. o Ee®mIT A

20214
PHEE

Financial
assets at
amortised

cost

s
RARER
SHAE
RMB'000
AREF T

RBEHREER S/ T ANKREEN

Akt
RMB'000
AREFTE

hospitals IR - 58,898 58,898
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 FIBE R
e = 766,603 766,603
Financial assets included in  FF ATEFIA - R
prepayments, deposits B R H AR
and other receivables HIENERMEE = 268,073 268,073
Due from related parties JE Wt Ba B 75 SR IR - 7,141 7,141
Financial assets at FVTPL RAnEEFEA
HE8 ABa
WEeREE 65,301 - 65,301
Other financial assets at H M 1R 8 S A R
amortised cost ATENEREE — 908,701 908,701
Restricted and pledged bank & 1% 51 2 £
deposits RITFER — 4,592 4,592
Cash and cash equivalents IR&NBEEEEY — 2,324,051 2,324,051
65,301 4,338,059 4,403,360
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31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 47. oL@ T B w
CATEGORY (continued)
2021 (continued) 2021 ﬂi (&)
Financial liabilities THEEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REHN AT E
MEBMAE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Trade and bills payables ENESRBRENEE 827,574
Financial liabilities included in other payables and &+ A H fth f& <t 28 & fE =1
accruals BAMNCHMAE 231,564
Due to related parties JE BB B 75 5B 126,283
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JRE A< 22 3 e B8 B R IE 166
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHEERITREMERK 1,665,899
Lease liabilities HEBE 62,475
2,913,961
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PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

2020

Financial assets

47. BoEEMIT Em

2020 F
SHEE

Receivables from 10T

KEIOTE R 2 UK

Financial
assets at
FVTPL —
Mandatorily
measured as
such

AanEER

SFABEH
TREE —

58 B A ML E

RMB’000
ARBTIT

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

2 0
ESE L
AR
RMB'000
AREFT

Adt
RMB’000
AR T

hospitals KIE — 77,214 77,214
Loan to a sponsored M — R EER
hospital RIENER — 51,197 51,197
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5B R
e — 618,103 618,103
Financial assets included in  FF ATEFIA - R
prepayments, deposits Fe &k EAEU
and other receivables HIENERMEE — 334,293 334,293
Due from related parties JE Wt Ba B 75 SRR — 5,472 5,472
Financial assets at FVTPL RAnEEFEA
HEHt ABam
WEeREE 198,014 — 198,014
Other financial assets at H M 1R 8 S A R
amortised cost ATENEREE — 265,022 265,022
Pledged bank deposits SR ITER — 17,454 17,454
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY — 2,701,370 2,701,370
198,014 4,070,125 4,268,139
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31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 47. oL@ T B w
CATEGORY (continued)
2020 (continued) ZOZOﬂE (&)
Financial liabilities THEEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REHN AT E
MEBMAE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Trade and bills payables ENESRBRENEE 564,125
Financial liabilities included in other payables and &+ A H fth f& <t 28 & fE =1
accruals BAMNCHMAE 180,900
Due to related parties JE BB B 75 5B 97,751
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JRE A< 22 3 e B8 B R IE 217,717
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHEERITREMERK 684,301
Lease liabilities HEBE 66,173
1,810,967
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31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

256

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, restricted and pledged bank
deposits, trade and bills receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, balances with related parties, the current
portion of other financial assets at amortised cost,
trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, payables to the
Sponsored Hospitals and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of receivables from IOT hospitals, loan
to a sponsored hospital and the non-current portion of
other financial assets at amortised cost have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair value of the listed financial asset at FVTPL is
based on quoted market prices.

The fair values of the unlisted financial assets at
FVTPL are estimated by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the market interest rates of
instruments with similar terms and risks.

EEEFETRE LIRS FEY - R
R EMRITER - BRESHHAR
R ER - s ATBNFOR - RiEE ME
WA SRV E - BB T A
# o HIREER A ENEREER
mEED - ENBSHARENRE
APARMEN AL ETERN SR A
{8 - TR B SR Rt BERTT
KEMER - ARELE T ASIHHRR
B FREARBERIREE -

TREENBBENAABERENRS
(BHFFEHERIN M ETBRR
BT AMNSEAR « AT HEMBRRE
ARFHEAALEE:

KEIOTE& R 2 FEUCGKIA - A — & 2 3
BRI A B R E IR SHA ARG
ENEREENERBED mﬂﬁF
B DERBEFELUGK  FER
RIER2 B HARR ) T AR A] 15 ﬂf%ﬁ
BHARKRERERFE -

NWARBEAEEEEH:TABREN L
MeMEENAABEERTIS®RE -

UAfEEFEAEZES T ARENIE
theREENA A BERREARR
RSN E R B T AR ISR - 5K
FRASREHERLGEEN -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
|NSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2021

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

48. TERTEMNAABERAR
BEEBR @

[RBEEER

TRHBTARELBTANA L HE
SHEEM

BAREBHEGIEZEE
R2021F 12831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERATSENDAEEFTE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BTS2 BATA EvNgY|

BE BEBAE HRBAME

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(F—#) (BZ#) (F=%)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARETRT ARETT

Financial assets at FVTPL UAREBEFEAHEHTA
BRNEREE 65,301 = = 65,301
As at 31 December 2020 R2020%F 12431 H

DA% R B REBEHA
BN BAR

Financial assets at FVTPL

Quoted prices

Fair value measurement using
FRANTRENRAEETE
Significant Significant
observable
inputs
ENC|
BRBAE
(Level 2)
(B=#)
RMB’000
ARET T

unobservable
inputs
BEANT
BR@AE
(Level 3)
&=
RMB'000
ARBTT

in active
markets

ERT S
BE
(Level 1)
(F—%)
RMB'000
ARET T

RMB'000
ARBTT
92,718

105,296 — 198,014

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial
assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

MR2021F12 8318 » ANE E I (1]
UAABEAENSFEE (20204 :
) o

FR sREENSRABBEE —RM
E_BBETFEAREBEFGENE
B2 EERE = RAEE (2020
F o) o

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

258

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents, restricted and pledged bank
deposits, other financial assets at amortised cost,
financial assets at FVTPL, payables to the Sponsored
Hospitals and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as receivables from |I0OT hospitals, loan to a
sponsored hospital, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, balances with related parties, trade and
bills payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and lease liabilities, which
mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s loan to a
sponsored hospital and interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
interest rate risk. The Group mitigates this risk by
closely monitoring the movements in interest rates and
reviewing its available credit facilities and their
utilisation regularly.

AEBNEE éﬂlﬂ&%ﬁiﬂﬁi
ZEY - REIMEAMEEIFRITER -
mﬁ%%ﬁ¢%%%@@£§~uﬁﬁ
BEEAEEEZHTTAEZNERE
B~ FEATER Y REBR PR B IA LA st BUERTT
NEMER BLemTANTFEEN
TRAAEEMNELREES - AEEE
FEMEEEREEMAR  flakeE
IOT & B < FEURIR ~ [m)—FH] 22 it i B8
TR ER - BB ZRIEREKRE
TFVEH\%EH RIE - REE S RE MBI
HENERMEE  HEMITNER B
T#Ei SHRERENEE - st AEMER
FENREAEANSHREE  ULKHEE
BE FEZEERBHKEEY-

$$@%@Iﬂﬁimigﬂﬁ%ﬂ”
CHNERRS - EEE - REES
&%\ﬁﬂﬂm°“$A%§IH
ﬁAﬁtﬁﬂ 2 R - B e

REEAZNT SN RSB AR T 20
N5 E 0 — A R R R B iR eV B R A
NEBFEN RN BRITERER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact on loan to a sponsored
hospital and interest-bearing bank borrowings).

= [ b2 ()

TRETTEMBHEMBEERFTEN
BRAT  AEENBANECRETE
A — & B2 o B P fR (L PO B R AN E T SR
TTEFR) FIR A IR A L BB BURIE

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

49. BiIEEREEEEREBE @

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
2 IR IEINE
i Crd) g/ Crd)
RMB'000
ARBTT
2021 20214
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEERITE K 50 (8,233)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT BERITE K (50) 8,233
2020 20204
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — R BRI E R 50 256
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — 2R BT iR M E K (50) (256)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT BERITE K 50 (3,422)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITER (50) 3,422

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from operating and financing
transactions of operating units in currencies other than

the unit's functional currencies.

S BE R B
AEMERHEBAR - LWEARBREE
o B 45 4 B LA T B S LA S e
RITHGENBERS -

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. IR REEEEREE @

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the United States dollars (“US$"”) and HK$
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,

S EE [ B2 ()

TRETTEMBHEMEERFTEDN
BRT  AEEHRMMNB(REBEE
MEBENAAEEZES) NEEHRY
ER(ETDMETEXRGIER L&

B BRI

of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the
fair values of monetary assets and liabilities).

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in in profit

US$/HKS rate before tax

Ern/

78 T IE 2 75t A1 A1

#nOmd) g, O )

% RMB'000

AR®ET T

2021 20214

If the RMB weakens against the US$ 1A R# H =iz E 5 4,648
If the RMB strengthens against the 1A R X ETAE

US$ (5) (4,648)

If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 1 A R# 5 BTz E 5 (81,509)
If the RMB strengthens against the AR 5B THAE

HK$ (5) 81,509

2020 20204

If the RMB weakens against the US$ 1A R# K =082 E 5 54
If the RMB strengthens against the AR X ETHAE

US$ (5) (54)

If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 0 A R# X Bz E 5 (33,064)
If the RMB strengthens against the AR 5B THAE

HK$ (5) 33,064

Credit risk FERK

The Group mainly transacts with recognised and AEETZHRAREERINE=F
creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances are EIIRS - BPRIERESXIFERE
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's A S E Ay R R e S AR E
exposure to bad debts increased during the year BB aOtERmARTIEN  ELBRE
mainly due to acquisition/consolidation of hospitals, fe BRI BRRRRE ©

which are subject to tighter regulation of medical

insurance.
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31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. BiIEEREEEEREBE @

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end
staging

RERERKEFLERER

TREIERAEEEERRNEEE
ERESEERR TEERNAREH
(BRIEEMER FTEEAN B AL EK
AHBNNBERTES) » RR12A31
BHFERERDE T2 EHER

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging

information

classification as at 31 December. The amounts EemEEMEKREE -
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.

As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12531H

Receivables from 10T hospitals

K B I0TE B 2 FE W 5RIA

12-month
ECLs
1218 A
BHEE
B8

Stage 1
F1MEER
RMB’000
ARETFT

Lifetime ECLs

2HEHEEEE
Simplified
approach
ikl ePapzS
RMB’000

ARETFTT

Total

At
RMB’'000
ARBTT

Stage 3
FEIRER
RMB’000
ARETFTT

Stage 2
FE2REER
RMB’000
ARETFTT

— Not yet past due — & R 48 A 58,898 - - - 58,898
Trade receivables* FEUWE 558> = - — 849,793 849,793
Bills receivables JE U = 4%

— Not yet past due — & AR 8 AR 370 - - - 370
Contract assets* AHBE* = = — 27,560 27,560
Financial assets included in FFABMRIE  REEK

prepayments, deposits and other Hib BRI 2 R E

receivables BE = = = = =

— Normal** — —RR** 304,883 - - = 304,883

— Doubtful** — RiE** = = 1,159 - 1,159
Due from related parties R B R 7 3R 0E 1,847 - - 5,294 7141
Other financial assets at amortised HEmiR# N A E2NE

cost A& E

— Not yet past due — [# AR 6 AR 908,701 - - — 908,701
Restricted and pledged bank PR 1) 14 0 B #R ER AT 17 3K

deposits

— Not yet past due — M AREER 4,592 - - - 4,592
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEEY

— Not yet past due — & R 48 A 2,324,051 - - — 2,324,051

3,603,342 = 1,159 882,647 4,487,148
ERBRERERAT T —F®W
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PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. IR REEEEREE @

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end

staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2020

Receivables from 10T hospitals

KB I10T & B 2 e Y k1A

12-month
ECLs
12{8 7

Stage 1
E 1R ER
RMB'000
AREETTT

BEeERRFERER@®
2020412 531H

Lifetime ECLs

Simplified
approach
a1k 7%
RMB'000

Stage 2
E2RHER
RMB'000

Stage 3
FE3PEER
RMB'000

Total
At

RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTE ARETT ARBTT

— Not yet past due — R H 77,214 — — — 77,214
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — R BT IR
BR
— Not yet past due — R H 51,197 — — — 51,197
Trade receivables* FEWE 5 koA — — — 643,680 643,680
Bills receivables EWEE
— Not yet past due — R H 400 — — — 400
Contract assets* AHEE* — — — 19,840 19,840
Financial assets included in FFATERSIE  REEZR
prepayments, deposits and other EfERFIEN S mE
receivables E
— Normal** — PR 334,337 — — — 334,337
— Doubtful** — RIE*¥ — — 1,203 — 1,203
Due from related parties JE M B B T 7R 0R 1,934 — — 3,538 5,472
Other financial assets at amortised ~ EMIZ# ik Nzt 80 S
cost A& E
— Not yet past due — WA 265,022 — — — 265,022
Pledged bank deposits ERMRITER
— Not yet past due — R H 17,454 — — — 17,454
Cash and cash equivalents ReERASEED
— Not yet past due — # R EA 2,701,370 . . — 2,701,370
3,448,928 — 1,203 667,058 4,117,189
* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies * RAEEERGERESENERE S HIE
the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the REHEE  ERBBEEEBEER D BING
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 27 and 28 to the financial R M 27 R28HE -
statements.
*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, *x FFAEMGE RESKEMERFENS

MEENABY YEREEMRAZER
BEBVIARRAREERBEZEM &
ERESHRERI—KRI - TR EMEEN
EEEEBHRARIRE] -

deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that
the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

BRAEBEEERE S HREMNEENE
BB — 2 B BB TE R SRR
27 HEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to
shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity
risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities
of financial assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its risk to a shortage of funds by considering the
maturities of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets.

The Group’'s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank and other borrowings. The Group aims
to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to
meet its liquidity requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

BRREEBERBE @

REESER

RBE TR IEAREREE SRR
NEITHMBEEENER - AEBEmERD
nPELRRIEREEHMEENAR
MEHIREEE - AREBREEESRE
ENEREENTIHAREZEE SRR
LR ©

AEENEERBAEMRRITRAME
REESHEEEMB R ZBREF
B  AREEEEFRANRES RS
EEYM UhRHERBEEFR -

RIBERARMBRMNFR - REPRLEE
TREBENIMBERLT

Group KE
2021
20214
On demand/less
than 1 year 11to 5 years  Over 5 years Total
REKR/
DSRE 1256 5EL E A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Trade and bills payables ENESREBRENRE 827,574 - - 827,574
Financial liabilities included in other FHAH BT R PR AT
payables and accruals ERNEMAR 231,564 - - 231,564
Due to related parties FE B R 5 2B 126,283 - - 126,283
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals FETER M BB 2B 166 - - 166
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERITREMER
borrowings 1,679,147 = = 1,679,147
Lease liabilities HEBRE 22,289 40,343 11,858 74,490
2,887,023 40,343 11,858 2,939,224

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

BEEEERERBEK @

REBEEERE @

Group (continued) KEEF (&)
2020
20204
On demand/less
than 1 year 1to 5 years  Over 5 years
Y
NS 12564 B I
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Trade and bills payables e B 558 REMRE 564,125 — — 564,125
Financial liabilities included in other BHAE A B OB R T
payables and accruals ERNEMARE 180,900 — — 180,900
Due to related parties JE 5 BB 05 3R IE 97,751 — — 97,751
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals I (<) 52 30 4 B8 P 008 217,717 — — 217,717
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FPEERITAER 688,166 — — 688,166
Lease liabilities HEAE 19,558 44,477 10,908 74,943
1,768,217 44,477 10,908 1,823,602

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from an equity investment included in financial
assets at FVTPL (note 23) as at 31 December 2021.
The Group's listed investment is listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and is valued at a quoted market
price at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock

exchange, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and its respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

B EERR

e 2w (B8 BB /5 B FA 1 2 8 BRI 1 7l 38
FEENSHEZNEREFS A AEE
TERAY R o 7N 5 B A i 2 (B AR R B K
RBER2021F12 A31 B AR R
BEFEEEEH T ANEENCREE
WA E (H7523) - KEBEA
BERBBBIAM ET - BRFEIK
AT 5 B E -

UTRBHR BN AFE RO RE M
R 5 BB TISHERIEE - AR
RAFENEHMREEDEENT

31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2021 2021 2020 2020
20214 &/ 20204 &/ 1
12H31H 20214 12H31H 2020
Hong Kong — BB — BERH
Hang Seng Index 23,398  31,183/22,665 27,231 29,056/21,696
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 5% change in the fair value of the equity
investment, with all other variables held constant and

before any impact on tax,

based on

its carrying

amount at the end of the reporting period.

2021

Investment listed in:
Hong Kong — Financial assets

20214

BE LR
B8 — URaREE

FE 5 B A E B )

.....

49. BiIEEREEEEREBE @

REBZEA - ERBAR EEREH
RO - AR AR R BES

5% B 8RR E DT ©

Carrying amount
of equity
investment

PR A& & BRE A
RMB’000
ARET T

Increase/
decrease
in profit
before tax

BATF
#0,/9

i

9\

RMB’000

ARET

v

at FVTPL FFERHEEBHEA
EamemiE 65,301 3,265
2020 20204
Investment listed in: "E FTR
Hong Kong — Financial assets BE — UAanEE
at FVTPL AFERHEEBEA
EamemiE 92,718 4,636
FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

50. X AR FEMBLARNFE

266

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

/R E RS

Issued and paid-up

share capital/registered

capital
BETRARRE/

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARAEGRREZED L

Principal activities

IRER

China Resources Hospital Management  PRC/Mainland China"® RMB500,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding and
& Consulting Co. Ltd. hospital
management
EEEREEANERAT hE/HE R AR%500,000,0007C RERRRERER
Jian Gong Hospital PRC/Mainland China? RMB420,552,600 80.00 80.00  General healthcare
services
REER hE/RE R ARH420,552,6007C RRERRE
Beijing Wanrong Yikang Medical PRC/Mainland China® RMB3,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd
IRERERBEERAR hE/hE R AR3,000,0007 GPO%7
Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical Devices PRC/Mainland China? RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co., Ltd.
IRBEERBEENARAA e/ hE R AR 4,000,000 GPO%H
Beijing Phoenix Easylife Healthcare PRC/Mainland China? RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived
Consulting Co., Ltd. services
IRBEREBERMHEAERAA hE/RE R ABH1,000,0007 Hin Bl 7TE RS
Beijing Phoenix Easylife Technology and ~ PRC/Mainland China® RMB500,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Trade Co., Ltd
GREBREEREERAA e/ hE R ARH500,0007T GPO%7
Beijing Yisheng Yongxin Medical PRC/Mainland China? RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Equipment Co., Ltd.
IRREAEERERARLA e/ hE R AR 4,000,000 GPO%H
Phoenix Baokang Healthcare Hospital PRC/Mainland China" USD5,000,000/ 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Management Co., Ltd. USD8,000,000
BERRERERERAR hE/HE R 5,000,000%7T,/ EhER
8,000,000% 7T
Beijing Phoenix United Innovation PRC/Mainland China® RMB10,000/ 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. RMB20,000,000 services
IRBEARENEREHERDA hE/hE R AEE10,0007L,/ H it BT RS
AR #20,000,0007C

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Beijing Runkang Yisheng UCC Clinic
Management Co., Ltd.
TRERREYMERERAA

Wuhan Runzhiyun Technology Co., Ltd
(formerly known as Beijing Phoenix
United Innovation Information
Technology Co., Ltd)

RERBENRARLA (MEALRR
BREERRMERAR)

Beijing Lihetang Healthcare
Management Co., Ltd.

ARENEREERARAA

Shenzhen Yukangrun Hospital
Management Co., Ltd.

AR RERERERAT

China Resource Hospital Investment
(China) Co., Ltd

ERBRRE (PH)ERAR

China Resources Hospital Management
Co., Ltd.

ERBRERERAA

China Resources Hospital Holding
Company
EEBRIERARLA

999 Clinic Co., Ltd.

ZHEBEMDE (R BREEAR

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

EMREF 3

PRC/Mainland China®

/AR

PRC/Mainland China®

8/ H AR

PRC/Mainland China®

e/ PEALY

PRC/Mainland China”
e/ PERY
PRC/Mainland China®
PE /P ERR
PRC/Mainland China®
/AR
PRC/Mainland China?
e/ PER
PRC/Mainland China®

hE/ AR

Issued and paid-up
share capitalregistered
capital
ERIRARRE/
HEMER

RMB10,010,000/
RMB20,000,000

AE#10,010,0007,/
AR 20,000,000

RMB10,000/
RMB10,000,000

AR10,0007T,/
AR10,000,0007

RMB10,000/
RMB1,000,000

AE#10,0007,/
AR1,000,0007T

RMB10,000

AR#10,0007

USD100,000,000

100,000,000% T

USD10,000,000

10,000,000% 7T

RMB52,000,000

AR 52,000,0007C

RMBA4,000,000

AK%4,000,0007C

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

(%)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARREGREZAD L

2021
20214

%
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00

EHBRERERARF

50. XA T EBMEBARNFRS

Principal activities

Other hospital-derived
services

Bt 07 R

Other hospital-derived
services

EtBRITERY

Other hospital-derived
services

EER TR

Investment holding

RERR

Hospital management
services

BREERY

Hospital management
services

Bl g BRI

Hospital management
services

BhRERRYE
Other hospital-derived

services

Bt 0T R

T —FRR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 50. XA AT X EMMBRATNFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)

(continued)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARREMGREZED L
Issued and paid-up

Place of incorporation/  share capital/registered

registration and business capital 2021
BETRAR :

Principal activities

/MR E RS 021F IRER

%

Beijing Mingshihoude Hospital PRC/Mainland China? RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospita-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services
IRRREREREERAERAA hE/RE R ABRH1,000,0007T H i BRI RS
Beijing Zhikangjiantong Hospital PRC/Mainland China® Nil/RMB1,000,000 0.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* services
GTRERRREREEANERAFY PE/FE R AREZT/ E BT R
A&%1,000,00070
Wuhan Jiayi United Medical Devices PRC/Mainland China? Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co., Ltd.
REEGHABRENERAT RE/ AR AREZT/ GPO%H
A& %1,000,00070
Guangzhou Jiayi Medical Equipment PRC/Mainland China? Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co, Lt
ENERERRERRAT RE/ AR AREZT/ GPO%H
AK%1,000,0007
Hubei Wanyining Medical Equipment PRC/Mainland China? RMB3,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co, Ltd. ("Hubei Wanyining")
BAEBFEREERAA ((HLEFE])  #E/ AR AR%3,000,0007T GPOEE
Beijing Phoenix Lianyi Supply Chain PRC/Mainland China? RMB1,000,000/ 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Management Co., Ltd. RMB5,000,000 services
GRE R R ERERERAT E/ AR ARKE1,000,0007,/ ERERRE
AEH5,000,0007T
Guangzhou Boen Doctor Group PRC/Mainland China? Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived

Co., Ltd.
ENEEBEEEBRAR

hE/hERL?

268 China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 50. AR A ETEMB R RIRFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()

(continued)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARREGREZAD L
Issued and paid-up
share capital/registered
capital 2021

Place of incorporation/
registration and business Principal activities
BETRAR

AEMAS

EMREEHH

20214

%

Hainan Runfeng Medical Service PRC/Mainland China® RMB600,000/ 100.00 100.00  Other hospita-derived
Co., Ltd. RMB1,000,000 services
BEEREERGEREALT PE/PERLY AE600,0007,/ At E b hT 4 R
AR 1,000,000
Beijing Runhuaxinkang Hospital PRC/Mainland China? RMB2,500,000 100.00 60.00  Other hospita-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services
FREELREREBZABRAA PE/RENH? AR#2,500,0007C i B b o7 RS
Shenzhen Runkang Spring Bamboo PRC/Mainland China? RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospita-derived
Shoot Clinic services
RIEREEIDE e/ PEAL? ARH1,000,0007 E it BT 4R
Guangzhou Runyitang Pharmacy PRC/Mainland China® Nil/RMB500,000 100.00 10000  GPO business
Co., Ltd.
BNABERERERAR PE/RENH? ARBZET/ GPOXH
ARH500,0007
Beijing Runhuaxieya Hospital PRC/Mainland China® RMB1,000,000 51.00 51.00  Other hospita-derived
Management Co., Ltd. services
IR EERERRRERERAR HE/RER? ARH1,000,0007 E it BT 4 R
Xuzhou Xinmeijian Medical Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China® RMB500,000/ 100.00 60.00  Other hospita-derived
Co., Ltd. RMB1,000,000 services
ML ERBERBEERLA PE/RENH? ARE500,0007T,/ H iR A7 R A
AR1,000,0007T
Beijing Youaokang Medical Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China® RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospita-derived
Co., Ltd services
FRERFRERMARAA PE/RENH? AR1,000,0007 i B b o7 RS
Beijing Duledefang Technical Consulting ~ PRC/Mainland China® RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospita-derived
Co., Ltd services
FREBEFRIHAERAT e/ PER AR1,000,0007 H iR A7 R A

EHBRERERARF
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PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 50. XA AT X EMMBRATNFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (48)

(continued)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARAIEMGEREZEDN
Issued and paid-up
share capital/registered
capital 2021
BEARAREL/
GRlIE Y 20014

Place of incorporation/

registration and business Principal activities

AL/ R E S

%

Run Neng PRC/Mainland China? RMB318,818,000 65.00 65.00  Hospital management
services
k-4 hE/RE R AR%318,818,0007 ERERRE
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital PRC/Mainland China® RMB338,000,000 100.00 100.00  General healthcare
services
BEERBR- hE/ AR AR %338,000,00070 GABERY
Huaikuang Hospital* PRC/Mainland China RMB118,548,005 100.00 100.00  General healthcare
services
ERER hE/HER ARH118,548,0057C RRERRE
Beijing CEEC Hospital* PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB300,000 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
services
R ERER WE /BN AREZTL/ GEBERY
AR%300,0007
Beijing CEEC Hospital Shuozhou PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
Hospital* services
TR a RPN &R hE/PEN ARE200,0007 GRBRRK
Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital* PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB17,680,000 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
services
ERTaRENER ME /BN ARBZET/ GEBERY
AR%17,680,000C
Guangxi Hydropower Hospital* PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB25,000 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
services
ERKERR WE /BN AREZTL/ GEBERY
AR#25,0007
Gaoxin District Xingyuan Community PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB9,280,600 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
Healthcare Centre® services
BHRRRHEEE RGO wE/RER AREZT/ GREBERY
AR #9,280,6007
Gaoxin District Tianle Community PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB2,080,000 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
Healthcare Centre® services
B BREM B EERB L wE/PER AREZT/ maBERY
A& 2,080,007
Tiandong Street Dianchang Road PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB270,000 65.00 65.00  General healthcare
Community Healthcare Centre* services
ARGEERELEAERBD L ME /BN AREZ/ GEBERY
AE270,000C

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Hefei Gaoxin District Changning
Community Healthcare Centre*

AREEHEREHREHERBET L

Guangxi Runliao Brain Hospital
Co., Ltd.
RRERKNERERAA

Hubei Runkang Medical Management
Co., Ltd.
ML ERBEERERAR

Runliao (Shenzhen) Investment and
Consulting Co., Ltd.
BE(RI)REBHERAR

Runhekangze (Shenzhen) Healthcare
Hospital Management Co., Ltd.
EREE(RY)BREEERAA

Beijing Runtou Medical Technology Co.,
Ltd.#w
FREEEERMAR AT

Huai'AnHuaiyin Hospital Investment and
Management Co., Ltd.”
ERMERBRRAERERA

Huai'an City Huaiyin Hospital Company
Limited—
EETERERERAR

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

ERl A ik

PRC/Mainland China

HE/HEAL

PRC/Mainland China®

HE/PEAL?

PRC/Mainland China®
FE/RERRD
PRC/Mainland China®

HE/PEALY

PRC/Mainland China®

hE/ AR

PRC/Mainland China®?

hE/ AR

PRC/Mainland China®?
FE/RERRD
PRC/Mainland China®

HE/PEAY

Issued and paid-up

share capital/registered

capital
BETRBRKE/
FHEAR

Nil/RMB3,838,400

ARBER/
AER#%3,838 40070

Nil/RMB50,000,000

AREZTL/
AR %50,000,0007C

RMB1,000,000

AR1,000,0007

Nil/RMB1,000,000

ARBER/
AR%1,000,0007C

Nil/RMB1,000,000

ARBER/
ABRH1,0000007

RMB10,000,000/
RMB2,000,000
AR10,000,0007,/
AE2,000,0007T

RMB700,000,000

AR 700,000,000

RMB43,361,500/
RMB56,800,000
AR43 3615007,/
AR 56,800,007

B R EE

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

(%)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARREGREZED L

65.00 65.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 51.00

80 -
80 -

EHBRERERARF

50. XA TBEBEMEBARNFRS

Principal activities

General healthcare
services

GRERRE

Hospital management
services

Bl g BRI

Hospital management
services

BREBRY

Hospital management
services

Bl g BRI

Hospital management
services

BREBRY

Other hospital-derived
services

BT R

Hospital management
services

BREBRY

General healthcare
services

FaBRRSE

—To &k 271
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PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

50. X AR FEMBLARNFE

(%)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARAEGRREZED L

Issued and paid-up

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

share capital/registered
capital

BEEARARRE/

BalRAWASN S

&R

Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital*~ PRC/Mainland China RMB83,600,000
ER= AR &R hE/PEN AR #83,600,0007
Xuzhou Mining Hospital*- PRC/Mainland China RMB103,000,000/
RMB135,040,000

BT BR- hE/RER AE%103,000,0007,/
ARH135,040,0007C

Huaibei City Mental Health Center*~ PRC/Mainland China RMBS8,000,000
BT (L) BB L hE/PEN AR %8,000,0007T
Nanning Runtouxi Medical Investment PRC/Mainland China? RMB3,400,000/
Company Limited~ RMB5,000,000
ERENERREERAF hE/hERL? AE3,400,0007,/
AR 5,000,000

(1)

(2)

##

#4#4

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under PRC law.

These subsidiaries are registered as companies with limited liability
under PRC Law.

These institutions, as not-for-profit hospitals, cannot be registered
as companies under PRC law. The sponsors of the these
institutions, which are not-for-profit hospitals, have respective
obligations to contribute the start-up capital to such institutions.
Such start-up capital, once contributed, shall not be withdrawn by
the sponsors. Given the charity nature of the not-for-profit
hospitals, the legal income of such hospitals shall only be used in
line with its purpose and within its business scope, and where
applicable, in accordance with the articles of association of such
hospitals, therefore, the net income is not distributable to its
sponsors as dividends, which is different from a shareholder who
owns the equity interests of a company.

These subsidiaries were newly established during the year.

This subsidiary was newly corporate during the year.

These subsidiaries were deregistered during the year.

The percentage of equity interest is increased from 51% to 100%.

The Group has acquired the remaining 49% equity interest at a
cash consideration of RMB1,022,000.

(1

(2)

#H

#H#
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
no events after the reporting period to be disclosed.

B RS ERAR M EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

LRAMBRRIRARREERE -

FREINEERRIBRELAEERSE
ERESIBRAKEEEFENTES
DEOARRBMBAR - EFERR - 17 H
HiMHERRFREHERERBRIT

%Qo

HWREE2021F12A31BILEE » K
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 52. Z< A 5] 8f %Ak 5 3R &
OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

T AARARERE R B BRR
BEER

2021 2020
20214

20204
RMB’000
ARBTIT

RMB’000
ARBTIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE

Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB LR 7 9
Investments in subsidiaries KB ARMIEE 6,129,577 6,118,706
Due from subsidiaries JE U B B~ B FR IR 1,015,225 181,661
Total non-current assets BWIERBEE 7.144,809 6,300,376
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE

Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEFEEY 16,760 10,359
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE

Other payables and accruals E e 508 R e R B A 4,190 7,584
Due to subsidiaries JEAST B BB N B3R IE 71,477 112,842
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEERITE R 1,646,624 672,301
Total current liabilities wWrRBaE 1,722,291 792,727
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mBAEFERE (1,705,531) (782,368)
Net assets BETE 5,439,278 5,518,008
EQUITY R

Share capital f& 7 267 267
Reserves (note) i (HIsE) 5,439,011 5,517,741
Total equity PR 5,439,278 5,518,008
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021 20214512 A31H

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 52. XA RBMBERREKER @
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

53.

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Share

ARREREHERENT

Treasury  Share-based

premium Capital share payment Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BRVREER AXARE EEROEE ROGZEE - RiER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 #2020%1 4818 5,992,888 (6,260) (283,145) 13,085 (73,254) 5,643,314
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FEBERZEABRLEE — — — — (21,985) (21,985)
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangement RIS E AR IH 3
ZH - - - 11,124 - 11,124
Sale of treasury shares HEETFRS — — 380 — — 380
Final 2019 dividend 2019F KRS (115,092) — - - — (115,092)
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021 20205124318 &
20211818 5,877,796 (6,260) (282,765) 24,209 (95,239) 5,517,741
Profit and total comprehensive income FEMBRZARALSE
for the year — — — — 1,477 1,477
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangement RIS 4 8 AR A 7K
ZH - - - 10,869 - 10,869
Share vested under the Scheme BOFGaE L (1,248) — 2,317 (1,069) — —
Final 2020 dividend 2020F KHIRE S (91,076) - - - — (91,076)
At 31 December 2021 20215124318 5,785,472 (6,260) (280,448 34,009 (93,762) 5,439,011

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of shares
awarded which are yet to be vested, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to treasury share
reserve and capital reserve when the related share awards are vested, or
be transferred to accumulated losses should the related share awards
expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2022.

BN R BRI EREBOEBMROND AR EE
IEANEBA T 3R R M FE 2. 470 DARRAD 15 SR A & 5t B
E—SRE - ZeBRERARN RBRBERES
EERDFEERERRTE - HE BB ZEH
R AOR UL B s RETRE o

53. B Bzt A&

BTSRRI 2022 FE3 A2 HEZ =S
AR -

FERBERERERAT —T ——Ff
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY — IN ACCORDANCE WITH
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
MBERE — REBRERMBEHREEL

For the year ended 31 December
HENANBLFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20214 2020% kS 20185 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTE ARKTT ARETT ARETR

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS #H&#%4&
Revenue Yz 4,447,477 2,750,650 2,115,320 2,059,478 1,877,724
Profit before tax DR IRalbE 270,475 418,185 541,299 588,943 559,507
Income tax credit/(expense) FSHEE,/(EFR) 155,389 (97,864) (140,665) (149,387) (129,812)
Profit for the year FEFE 425,864 320,321 400,634 439,556 429,695
Attributable to: PAT AT
Owners of the parent SRAERA 417,915 310,131 390,865 430,898 421,034
Non-controlling interests kR 7,949 10,190 9,769 8,658 8,661

425,864 320,321 400,634 439,556 429,695

As at 31 December
®12A31H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20214 20205 20194 20184 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETH

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥{EREE

Total assets BEE 10,467,602 8,963,193 7,873,981 7,319,483 6,914,201
Total liabilities BafE (3,621,157)  (2,622,739)  (1,733,806)  (1,609,664) (1,312,633

6,846,445 6,340,454 6,140,175 5,709,819 5,601,568

Equity attributable to: PTATEG#ES
Owners of the parent [SUNGIE 2PN 6,450,776 6,105,456 5,903,700 5,589,498 5,481,731
Non-controlling interests el e 395,669 234,998 236,475 120,321 119,837

6,846,445 6,340,454 6,140,175 5,709,819 5,601,568
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"Articles of Association”
or "Articles”

"Audit Committee”

“"Award Shares”

“Board” or “Board of
Directors”

“BVI"

“CG Code”

“Chairman”

“Chief Executive Officer”
“Chief Financial Officer”

“China” or “PRC"

"Companies Ordinance”

“"Company” or “our
Company” or “China
Resources Medical”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

“CR Bank”

“CR Healthcare”

“CR Holdings”

DEFINITIONS
Bx

the articles of association of our Company adopted on September 30, 2013
and as amended from time to time

the audit committee of the Board

such Shares awarded pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the maximum
number of which shall not exceed 10% of the total issued capital of the
Company as at August 31, 2018 and 1% of the total number issued Shares to

each of the Selected Participant as at August 31, 2018

the board of Directors of our Company

the British Virgin Islands

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
the chairman of our Board

the chief executive officer of the Company

the chief financial officer of the Company

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (828 &R A R A 7)),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on
February 28, 2013

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules, or where the
context requires, refers to China Resources Company Limited (FFEIZEBEAR A
7)) (formerly known as China Resources National Corporation (/ EZEEE A

al)

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd., a municipal bank headquarters in
Zhuhai and a subsidiary of China Resources Company Limited

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources Company Limited and the indirect holding company of CR
Healthcare

ERERZERERAT —T-—FRK
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DEFINITIONS
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"CR Hospital Holdings”

"CR Hospital
Management &
Consulting”

“CR Land”

“CR Leasing”

“CR Mixc”

“CR Pharmaceutical”

“CR Trust”

“"CR Wugang JV"

"

“Director(s)

"Eligible Persons”

“Executive President”

“FY2020"

“FY2021" or “Reporting

Period”

"Group”, “our Group”,

“we” or "us”

DEFINITIONS
BE

China Resources Hospital Holdings Company, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

China Resources Hospital Management & Consulting Co. Ltd. (formerly known
as Beijing Phoenix United Hospital Management Consulting Co. Ltd., Beijing
Phoenix United Hospital Management Co., Ltd. and Beijing Phoenix United
Hospital Management Joint Stock Co., Ltd., a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on November 6, 2007, and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

China Resources Land Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1109), and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

China Resources Leasing Company Limited*, a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1209), and a subsidiary of CR Land as
well as CR Holdings

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3320), and a subsidiary of CR
Holdings

China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

China Resources Wugang (Hubei) Hospital Management Co., Ltd., a company
incorporated in China with limited liability * which is 51% held by the Group
and 49% held by Wuhan Iron and Steel (Group) Corporation

the directors of our Company or any of them

any of the (i) key management personnel including the Directors and senior
management of the Group; (i) employed experts as nominated by the Board;
and (iii) core employees of the Group

the executive president of our Company

the financial year ended December 31, 2020

the financial year ended December 31, 2021

our Company and its subsidiaries

ERERZERERAT —T-—FRK
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"HK$"” or “"HKD" and
“HK cent(s)" or
“cent(s)”

“Hong Kong”

"Huaikuang Hospital”

“Huaikuang Hospital
Group”

“"Huaiyin Hospital”

“Hubei Runkang”

"1AS”
“IFRSs”
“10T"

"IOT Hospitals”

“"JH Management”

"Jian Gong Hospital”

"Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital”

“Jing Mei Group”

“Jing Mei Hospital”

"Jing Mei Hospital Group”

DEFINITIONS
BE

Hong Kong dollar and cent(s) respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Huaibei Miner General Hospital* (E1bHE T 42 %20x)

collectively, Huaikuang Hospital and certain affiliated hospitals and community
clinics

Huai'an City Huaiyin Hospital Company Limited, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability

Hubei runkang Healthcare Management Company Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

International Accounting Standards
International Financial Reporting Standards
the "invest-operate-transfer” model

third-party hospitals and clinics, which we manage and operate under the 10T
model

JH Management Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd.* (tRHfEEERAR A A]), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on May 12, 2003 and
a subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor, Beijing Construction Worker
Hospital (JL R T AEPRx), before its reform

Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital Company Limited* (B &SRB AR A7), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor, CNHTC Hospital (B &% /5
BEEARAFEPR), before its reform

Beijing Jing Mei Group Company Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability and a state-owned enterprise under the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Beijing

Jing Mei Hospital* (Jb R R B & B 48 2 Fr)

collectively, Jing Mei Hospital and its affiliated hospitals and community
clinics

ERERZERERAT —T-—FRK
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"Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Mentougou Hospital”

“"Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children”

“"Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children
IOT Agreement”

“Mentougou 10T
Agreement”

“"Mentougou TCM
Hospital 10T
Agreement”

“Mentougou Traditional

Chinese Medicine
Hospital”

“Model Code”

“Nomination Committee”

“OT"
"OT Hospital”

“Pinyu”

“"PMM"

DEFINITIONS
BE

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange, i.e. November 29, 2013

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Beijing Mentougou Hospital (At RHFPISEEREEPT), a not-for-profit hospital
established under the laws of the PRC in 1951 and wholly owned by the
Mentougou District government, which we began managing in June 2010
pursuant to the Mentougou IOT Agreement

Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children (F9 3858 [& i 4h 1R 2 BT)
incorporated under the laws of the PRC in 1983 and wholly owned by the
Mentougou District government, which we began managing in September
2014 pursuant to the Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children 10T
Agreement

the 10T agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District government
on September 23, 2014

collectively, the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District
government on July 30, 2010, as amended

the 10T agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District government

on June 6, 2012

Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital (It R FIsE/BR P ER), a
not-for-profit hospital established under the laws of the PRC in 1956 and
wholly owned by the Mentougou District government, which we began
managing in June 2012 pursuant to the Mentougou TCM Hospital 10T
Agreement

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

the nomination committee of the Board
the "“operate-transfer” model
third-party hospital which we manage and operate under the OT model

Pinyu Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables
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DEFINITIONS
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"Remuneration
Committee”

“RMB”

“Run Neng Hospitals”

"Selected Participant(s)”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”

"Share Award Scheme”

“Share Option Scheme”

"Stock Exchange”

"UMP Healthcare

Holdings”

“Unison Champ”

“U.S. dollar” or “US$"

“Wugang Hospital”

"Wugang Hospital Group”

“Xukuang Hospital”

DEFINITIONS
BE

the remuneration committee of the Board

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

collectively, Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital* (BB aeiE2E 115 F7), Beijing
CEEC Hospital* (1t R 8 E8pT), Guangxi Hydropower Hospital* (& 757K & &
Bz) and CEEC Anhui Hospital* (Fr8E2 % 2 Fx)

Eligible Persons selected by the Board in accordance with the terms of the
Share Award Scheme

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

share(s) with par value of HK$0.00025 each in the capital of our Company
holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board pursuant to a
resolution passed by the Board on July 7, 2014, as amended by the Board on

May 25, 2015 and August 31, 2018

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant to a
resolution passed by our Shareholders on September 30, 2013

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (B4 S EBARA a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 722)

Unison Champ Premium Limited (formerly known as Unison Champ Limited),
a company incorporated under the laws of BVI and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company

United States dollar, the lawful currency of the United States of America
China Resources Wugang General Hospital* (% 8 & i 48 5 657)

collectively, Wugang Hospital, Wuhan Iron and Steel (Group) Corporation No. 2
Staff Hospital* (FZ## (SE) QA% B T2E) and certain affiliated

hospitals and community clinics

Xuzhou Mining Hospital* (%N & 1L EB7)
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DEFINITIONS
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“Yan Hua Hospital”

“Yan Hua Hospital Group”

“Yan Hua Hospital
Investment
Management
Agreement”

“Yan Hua 10T
Agreement”

“Yan Hua Phoenix”

“Yuenianhua
Rehabilitation Hospital”

DEFINITIONS
BE

Yan Hua Hospital* (1t R #E{L 22 x)

collectively, Yan Hua Hospital and the community clinics affiliated with Yan
Hua Hospital

the hospital investment management agreement dated February 4, 2008,
which was supplemented in April 2008, December 2010, June 2011, July
2013, September 2013 and October 2013, and were entered into between CR
Hospital Management & Consulting, Yan Hua Hospital and Yan Hua Phoenix

the hospital management right and investment framework agreement dated
February 1, 2008 and the hospital investment management agreement dated
February 4, 2008, both of which were supplemented in April 2008, December
2010, June 2011, June 2013, July 2013, September 2013 and October 2013,
entered into by CR Hospital Management & Consulting with Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital Group

Beijing Yan Hua Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (1t R4t
BEEZEEEEEARAA), a limited liability company incorporated under the
laws of the PRC on July 18, 2005

Nanning Yuenianhua Rehabilitation Hospital Co. Ltd.* (FIZE M FEREE Bt
BRRAF], a limited company established under the laws of the PRC and a for
profit hospital focusing on rehabilitation specially

* Denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese entity is provided for identification purpose

only.

In this report, the terms "“associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”, “subsidiary” and
“substantial shareholder” shall have the same meanings ascribed thereto under in the Listing Rules,
unless the context otherwise requires.
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